
















1G

Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



2A

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



RESOLUTION NO. 18- _______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA; APPROVING AN EXTENSION 
TO A DESIGN REVIEW BOARD APPROVAL FOR 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 9408 BAY 
DRIVE, SURFSIDE, FL, FOR A SINGLE FAMILY 
HOUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2016, the Design Review Board approved plans for the 
construction of a new single family home located at 9408 Bay Drive; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 90-19.9 of the Town Code, a Design Review Board 
approval is valid for a period of 24 months, until April 28, 2018, during which time a building 
permit for the principal building must be obtained; and 

WHEREAS, Subsection 90-19.9(1) of the Town Code provides that an extension of up 
to one year may be granted by the Town Commission for good cause, provided the request is 
submitted prior to expiration of the original approval; and 

WHEREAS, Reuven Herssein, on behalf of KTLL, LLC has, prior to the expiration of 
the existing approval, requested a one year extension of time to obtain building permits; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the applicant has demonstrated good 
cause to support an extension of time during which to obtain a building permit; and 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2018, the Town Commission, at a duly noticed and televised 
quasi-judicial public hearing, and reviewed the Application and recommendations from its 
professional staff, the Applicant, and members of the public. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS AND FINDINGS OF FACT.  All recitals set forth above 
are incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if same were fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2.  EXTENSION OF DESIGN REVIEW BOARD APPROVAL.  The 
request to extend the Design Review Board Approval is hereby granted for a period of one year, 
until April 28, 2019, subject to the following conditions:   

1. Pursuant to Section 90-19.9, the Applicant shall secure a building permit for the

Page 16



2 
 

project no later than April 28. 2019. 
 
2. All conditions of the remaining approval remain in full force and effect and are 

incorporated into this extension.  
 
3. This approval does not in any way create a right on the part of the Applicant to 

obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and does not create liability on the 
part of the Town for issuance of the approval if the Applicant fails to obtain requisite 
approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or federal agency or 
undertakes action that result in a violation of federal or state law. 

 
4. All applicable state and federal permits shall be obtained before commencement of 

construction. 
 
SECTION 3. VIOLATION OF CONDITIONS.  Failure to adhere to the terms and 

conditions of this Resolution shall be considered a violation of the Town Code and persons 
found violating the conditions shall be subject to the penalties prescribed by the Town Code, 
including but not limited to, the revocation of any of the approval(s) granted in this Resolution.  
The Applicant understands and acknowledges that it must comply with all other applicable 
requirements of the Town Code before it may commence construction or operation, and that the 
foregoing approval in this Resolution may be revoked by the Town at any time upon a 
determination by the Town Commission, following a public hearing, that the Applicant is in 
non-compliance with the Town Code or the conditions of this Approval and has failed to cure, 
or to provide an acceptable plan to timely cure, the non-compliance. 

 
SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  In the event any portion or section of this 

Resolution is determined to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional by a court or agency of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall in no way affect the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, which shall remain full force and effect.  

 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon 

adoption. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of March, 2018. 
 
 
Motion by:______________________________________, 
 
Second by:____________________________________. 
 
 

Page 17



3 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 

Commissioner  Daniel Gielchinsky ____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin ____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul ____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen ____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch  ____ 

______________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

______________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE ) 

I, Sandra Novoa, Town Clerk of the Town of Surfside, Florida, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 18-____ adopted by the 
Town Commission at its meeting held on the ___ day of ______________, 2018. 

Issued: ___________________ 

_____________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 18



Town of Surfside 
Special Town Commission Meeting 

Quasi-Judicial Hearing 
MINUTES 

February 13, 2018 
 6:00 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

1. Opening

A. Call to Order

Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

B. Roll Call of Members

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:

Mayor Dietch, Commissioner Paul, Vice Mayor Cohen and Commissioner Karukin.

Commissioner Gielchinsky was absent.

C. Pledge of Allegiance

Police Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance

Vice Mayor Cohen was wished a Happy Birthday.

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings

A. 9133-9149 Collins Avenue – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA;

APPROVING A SITE PLAN APPLICATION FOR PROPERTY GENERALLY

LOCATED AT 9133-9149 COLLINS AVENUE, SURFSIDE, FL, FOR

DEVELOPMENT CONSISTING OF 48 CONDOMINIUM UNITS, 31 HOTEL

ROOMS, AND AN 1,100 SQUARE FOOT RESTAURANT AND LOUNGE;

AND PROVIDING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL FOR THE HOTEL

SWIMMING POOLS AND OUTDOOR DINING INCLUDED IN THE SITE

PLAN; AND PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AN

EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Dietch explained the quasi-judicial process and the duties of the Commission.

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa confirmed that compliance with advertising notice

requirements have been met.

3A

Page 19



   Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

Quasi-Judicial Hearing 
February 13, 2018 

 
  

2 

  
 

Town Attorney Mehaffey reported that the applicant’s attorney has submitted a letter 

dated February 13, 2018, disclosing all ex-parte communications with the Mayor, 

Vice Mayor and Commissioners.   The Town Attorney asked members of the 

Commission if they have had any further ex-parte communications with the Applicant 

or any objector. 

 

Commissioner Paul stated she had email communications with the applicant’s 

attorney and before she was Commissioner she was involved in saving the seaway 

and historic preservation.  Mayor Dietch has had conversations regarding the subject. 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa swore in everyone wishing to speak in favor or against the 

item. 
 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution.   

Commissioner Gielchinsky arrived at 6:13 p.m.  The Town Attorney asked 

Commissioner Gielchinsky if he had any ex-parte communications with the Applicant 

or any objector.  The Commissioner said yes and explained his communications. 

 

Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item and Town Manager Olmedillo 

presented changes that were made in the conditions.  The applicant’s representatives 

spoke on the item and agreed to the changes in conditions as presented by the Town 

Manager.   A power point presentation was given by the applicant. 

The Mayor opened the public hearing.  

Public Speakers:  

-Victor May spoke about impact fees, reducing lighting from the proposed project, 

and access to the beach. 

-Alfred Ruiz spoke against the project. 

No one else wishing to speak, the Mayor closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Paul made a motion to defer.  The motion died for a lack of a second. 

The Commission and applicant discussed the item.  The Mayor suggested that impact 

fees be put on the agenda as a future item. 

Commissioner Paul made a motion to extend the meeting not more than thirty 

minutes.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in 

favor.  

The Mayor asked the administration not to stack up quasi-judicial meetings against 

Commissioner meetings but hold it on a separate day.  

 

 

 

Page 20



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

Quasi-Judicial Hearing 
February 13, 2018 

3 

Mayor Dietch would like adjustments made on Item #12 recovery of recycled 

materials. He would like 80%; not 50%.  The applicant agreed to the 80%.  Item #21, 

adding the name Commission after the word Town ….’  and adding new conditions: 

(1) all roads impacted by the development be repaired and restored to new condition

within 60 days after town certificate of occupancy; (2) immediate repairs on 91st

street pointed out by Commissioner Paul; (3) and restricting the use of pesticides

brought up by Commissioner Paul.

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve with the conditions above.  The 

motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky.  The motion carried 4-1 

with Commissioner Paul voting in opposition. 

The Commission agreed to commence the regular scheduled Commission Meeting. 

3. Adjournment

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner

Gielchinsky seconded the motion and all were in favor.   The meeting adjourned at 7:32

p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2018 

________________________ 

Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Attest: 

 _______________________ 

Sandra Novoa, MMC 

Town Clerk 

Page 21



 
Town of Surfside 

Regular Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

February 13, 2018 
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order  
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:36 p.m. 

          
B. Roll Call of Members  

Town Clerk Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  Mayor 
Deitch, Commissioner Gielchinsky, Commissioner Paul and Commissioner Karukin.   
Vice Mayor Cohen was absent. 

 
C. Pledge of Allegiance  

Former Mayor Mitchell Kinzer led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Vice Mayor Cohen arrived at 7:38 p.m. 

 
D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 

Commissioner Paul wished everyone happy holidays.  Commissioner Gielchinsky 
reminded all about 3rd Thursday Events and as liaison to the Planning and Zoning 
Board, he relayed a strong message from them regarding impact fees.  Commissioner 
Karukin reminded everyone to pick up after their pets.   

 
E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to take Items 9A/9C after the consent agenda.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor.  Vice 
Mayor Cohen urged everyone to register to vote. 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Deitch 
The Mayor recognized Officer Gentile who was selected Officer of the Year for 2017.  
Also recognized was Parking Operations Manager, Eleanor Joseph, who was selected 
as Civilian of the Year for 2017.   Mayor Deitch announced upcoming community 
events which can be found in the Gazette and on the Town’s website.    

 
G. Tree City USA Nomination – Mayor Daniel Deitch 

Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item and congratulated the Public Works 
Department who is in charge of this program. 
 
 

Page 22



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

2 

  
 

H. Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Finance Reporting from the 
Government Finance Officers Association  
(GFOA) – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Town Manager Olmedillo presented the item and the Mayor expressed appreciation 
to the staff of the Financial Department. 

 
2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings  

None. 
 

3. Consent Agenda  
Mayor Deitch pulled Items 3A and 3E.   
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve all consent agenda items as presented 
below, minus the pulled items.  The motion received a second from Commissioner 
Gielchinsky and all voted in favor. 
 
Pulled Items:  Mayor Dietch corrected a spelling typo on the minutes, page 3 Item 3A 
“Bershad,” and withdrew Item 3E. 
 
Commissioner Paul made a motion to approve the pulled items from the consent agenda.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor with 
Vice Mayor Cohen absent. 
 

 
A. Minutes –  Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk   

 January 9, 2018 Regular Town Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

            *B. Town Manager’s Report – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  
      
            *C. Town Attorney’s Report – Weiss Serota, Town Attorney  
 

         D.  Committee Reports – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 November 9, 2017 Pension Board Meeting Minutes 
 December 4, 2017 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes 
 January 8, 2018 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes 

  
         E. Limousines of South Florida, Inc. Municipal Bus Services Renewal – Guillermo 

Olmedillo, Town Manager 
  
 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE 
AGREEMENT WITH LIMOUSINES OF SOUTH FLORIDA, INC. FOR 
MUNICIPAL BUS SERVICES; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE AMENDMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Approved on consent. 
 
 

Page 23



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

3 

  
 

F. Installation and Service Agreement with Triad Security Group, Inc. – Guillermo 
Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE INSTALLATION AND SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH TRIAD SECURITY GROUP, INC. FOR AN ACCESS 
CONTROL SYSTEM AT TOWN HALL; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE AGREEMENT; 
PROVIDING FOR WAIVER OF COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROCEDURES; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Approved on consent. 
 

 
G. Procurement of Video Surveillance and Recording Camera System – Guillermo 

Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE INSTALLATION AND SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH TRIAD SECURITY GROUP, INC. FOR AN IP 
CAMERA SYSTEM AT THE ABBOTT AVENUE PARKING LOT; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR WAIVER OF COMPETITIVE BIDDING 
PROCEDURES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Approved on consent. 
 
 

H. Sand Sourcing Study Urging Resolution – Mayor Daniel   Dietch 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, URGING THE UNITED STATES CONGRESS TO 
FUND THE STUDY OF FOREIGN SAND USE IN BEACH NOURISHMENT 
PROJECTS IN MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK 
TO TRANSMIT A COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE OFFICIALS 
STATED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Approved on consent. 
 

            
I. South Atlantic Coastal Study Urging Resolution – Mayor Daniel Dietch 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, URGING THE UNITED STATES CONGRESS TO 
SUPPORT LANGUAGE IN THE FY 2018 FEDERAL APPROPRIATIONS 
BILL AND THE 2018 DISASTER RECOVERY SUPPLEMENTAL 
PROVIDING FOR 100 PERCENT FEDERAL FUNDING OF THE SOUTH 
ATLANTIC COASTAL STUDY AUTHORIZED IN SECTION 1204 OF THE 

Page 24



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

4 

  
 

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE NATION ACT, 
WITH THE NECESSARY LANGUAGE AND FUNDING TO ENSURE 
INCLUSION OF THE PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED CENTRAL AND 
SOUTH FLORIDA FLOOD CONTROL PROJECT AND ITS AREA AS 
PART OF THIS STUDY; DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO TRANSMIT 
A COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE OFFICIALS STATED HEREIN; 
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND IMPLEMENTATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Approved on consent. 
 
 

J. Zero Emission/Clean Energy Bus Goal Resolution – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, SETTING A GOAL FOR ALL TOWN 
BUSES TO BE ZERO-EMISSION AND POWERED BY CLEAN ENERGY BY 
2025; URGING MIAMI-DADE COUNTY AND ALL MUNICIPALITIES IN 
THE COUNTY TO ADOPT THE SAME GOAL; DIRECTING THE TOWN 
CLERK TO TRANSMIT A COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE 
OFFICIALS STATED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Approved on consent. 
 

 
K. Water Conservation Month (April 2018) – Mayor Daniel Dietch 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE DECLARING APRIL AS 
WATER CONSERVATION MONTH IN THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, 
FLORIDA, AND SUPPORTING THE NATIONAL “WYLAND MAYOR’S 
CHALLENGE FOR WATER CONSERVATION” IN THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE; DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO TRANSMIT A COPY OF 
THIS RESOLUTION TO THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE, THE SOUTH 
FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT, THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, AND ALL THE 
MUNICIPALITIES OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 Approved on consent. 
 

 
4. Ordinances  

 
A. Second Reading Ordinances 

 
1.  Freeboard Modification – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

Page 25



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

5 

  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 42 “FLOODS”, 
SECTION 42-92 “SPECIFIC STANDARDS” TO ADDRESS LOWEST 
FLOOR ELEVATION REQUIREMENTS FOR SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing. 
 

Commissioner Paul made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted in favor. 
 

 
2. Roof Height Modification – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

      AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING,” 
SECTION 90-2 “DEFINITIONS,” TO REVISE THE MEASUREMENT OF 
ROOF HEIGHT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.  Commissioner 
Karukin thanked Town Planner Sinatra and Chair Lecour and the Planning and 
Zoning Board for their work on this item. 
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing. 
 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor. 

 
3. Ordinance Amending Chapter 3, “Purchasing”, Town Code – Second 

Reading.  Purchase of Equipment and Repair and Maintenance of Public 
Works and Utilities Infrastructure – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  

 
      AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 3 “PURCHASING” OF 
THE TOWN CODE RELATING TO PURCHASING LIMITATIONS AND 
EXEMPTIONS FROM COMPETITIVE BIDDING FOR PURCHASES OF 

Page 26



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

6 

  
 

EQUIPMENT AND REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC 
WORKS AND UTILITIES INFRASTRUCTURE; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATON OF 
RECITALS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance. 

 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing. 

 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin.  The motion carried 3/0 
with Commissioner Paul and Vice Mayor Cohen absent for the vote. 

 
 

4.  Ordinance Amending Section 35(14) of Town Charter – Second Reading.  
Requirement for Sealed Bids for Purchases Exceeding $8,500 – Guillermo 
Olmedillo, Town Manager  

      AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 35(14) OF THE 
CHARTER OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE   RELATING TO A 
REQUIREMENT FOR SEALED BIDS FOR PURCHASES OF $8500 OR 
MORE; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
INCORPORATON OF RECITALS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.   
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing. 

 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky.   The motion carried 3/0 
with Commissioner Paul and Vice Mayor Cohen absent for the vote. 

 

5. Ordinance Permitting Law Enforcement to Consider Potential Anti-Semitic 
Motivation for Criminal Offenses – Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING ARTICLE I, “IN GENERAL,” OF 
CHAPTER 54, OFFENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS,” TO 

Page 27



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

7 

  
 

CREATE SECTION 54-2. – “CONSIDERATION OF ANTI-SEMITISM 
AND HATE CRIMES IN ENFORCING LAWS;” PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.   

Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to defer until the full Commission is 
present.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin.   The 
motion carried 3/0 with Commissioner Paul and Vice Mayor Cohen absent for 
the vote. 

 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The 
motion received a second from Vice Mayor Cohen and all voted in favor.   

 
 

6. Temporary Signs – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
AMENDING ARTICLE VI “SIGNS” OF “CHAPTER 90 ZONING” OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES; SPECIFICALLY 
AMENDING SECTION 90-69 “DEFINITIONS”; SPECIFICALLY 
AMENDING SECTION 90-74 “TEMPORARY SIGNS”; PROVIDING 
FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.  Town Attorney made 
a correction on page 141 974-A and a correction on page 142. 
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Paul.  The motion carried 4-0 with Vice 
Mayor Cohen absent for the vote. 
 
 

7. Pension Amendment Clarifying Definition of Senior Management 
Employee – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISION 2 
OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE REGARDING THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN OF 

Page 28



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

8 

  
 

SURFSIDE; AMENDING SECTION 2-171 OF THE TOWN CODE TO 
CLARIFY THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.   
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, the Mayor 
closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted in favor. 
 

 
B. First Reading Ordinances 

 
1. Maintenance in the Right-of-Way, Including Trees and Mulch - Guillermo 

Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING ARTICLE III, PROPERTY 
MAINTENANCE STANDARDS, OF CHAPTER 14, BUILDINGS AND 
BUILDING REGULATIONS, AND CHAPTER 90, ZONING, TO 
PROHIBIT USE OF MULCH IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY AND 
ADDRESS PROPERTY OWNER MAINTENANCE 
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO 
PRIVATE PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.   

Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion for discussion.  The motion received 
a second from Commissioner Paul. 
 
Commissioner Paul made a motion to defer the item to clarify procedures.  The 
motion received a second from Commission Karukin.  The motion was 
withdrawn by Commissioner Paul and received a second from Commissioner 
Karukin. 
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to approve first reading and direct 
the Manager to come back on second reading with a cover letter with procedure 
qualifications per Section 14 of the code to illustrate code compliance standards.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in 
favor. 
 

Page 29



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

9 

  
 

 
2. Amending Section 2-235 “Lobbying” First Reading. – Guillermo Olmedillo, 

Town Manager 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 2-235 – “LOBBYING” 
REGARDING LOBBYISTS’ APPEAL OF FINES FOR EXPENDITURE 
REPORTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.   

Commissioner Paul made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor. 
 
 

3. Driveway Modifications - Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING,” 
SECTION 90-61 “PAVING IN FRONT AND REAR YARDS IN H30 
AND H40 DISTRICTS,” TO ADDRESS DRIVEWAYS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.  The Town Attorney 
presented two corrections to the ordinance for second reading. 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor.   
 
 

4. Plastic Straw Ordinance – Lily Arango, Town Attorney 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 34 “ENVIRONMENT” 
OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF ORDINANCES TO CREATE SECTION 
34-11, “PROHIBITION ON DISTRIBUTION, SALE OR USE OF 
PLASTIC STRAWS;” PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.   

Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor. 
 
Public Speaker Jennifer Rotker spoke in support of the ordinance. 

Page 30



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

10 

  
 

 
5. Solar Photovoltaic Incentives – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 14-29. – “PERMIT 
FEES” – TO PROVIDE FOR WAIVER OF PERMIT FEES AND 
EXPEDITED PERMIT AND DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TO BE 
ADOPTED BY RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the ordinance.   

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor. 
 

 
 

 5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 
 

A. Approval for Work Authorization No. 102 to Calvin Giordano & 
Associates, Inc. for Services Related to the Surfside Traffic Signal 
Modifications at the Intersection of 95th Street and Harding Avenue – 
Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING A WORK AUTHORIZATION 
TO CALVIN GIORDANO & ASSOCIATES, INC. TO PROVIDE 
GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
MODIFICATIONS AT THE INTERSECTION OF 95th STREET AND 
HARDING AVENUE; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE WORK 
AUTHORIZATION; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE WORK AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution.  
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky refrained from voting on his item due to a possible 
voting conflict.   
 
A traffic engineering representative from CGA provided an update. 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the ordinance.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Paul.  All voted in favor with 
Commissioner Gielchinsky refraining from the vote. 
 
Commissioner Karukin requested results of the studies on traffic and costs. 
 

   

Page 31



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

11 

  
 

 
      6.  Good and Welfare  
 The Mayor opened the meeting to public speakers. 
 Public Speakers: 
 -Clara Diaz Leal spoke about traffic. 
  -Victor May spoke about transparency. 
 -Jennifer Rotkel spoke about new buildings and lighting being too bright. 

No one else wishing to speak the Mayor closed Good and Welfare. 
 
The Mayor and members of the Commission addressed the concerns expressed by the 
public speakers. 
 
The meeting resumed with Item 9A. 
 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
  
 

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 
A. One-Way Street Project Update – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Manager Olmedillo presented the item with visuals.  Commissioner Karukin explained 
that the streets chosen were considered low risk in the event it didn’t work out.  The 
Mayor suggested a workshop or special meeting to better inform the public.  
    
The Mayor opened the meeting to public speakers. 
-Chana Citron spoke of better communications regarding upcoming workshops/special 
meetings. 
-Victoria Saife spoke of changes in Surfside. 
-Mitchell Kinzer spoke in opposition of this project. 
-Clara Diaz Leal gave some suggestions for improvement. 

 
The meeting paused for Good and Welfare which is a time certain item. 
 
The meeting resumed and the Commission further discussed the item.   
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to approve the Town Manager’s 
recommendations with the provision of (1) a public workshop or special meeting be held 
within 45 days; (2) that public noticing of that workshop incorporate everything that we 
have done plus capturing the resident’s who live on the avenues in between 89th and 90th 
Street and report back to the Town Commission within 60 days. The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Karukin.  Commissioner Paul made a friendly amendment 
that the residents on those blocks be polled.  The friendly amendment was not accepted 
by Commissioner Gielchinsky.  The vote was called and all voted in favor.   

Page 32



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

12 

  
 

B. Artificial Grass - Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Manager Olmedillo gave an update and his recommendations. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion for recommendation #2, to not amend the code to 
permit artificial grass with a two-year amortization period to be adopted for the removal 
on existing properties.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul and the 
motion carried 4/1 with Mayor Dietch voting in opposition. 
 
 
C. Recommendations on the Beach Furniture Ordinance and Administrative 
Policy - Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Manager Olmedillo presented the item and gave his recommendations.  Commissioner 
Karukin disagreed with some of the Mayor’s recommendations regarding sheds on the 
beach.  Commissioner Paul agrees with Commissioner Karukin and is not in favor of 
sheds on the beach.  She also believes the hotels should provide their own trash 
receptacles.   
 
The Mayor opened the meeting to public speakers. 
-Jeffery Platt is against storage on the beaches. 
-Jennifer Rotker supports no storage on the beach and also spoke of public trash 
receptacles being overflowed. 
-Jean Jacques Murray owner of Grand Beach Hotel is open to finding a solution. 
-Frederiz Mark representing the Grand Beach Hotel, understands the concerns of the 
residents and would like to work through a solution and offered some suggestions.  
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to extend his speaking time an additional two 
minutes.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor. 
 
No one else wishing to speak the Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
The Commission discussed the item further. 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept policy amendments #6 and #7, to 
prohibit storage of beach furniture overnight on the beach.  The motion received a second 
from Vice Mayor Cohen and carried 4/1 with Commissioner Gielchinsky voting in 
opposition. 
 
D. Surfboard Prohibition – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Mayor Dietch presented the item. 
Commissioner Paul made a motion to prepare an ordinance to rescind Section 86-1.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in favor. 
 
E. Resiliency Fund Requirements for Commercial Development – Mayor Daniel 
Dietch 
The Commission agreed to move forward on the item. 
 
F. Social Media Responses – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Duncan Travares and Rachel Pinzer presented the item.  The Commission discussed the 
item and agreed to move forward. 
 

Page 33



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 13, 2018 
 

  

13 

  
 

G. Unsolicited Proposal Update – Seeking Direction – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town 
Manager 
The Commission discussed the item. 
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to extend the meeting an additional 30 
minutes.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor. 
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to continue with the process.  The motion 
received a second from Vice Mayor Cohen.  The motion carried 4/1 with Commissioner 
Karukin voting in opposition. 
 
Commissioner Paul made a motion to move Items 9J/9K next.  The motion received a 
second from Vice Mayor Cohen and all voted in favor.   
 
H. Quality of Life Improvement Initiatives – Commissioner Tina Paul 
Commissioner Paul gave a power point presentation. 
 
Vice Mayor Cohen left at 11:39 p.m. 
 
Passing the gavel, Mayor Dietch made a motion to direct Commissioner Paul to present 
developing turtle friendly literature for the hotels to the Tourist Board.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Karukin and the motion carried 4/0 with Vice 
Mayor Cohen absent.  The environmental ordinance will be revisited. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to extend the meeting an additional ten minutes.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor with Vice 
Mayor Cohen absent. 
 
I. Plastic Bag Legislation – Lily Arango, Town Attorney 
The Town Attorney gave an update.  The Town Attorney was directed to draft a letter in 
support of the item and send it to sponsors from the legislature. 
 
J. Zoning in Progress – New Applications or Site Plan Amendments for 
Properties within H30 and H40 – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Manager Olmedillo presented the item.   
 
Neisen Kasdin spoke against the item.  Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to 
extend him an additional three minutes speaking time.  The motion received a second 
from Vice Mayor Cohen and all voted in favor.  Commissioner Gielchinsky agreed with 
Mr. Kasdin and is not in favor.  The Town Attorney provided more information and saw 
no problem moving forward. 
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to extend the meeting an additional fifteen 
minutes. The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in 
favor. 
 

Page 34



Minutes
Regular Commission Meeting

February 13, 2018

14

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to move forward.  The motion received a second 
from Commission Paul.  The motion carried 3/2 with Commissioner Gielchinsky and 
Vice Mayor Cohen voting in opposition 

K. Unsolicited Proposal Received for Development of “Surfside Civic Center”
Located at Town Hall Site and Municipal Parking Lot at 269 93rd Street – Guillermo
Olmedillo, Town Manager
Manager Olmedillo presented the item.  The Town Attorney confirmed the legal
sufficiency.

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to move forward with an advertising period of 
thirty days.  The motion received a second from Commission Paul and all voted in favor.  

10. Adjournment

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to adjourn.  The motion received a second from
Commissioner Gielchinsky and the meeting adjourned at 11:49 p.m.

  Respectfully submitted, 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2018 

________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Attest: 

 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 

Page 35



 
Town of Surfside 

Special Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

February 27, 2018 
 5:30 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

Rule 7.05 Decorum.  Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes 

boisterous while addressing the commission shall be barred from further appearance before the 

commission by the presiding officer, unless permission to continue or again address the 

commission is granted by the majority vote of the commission members present. No clapping, 

applauding, heckling or verbal outbursts in support or opposition to a speaker or his or her 

remarks shall be permitted. Signs or placards may be disallowed in the commission chamber by 

the presiding officer. Persons exiting the commission chambers shall do so quietly. 

  

Rule 6.05 Agenda. The good and welfare portion of the agenda set for 8:15 p.m. shall be restricted 

to discussion on subjects not already specifically scheduled on the agenda for discussion and 

debate. In no event shall this portion of the agenda be allotted more than 45 minutes with each 

speaker to be given no more than three minutes, unless by vote of a majority of the members of the 

commission present, it is agreed to extend the time frames. Likewise, commission members shall be 

restricted to speaking three minutes each unless an extension is granted in the same manner as set 

forth in the prior sentence.  

 

Any person who received compensation, remuneration or expenses for conducting lobbying 

activities is required to register as a lobbyist with the Town Clerk prior to engaging in lobbying 

activities per Town Code Sec. 2-235.  "Lobbyist" specifically includes the principal, as defined in 

this section, as well as any agent, officer or employee of a principal, regardless of whether such 

lobbying activities fall within the normal scope of employment of such agent, officer or employee. 

The term "lobbyist" specifically excludes any person who only appears as a representative of a 

not-for-profit corporation or entity (such as charitable organization, a trade association or trade 

union), without special compensation or reimbursement for the appearance, whether direct, 

indirect, or contingent, to express support or opposition to any item. 

 

Per Miami Dade County Fire Marshal, the Commission Chambers has a maximum capacity of 99 

people.  Once reached this capacity, people will be asked to watch the meeting from the first floor. 

 

 

 

* Denotes agenda items as “must haves” which means there will be significant impacts if the 

item is not addressed tonight.  If these items have not been heard by 10 p.m., the order of the 

agenda will be changed to allow them to be heard. 

 

 

 

 
Page 36



   Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

   February 27, 2018 
 

  

2 

  
 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order 

Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 5:31pm.     

      

B. Roll Call of Members  

Town Clerk Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  Mayor 

Dietch, Commissioner Gielchinsky, Commissioner Karukin and Commissioner Paul.  

Vice Mayor Cohen was absent. 

    

C. Pledge of Allegiance  

Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

2. Sensible Gun Regulations Urging Resolution 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, CALLING ON 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, GOVERNOR RICK SCOTT, PRESIDENT DONALD 

TRUMP, AND THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT TO REDUCE GUN VIOLENCE 

IN AMERICA AND HELP PREVENT FUTURE SHOOTINGS BY REQUIRING 

A BACKGROUND CHECK FOR EVERY FIREARM SALE; SUPPORTING THE 

PASSAGE OF A RED FLAG LAW; SUPPORTING  RAISING THE AGE FOR 

LEGAL PURCHASE OF FIREARMS, MAGAZINES AND AMMUNITION TO 

21; SUPPORTING THE PASSAGE OF LEGISLATION THAT WOULD KEEP 

MILITARY-STYLE WEAPONS AND HIGH-CAPACITY MAGAZINES AWAY 

FROM OUR SCHOOLS; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN CLERK TO TRANSMIT 

THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 Town Clerk Novoa read the title of the resolution. 

 

 ** Vice Mayor Cohen arrived at 5:35pm 

 

 Mayor Dietch presented the item. 

 

The following public speakers spoke on the item and provided their views: 

 

Jennifer Hill 

Judy Martinez 

Rodrigo Butori 

Dalia Blumstein 

Lou Cohen 

Jaymy Bengio 

 

All members of the Town Commission spoke about their feeling and opinion on this item 

and the recent massacre in Parkland. 

 

Commissioner Paul made a motion to approve and include “Universal Background 

Checks” into the resolution.  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion and all voted in 

favor. 

 

 

 

Page 37



Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

February 27, 2018 

3 

3. Adjournment

Vice Mayor Cohen made a motion adjourned.  The meeting adjourned at 6:04 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2018 

________________________ 

Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Attest: 

 _______________________ 

Sandra Novoa, MMC 

Town Clerk 

Page 38



3B

Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Town Attorney Report for March , 2018 

Page 1 of 3 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
Office of the Town Attorney 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
9293 HARDING AVENUE 

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 33154-3009 
Telephone (305) 993-1065 

TO: Town Commission 

FROM: Lillian M. Arango, Town Attorney 

CC: Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

DATE: March 6, 2018  

SUBJECT: Office of the Town Attorney Report for March 13, 2018 

This Office attended/prepared and/or rendered advice for the following Public Meetings: 

February 6, 2018  -  Planning & Zoning Board Meeting/Joint Meeting with Town Commission 

February 13, 2018 -  Town Commission Meeting  

February 22, 2018  -  Design Review Board and Planning & Zoning Board  

February 27, 2018  -  Special Commission Meeting (Gun Violence)  

March 5, 2018 -   Tourist Board Meeting 

Members of the firm drafted the resolutions and ordinances for these meetings in addition 

to drafting or assisting with the preparation of a number of the communications and reviewing, 

revising and, as appropriate, negotiating the legal requirements of the relative agreements and 

supporting documents.  

Commission support:  

Attorneys of the firm have worked with members of the Town Commission to address concerns 

and research specific issues and are always available, either in the office or by phone or email. 

3C

Page 62



 Town Attorney Report for March , 2018  
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

We appreciate your support as we have worked to transition the office, fine-tune schedules, 

evaluate and adjust prior practices. Transitions are always challenging, but often a time to make 

improvements or adjustments which will improve quality and service. 

Staff support: 

Members of the firm have met with and provided extensive support to staff and boards with 

application review, contract and agreement review and negotiation, unsolicited proposal (P3) 

process and ordinance, procurement and purchasing (including staff workshop on procurement 

issues), code enforcement, building permit and enforcement issues, subpoenas and public records 

requests, research, document review, legal review of various issues, and Town Code 

interpretation and application. 

Key issues:   

The workload has been diverse and has included specific issue support to every department.  Key 

issues have included: 

• Negotiation and document drafting for several interlocal issues 

• Various development and quasi-judicial applications 

• Unsolicited Proposal (P3) – Town Hall Site   

• Code of Ethics and Lobbying Code  

• Roof Height Ordinance  

• Freeboard Ordinance 

• Sign Code Amendment Ordinance  

• Various Urging Resolutions 

• Amendments to the Town’s Purchasing Code  

• Anti-Semitic Ordinance 

• Pension Board Ordinance 

• Tree Planting and Mulch In the  Public Right Away Ordinance 

• Driveway Modifications Ordinance  

• Ordinance Banning Plastic Straws and Resolution Establishing Fees/Fines for Violations 

Page 63



 Town Attorney Report for March , 2018  
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

• Solar Panel Permitting Ordinance and Resolution Providing for Waiver of Fees and 

Expediting of Permit Process  

• Ordinance Lifting Prohibition on Surfboards  

• Ordinance on Building Lengths and Building Separations  

• Ordinance Revising Development Application Procedures 

• Sensible Gun Reform Resolution   

• Plastic Bag Legislation and Analysis   

• Tourist Board Agreements  

• Public Records and Subpoena Requests for Documents  

• Sustainability Initiatives ad Legislation  

• Election Issues  

Litigation: 

We have no new information to provide on any cases or claims at this time.   

Special Matters:  Continued monitoring of new case law and legislation from Federal, State and 

County.   Matters which we will continue to work on, some of which you may anticipate in the 

upcoming months, include issues related to receipt and evaluation of unsolicited proposals, sign 

code revisions, freeboard regulations and ordinances, ordinance providing for revisions to 

development application procedures, ordinance on building length and separations,  ordinances 

and resolutions addressing solar panels and plastic straws, interlocal agreements for shuttle 

services, recycling ordinance, short term rental provisions, sustainability initiates and legislation, 

election-related issues, and various procurements.   

 

Page 64



3D

Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



3E

Page 80



Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT WITH ZAMBELLI FIREWORKS 
MANUFACTURING CO. FOR THE TOWN’S FOURTH OF 
JULY FIREWORKS DISPLAY; PROVIDING FOR 
AUTHORIZATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR WAIVER OF 
COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROCEDURES; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on July 4, 2018, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) will host an all-day 
community event at the Community Center, which concludes with a fireworks display (“Fourth 
of July Event”); and 

WHEREAS, for several years, the Town has contracted with Zambelli Fireworks 
Manufacturing Co. (“Zambelli”) to provide the fireworks display at the Fourth of July Event and 
is pleased with Zambelli’s performance; and 

WHEREAS, Town Staff recommends that the Town continue working with Zambelli to 
provide the fireworks display for the Fourth of July Event; and 

WHEREAS, Zambelli has provided a proposal for a fireworks display (the “Services”) at 
the 2018 Fourth of July Event and has agreed to provide the Services as provided for in the 
Contract and Agreement, together with Addendum, collectively attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
(the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town conducted a good faith review of available sources as to price, 
delivery and terms, and wishes to waive competitive bidding for the Services pursuant to Section 
3-12 of the Town’s Purchasing Code and finds that it is in the best interests of the Town to
expeditiously obtain the Services and ensure provision of the fireworks display for the Fourth of
July Event; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3-13(7)(c) of the Town’s Code, the Town Commission 
recognizes that the Services provided by Zambelli are exempt from the competitive procurement 
requirements of Chapter 3 of the Town’s Code as they are a performing artist and entertainer 
benefitting the citizens of Surfside and the general public at the Fourth of July Event, which is a 
Town function; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the Agreement is in the best interest and 
welfare of the Town and wishes to approve same in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A.” 

Page 81



Page 2 of 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above-stated recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2. Approval and Authorization; Waiver of Competitive Bidding. The 
Agreement between the Town and Zambelli, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
“A,” is hereby approved. The Town Commission authorizes the Town Manager to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of the Town, together with such non-substantive changes as may be 
approved by the Town Manager and Town Attorney for legal sufficiency.  The Town 
Commission waives competitive bidding procedures pursuant to Section 3-12 of the Town’s 
Purchasing Code, upon the recommendation of the Town Manager, and finds that such waiver is 
in the best interests of the Town in order to expeditiously obtain the Services and ensure 
provision of the fireworks display for the Fourth of July Event. Furthermore, pursuant to Section 
3-13(7)(c) of the Town’s Code, the Town Commission recognizes that the Services provided by
Zambelli are exempt from the competitive procurement requirements of Chapter 3 of the Town’s
Code as they benefit the citizens of Surfside and the general public at the Fourth of July Event,
which is a Town function.

Section 3. Implementation. The Town Manager and/or designee are authorized to 
take any and all action necessary to implement the purposes of this Resolution and the 
Agreement. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Moved By: 

Second By: 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky 
Commissioner Michael Karukin 
Commissioner Tina Paul 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen 
Mayor Daniel Dietch  

Page 82



ATTACHMENT "A"

Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 3 of 3 

Daniel Dietch 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY:  

Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney 

Page 92



ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AND 

ZAMBELLI FIREWORKS MANUFACTURING CO. 

2018 FOURTH OF JULY FIREWORKS DISPLAY 

THIS ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT AND AGREEMENT (“Addendum”) is made 
and entered into as of this ___ day of __________, 2018, by and between TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Town” or 
“Client”) and ZAMBELLI FIREWORKS MANUFACTURING CO., a Pennsylvania 
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Zambelli” or “Contractor”).  

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the Town and Contractor wish to enter into that certain Contract and 
Agreement, and this Addendum, for the purpose of Contractor providing a 12-minute fireworks 
display on July 4, 2018 at the Town of Surfside Community Center located at 9301 Collins 
Avenue, Surfside, Florida 33154 (“Premises”), (hereinafter, the “Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the Town and Contractor desire to add to and amend certain provisions of 
the Agreement as hereinafter provided.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, Town and Contractor desiring to be legally bound, do hereby agree and 
covenant, notwithstanding the terms and conditions of the Agreement, as follows:  

1. Addendum Controls.  In the event of any conflict between this Addendum and the Agreement,
the terms of this Addendum shall prevail and govern.

2. Defined Terms.  All initial capitalized terms used in this Addendum shall have the same
meaning as set forth in the Agreement unless otherwise provided.

3. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part of this
Addendum.

4. Insurance.

4.1. Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this Agreement
insurance of such types and in such amounts not less than those specified below as 
satisfactory to Town, naming the Town as an Additional Insured, underwritten by a firm 
rated A-X or better by A.M. Best and qualified to do business in the State of Florida. 
The insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the Town, its 
officials, employees, agents and volunteers naming the Town as additional insured. Any 
insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of the Contractor’s insurance and 
shall not contribute to the Contractor’s insurance.  The insurance coverages shall include 
at a minimum the amounts set forth in this Section 4 and may be increased by the Town 

  

Page 93



Page 2 of 8 

as it deems necessary or prudent. 

4.2. Commercial General Liability coverage with limits of liability of not less than a 
$10,000,000 per Occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. This Liability Insurance shall also include Completed Operations and Product 
Liability coverages and eliminate the exclusion with respect to property under the care, 
custody and control of Contractor.  The General Aggregate Liability limit and the 
Products/Completed Operations Liability Aggregate limit shall be in the amount of 
$10,000,000 each. 

4.3. Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability insurance, to apply for all employees 
for statutory limits as required by applicable State and Federal laws. The policy(ies) 
must include Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 each accident. 
No employee, subcontractor or agent of the Contractor shall be allowed to provide 
Services pursuant to the Agreement who is not covered by Worker’s Compensation 
insurance.   

4.4. Business Automobile Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per Occurrence, 
combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage.  Coverage must be 
afforded on a form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Business Automobile 
Liability policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Service 
Office, and must include Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Vehicles. 

4.5. Transportation Liability Insurance with minimum limits of $5,000,000 per Occurrence 
as required by the United States Department of Transportation.  

4.6. Certificate of Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance shall be provided to the Town, 
reflecting the Town as an Additional Insured, no later than ten (10) days after award of 
this Agreement and prior to the execution of the Agreement by Town and prior to 
commencing any Services.  Each certificate shall include no less than (30) thirty-day 
advance written notice to Town prior to cancellation, termination, or material alteration 
of said policies or insurance.  The Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that the 
insurance certificates required by this Section remain in full force and effect for the 
duration of the Agreement, including any extensions or renewals that may be granted by 
the Town. The Certificates of Insurance shall not only name the types of policy(ies) 
provided, but also shall refer specifically to the Agreement and shall state that such 
insurance is as required by the Agreement.  The Town reserves the right to inspect and 
return a certified copy of such policies, upon written request by the Town.  If a policy is 
due to expire prior to the completion of the Services, renewal Certificates of Insurance 
shall be furnished thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of their policy expiration. 
Each policy certificate shall be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) 
calendar days’ written notice shall be provided to the Town before any policy or 
coverage is cancelled or restricted. Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval 
of the Town.  

4.7. Additional Insured. The Town is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured 
for the liability of the Town resulting from Services performed by or on behalf of the 

Page 94



Page 3 of 8 

Contractor in performance of the Agreement.  The Contractor’s insurance, including that 
applicable to the Town as an Additional Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any 
other insurance maintained by the Town shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to 
the Contractor’s  insurance. The Contractor’s insurance shall contain a severability of 
interest provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the 
insurance shall apply to each Insured or Additional Insured (for applicable policies) in 
the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each. 

4.8. Deductibles. All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be 
reasonably approved by the Town. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment 
of any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any claim. 

4.9. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of the Agreement. 

5. Indemnification.   Contractor  shall protect, defend, indemnify, save and hold harmless the
Town, all departments, agencies, boards and commissions, its officers, agents, servants and
employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, expense and liability arising out of
injury or death to any person or the damage, loss of destruction of any property which may
occur or in any way grow out of the Display or services and any negligent act or omission of
the Contractor, its agents, servants, and employees, or any and all costs, expense and/or
attorney fees incurred by the Town as a result of any claim, demands, and/or causes of
action.  Nothing in this indemnification or the Agreement is intended to act as a waiver of the
Town’s sovereign immunity rights, including those provided under section 768.28, Florida
Statutes.  This indemnification shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement.

6. Notices/Authorized Representatives.  Any notices required by the Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given if transmitted by hand-delivery, by
registered or certified mail with postage prepaid return receipt requested, or by a private
postal service, addressed to the parties (or their successors) at the following addresses:

For the Town: Town of Surfside    
Town Manager 
9293 Harding Avenue  
Surfside, Florida 33154 

With a copy to: Town Attorney 
Town of Surfside   
9293 Harding Avenue  
Surfside, Florida 33154 

For the Contractor: Zambelli Fireworks Manufacturing Co. 
Attention: Tony Sawdey, Project Manager 
1 West Camino Real Blvd., Suite 100 
Boca Raton, FL 33432 

7. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by
the laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any litigation arising out of this Agreement shall

Page 95



Page 4 of 8 

be proper exclusively in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

8. Ownership and Access to Records; Public Records.   Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in the Agreement, the Agreement and all Work, deliverables and services provided
by the Contractor are subject to Florida’s Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes,
including but not limited to the following:

8.1. All records, books, documents, maps, data, deliverables, papers and financial
information (the “Records”) that result from the Contractor providing the Work to the 
Town under the Agreement shall be the property of the Town.   

8.2. Contractor agrees to keep and maintain public records in Contractor’s possession or 
control in connection with Contractor’s performance under the Agreement. Contractor 
additionally agrees to comply specifically with the provisions of Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes.   Contractor shall ensure that public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed, 
except as authorized by law, for the duration of the Agreement, and following 
completion of the Agreement until the records are transferred to the Town. 

8.3. Upon request from the Town custodian of public records, Contractor shall provide the 
Town with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied 
within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided by Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

8.4. Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all records, including but not limited to 
reports, surveys, and other data and documents provided or created in connection with 
this Agreement are and shall remain the property of the Town. 

8.5. Upon completion of this Agreement or in the event of termination by either party, any 
and all public records relating to the Agreement in the possession of the Contractor shall 
be delivered by the Contractor to the Town Manager, at no cost to the Town, within 
seven (7) days.  All such records stored electronically by Contractor shall be delivered to 
the Town in a format that is compatible with the Town’s information technology 
systems.  Once the public records have been delivered upon completion or termination 
of this Agreement, the Contractor shall destroy any and all duplicate public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. 

8.6. Any compensation due to Contractor shall be withheld until all records are received as 
provided herein.  

8.7. Contractor’s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this section shall result in 
the immediate termination of the Agreement by the Town. 

Section 119.0701(2)(a), Florida Statutes 

IF THE COMPANY HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 

Page 96



Page 5 of 8 

THE COMPANY’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS. 

Custodian of Records: SANDRA NOVOA, MMC, 
TOWN CLERK 

Mailing address:      9293 Harding Avenue   
Surfside, Florida 33154 

Telephone number: 305-887-9541

Email:  snovoa@townofsurfsidefl.gov 

9. Compliance with Laws.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities in carrying out the Display, deliverables
or services under the Agreement, and in particular shall obtain all required permits from all
jurisdictional agencies to perform the Display and services under the Agreement.

10. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended by the prior written approval of the
parties or by execution of an amendment executed by both parties.

11. Controlling Agreement; No Construction against Drafter.  The Agreement, as
supplemented and modified by this Addendum, is the sole expression of the agreement
between the Town and Contractor as to the subject matter thereof.

12. Counterparts.  This Addendum may be executed in counterparts and any counterpart
evidencing signature by one party may be delivered by telecopy, facsimile or electronic mail.
Each executed counterpart of this Addendum will constitute an original document and all
executed counterparts, together, will constitute the same Agreement.

13. Attorney’s Fees and Waiver of Jury Trial. In the event of any litigation arising out of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its attorneys’ fees and costs,
including the fees and expenses of any paralegals, law clerks and legal assistants, and
including fees and expenses charged for representation at both the trial and appellate levels.
IN THE EVENT OF ANY LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, EACH
PARTY HEREBY KNOWINGLY, IRREVOCABLY, VOLUNTARILY AND
INTENTIONALLY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY.

14. Assignment and Subcontractors. Contractor shall not sell, assign, transfer or convey this
Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the Town  Manager. Any
such assignment without prior approval shall be void ab initio.  All subcontractors shall be
approved in advance by the Town before providing the Display. The Contractor agrees and
represents that any approved subcontractors possess the requisite skills to perform the
Display and that the Display shall be executed in a good and workmanlike manner, free from

Page 97

mailto:snovoa@townofsurfsidefl.gov


Page 6 of 8 

defects, and that all materials shall be new and approved by or acceptable to the Town. 

15. Paragraph 3 of Agreement. Paragraph 3 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety as follows:

“Zambelli agrees to furnish insurance coverage in connection with the Display for 
bodily injury and property damage, including products liability, which insurance 
shall include Client as additional insured regarding claims made against Client for 
bodily injury or property damage arising from the operations of Zambelli in 
performing the Display provided for in this Contract. Such insurance afforded by 
Zambelli shall not include claims made against Client for bodily injury or property 
damage arising from failure of Client, including through or by its employees, agents 
and independent contractors, to perform its obligations under this Contract, 
including without limitation those set forth in paragraphs 5 and 6 below.” 

All insurance shall be provided by Contractor as set forth in Section 4 of this 
Addendum.    

16. Paragraph 9 of Agreement. Paragraph 9 of the Agreement is stricken in its entirety.

17. Paragraph 10 of Agreement. Paragraph 10 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety as
follows:

“It is agreed and understood by the parties hereto that should inclement weather 
prevent firing of the Display on the Display Date, as determined by the Authority 
Having Jurisdiction (as defined in paragraph 14 below) or as reasonably determined 
by Zambelli, then the program shall be postponed and fired on the Postponement 
Date. If there is no Postponement Date and the Display is not fired on the Display 
Date, or if inclement weather prevents firing of the Display on the Postponement 
Date, as determined by the Authority Having Jurisdiction, the Display will be 
cancelled and there will be no refund of the Deposit or fifty percent (50%) of the 
Purchase Price, whichever is greater.” 

18. Paragraph 11 of Agreement. Paragraph 11(e) of the Agreement is stricken in its entirety. No
Additional Third Party Charges will be imposed for cancellation of the Display.

19. Paragraph 15 of Agreement. Paragraph 15 of the Agreement is stricken in its entirety.

20. Paragraph 17 of Agreement. Paragraph 17 of the Agreement is stricken in its entirety.

21. Paragraph 18 of Agreement. Paragraph 18 of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety as
follows:

“If Client fails to pay the monies due under this Contract, Zambelli is entitled to 
recover the balance due plus interest at one and one-half percent (1 ½ %) per month 
on amounts past due sixty (60) days or more.” 

Page 98



Page 7 of 8 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

Page 99



Page 8 of 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Addendum on the dates set 
forth below their respective signatures.  

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

TOWN: 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, a Florida 
municipal corporation 

By:_________________________________ 

Name: ______________________________ 

Title:_______________________________ 

Date:_______________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM AND 
SUFFICIENCY:  

________________________________ 
Town Attorney 

Contractor 

ZAMBELLI FIREWORKS 
MANUFACTURING CO., a Pennsylvania 
corporation  

By:_________________________________ 

Name: ______________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

Date:________________________________ 

Page 100



3F

Page 101



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT WITH BLUE DIGITAL CORP. FOR 
DOCUMENT SCANNING SERVICES FOR THE BUILDING 
DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION 
AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) wishes to engage Blue Digital Corp. 
(“Contractor”) for document scanning and imaging services for all records and plans of the 
Building Department; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3-13(3) of the Town’s Purchasing Code, the purchase of 
the services is exempt from competitive bidding or solicitation as the contract was previously 
competitively procured per Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22 and City of Sunny Isles Beach 
Contract No. C1213-045, under which terms and pricing were solicited by other governmental 
agencies; and   

WHEREAS, Contractor has agreed to provide the services based on the terms and pricing 
set forth in Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22 and City of Sunny Isles Beach Contract No. 
C1213-045, including scanning and imaging of all existing Building Department records and plans 
in accordance with the estimate attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and provide annual services 
thereafter in accordance with the estimate attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, all pursuant to the 
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “C” (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the Agreement is in the best interest and 
welfare of the Town and wishes to approve same in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit “C.” 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Recitals. That the above and foregoing recitals are true and correct and are 
hereby incorporated by reference. 

Section 2.  Approval and Authorization.   The Agreement between the Town and 
Contractor, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, is hereby approved.   The 
Town Commission authorizes the Town Manager to execute the Agreement on behalf of the Town, 
together with such non-substantive changes as may be approved by the Town Manager and 
Building Official, and Town Attorney for legal sufficiency.   

Page 102



Page 2 of 2 

Section 3.  Implementation.   The Town Manager and/or his designee and the Building 
Official are authorized to take all action necessary to implement the purposes of this Resolution 
and the Agreement.    

Section 4.  Effective Date. This Resolution will become effective upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Motion by ______________________________________. 
Second by ______________________________________. 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky ____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin ____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul ____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen ____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch  ____ 

____________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC,  
Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

____________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney 

Page 103



Estimate
Date

9/20/2017

Estimate No.

4109

Name/Address

Town of Surfside
9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida  33154
ATTN: Ross Prieto

Blue Digital Corp.
7290 NW 7th Street - Unit 108
Miami, FL 33126
Ph:  305. 262-4920
Fax: 305.262-4922

SIGNATURE____________
FED TAX ID#05-0528104

Total

Description Qty U/M Rate Total

Scan to 300 DPI B/W Tiff , 8.5x11, 8.5x11, 11x17 161,721 ea. 0.025 4,043.03T
Scan to 300 DPI B/W Tiff 24x36, 30x42, 36x48 123,354 ea. 0.28 34,539.12T
Indexing per Indexing field 728,805 ea. 0.01 7,288.05T
OCR - Optical Character Recognition 285,075 ea. 0.025 7,126.88T
Document Preparation to include Staple & Clip
Removal, taping, recopying, de-creasing,
separating

1,000 hr 12.00 12,000.00T

Burn DVD and covert to Laserfich Breifcase
Format

30 ea 12.50 375.00T

Shredding Services 462 ea 4.25 1,963.50T
Pickup Boxes at the City of Surf Side and deliver
to Blue Digital

1 ea 45.00 45.00T

Note: There is no additional cost for storing the
documents at our facility while the job is being
scanned
Exempt Sales 0.00% 0.00

$67,380.58

EXHIBIT "A"

Page 104



Estimate
Date

2/16/2018

Estimate No.

4194

Name/Address

Town of Surfside
9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida  33154
ATTN: Ross Prieto

Blue Digital Corp.
7290 NW 7th Street - Unit 108
Miami, FL 33126
Ph:  305. 262-4920

SIGNATURE____________
FED TAX ID#05-0528104

Total

Description Qty U/M Rate Total

Boxes:25
Scan to 300 DPI B/W Tiff , 8.5x11, 8.5x11, 11x17 55,000 ea. 0.025 1,375.00T
Scan to 300 DPI B/W Tiff 24x36, 30x42, 36x48 7,100 ea. 0.28 1,988.00T
Indexing per Indexing field 62,100 ea. 0.01 621.00T
OCR - Optical Character Recognition 62,100 ea. 0.025 1,552.50T
Document Preparation to include Staple & Clip
Removal, taping, recopying, de-creasing,
separating

265 hr 12.00 3,180.00T

Burn DVD and covert to Laserfich Breifcase
Format

40 ea 12.50 500.00T

Shredding Services 179 ea 4.25 760.75T
Pickup Boxes at the City of Surf Side and deliver
to Blue Digital

1 ea 20.00 20.00T

Note: There is no additional cost for storing the
documents at our facility while the job is being
scanned
Exempt Sales 0.00% 0.00

$9,997.25

EXHIBIT "B"

Page 105



AGREEMENT FOR DOCUMENT SCANNING SERVICES BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AND BLUE DIGITAL CORP. 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR DOCUMENT SCANNING SERVICES  (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Agreement”) is made this _____ day of ___________, 2018, by and between the 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA,  a Florida Municipal Corporation (hereinafter referred to 
as “Town”), and BLUE DIGITAL CORP., a Florida corporation authorized to do business in 
the State of Florida (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), with its principal place of business 
at 7290 N.W. 7 Street, Suite 107, Miami, Florida 33126 and  whose Federal I.D. # is 
____________________. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside, Florida (“Town”) is in need of a Contractor to 
provide document scanning and imaging services for the scanning, storage and retrieval of 
existing archival, long term and permanent records for the Building Department, including 
existing building plans, permit records and Building Department documents (“Services”), as well 
as future and ongoing annual services for records (Annual Services”); and 

WHEREAS, Contractor was previously selected as the successful bidder in response to 
Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22 and was awarded a contract for reproduction and 
binding services; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor was previously selected and entered into a contract with the City 
of Sunny Isles Beach, pursuant to the Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22, for document 
scanning services; and  

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to enter into this Agreement with Contractor utilizing the 
same terms, conditions and pricing as Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22, and the City of 
Sunny Isles Beach Contract No. C1213-045 for document scanning services, and in accordance 
with Estimate No. 4109 for the Services attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and Estimate No. 4194 
for the Annual Services attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3-13(3) of the Town's Procurement Code, purchases 
made under state, county or other governmental contracts, or competitive bids with other 
governmental agencies are exempt from the Town's competitive bidding procedures; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide the Services to the Town utilizing the same 
terms, conditions and pricing as Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22, and City of Sunny Isles 
Beach Contract No. C1213-045, for document scanning services, which are incorporated herein 
by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to enter into a contract with Contractor to provide the 
Services to the Town in an amount not to exceed $67,380.58 for all existing documents, and an 
annual fee thereafter of $9,997.25 for ongoing and future scanning of documents.   

EXHIBIT "C"

Page 106



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants herein 
name, the parties agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS. The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into this Agreement
and made a part hereof for reference.

2. SERVICES.  Contractor agrees to provide the Services, and Annual Services, pursuant
to the terms, conditions and pricing contained in Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22, and
the City of Sunny Isles Beach Contract No. C1213-045, which are incorporated herein by
reference and made a part hereof.

3. TERM.   Subject to the provisions relating to the termination of this Agreement as set
forth in Section 10 hereunder, this Agreement shall commence on the date of execution of this
Agreement by the Town subsequent to approval by the Town Commission and shall end one (1)
year thereafter.  The Services, including scanning, imaging and archival of all existing records,
shall be completed within one (1) year of execution of this Agreement. Annual Services shall be
provided bi-annually or every six (6) months, or as otherwise directed by the Town. The Town,
at is option, may extend or renew the term of this Agreement for additional one-year terms for
the provision of Annual Services.

4. RENEWAL. Prior to, or upon completion of the initial one year term, the Town shall
have the option to renew this Agreement for three (3) additional one-year renewal terms for the
Annual Services.

5. COMPENSATION. As the entire compensation for the Services under this Agreement
during the initial one (1) year term, the Town shall pay Contractor an amount not to exceed
$67,380.58 for the performance of the Services. The above amount includes a one-time amount
not to exceed $67,380.58 for scanning of all existing plans, permitting files, and other documents
and records of the Building Department. In addition to said amount, Town, at its election, shall
pay Contractor an annual amount not to exceed $9,997.25 for scanning of ongoing/current or
future files and documents for FY 2018-2019 and subsequent fiscal years. Payment to Contractor
for all charges and tasks under this Agreement shall be in accordance with this Agreement and
the schedule of charges or unit prices set forth in the Estimates attached hereto as Exhibit “A”
and Exhibit “B.”

In the event the Town elects to renew-this Agreement for subsequent fiscal years, the Town shall 
pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed $9,997.25 per year during each one-year renewal 
term for all charges and tasks under this Agreement, in accordance with this Agreement and 
Estimate for Annual Services attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.  All charges under this Agreement 
shall be made under the following conditions: 

a. Disbursements. There are no reimbursable expenses payable to Contractor and
associated with this Agreement. 

b. Payment Schedule. Contractor will bill Town monthly for all Services completed
for the prior month.  Invoices received from the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be 

Page 107



reviewed by the Town Building Department. If Services have been rendered in conformity with 
the Agreement, the invoice will be sent to the Town Manager for final approval and the Finance 
Department for payment. Invoices must reference the contract number assigned hereto. Invoices 
will be paid in accordance with the State of Florida Prompt Payment Act. 

c. Availability of Funds. The Town's performance and obligation to pay under this
Agreement is contingent upon an annual appropriation and budgeting of the Services and Annual 
Services by the Town Commission. In the event the Town Commission fails to appropriate 
and/or budget funds for the particular purpose of this Agreement during any year of the term 
hereof, then this Agreement shall be terminated upon ten (10) days written notice and the 
Contractor shall be compensated for the Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective 
date of termination. 

d. Final Invoice. In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the
Contractor will clearly state “final invoice” on the Contractor's final/last billing to the Town. 
This certifies that all services have been properly performed and all charges and costs have been 
invoiced to the Town. Since this account will thereupon be closed, any other additional charges, 
if not properly included on this final invoice, are waived by the Contractor. 

Contractor shall make no other charges to the Town for supplies, labor, taxes, licenses, permits, 
overhead or any other expenses or costs unless any such expense or cost is incurred by 
Contractor with the prior written approval of the Town. If the Town disputes any charges on the 
invoices, it may make payment of the uncontested amounts and withhold payment on the 
contested amounts until they are resolved by agreement with Contractor. Contractor shall not 
pledge the Town's credit or make it a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, 
obligation, judgment, lien, or any form of indebtedness. The Contractor further warrants and 
represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the 
terms of this Agreement. 

6. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. All payments to Contractor shall be based on invoices
submitted to the Town. The Town shall only reimburse Contractor for services authorized
pursuant to this Agreement. Any additional work or services performed by Contractor that is
outside the scope of Services contained herein shall be required to be pre-authorized and
approved in advance in writing by the Town Manager or his designee. In the event the
Contractor performs work or services that it outside the scope of Services, and does not obtain
the required pre-authorization and approval in writing from the Town Manager or his designee,
then the Town shall not be under any legal obligation to reimburse Contractor for said additional
services.

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. The Contractor is an
independent contractor and shall be treated as such for all purposes. Nothing contained in this
Agreement or any action of the parties shall be construed to constitute or to render the Contractor
an employee, partner, agent, shareholder, officer or in any other capacity other than as an
independent contractor other than those obligations which have been or shall have been
undertaken by the Town. Contractor shall be responsible for any and all of its own expenses in
performing its duties as contemplated under this Agreement. The Town shall not be responsible

Page 108



for any expense incurred by the Contractor. The Town shall have no duty to withhold any federal 
income taxes or pay Social Security services and that such obligations shall be that of the 
Contractor, other than those set forth in this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish its own 
transportation, office and other supplies as it determines necessary in carrying out its duties 
under this Agreement. 

8. OWNERSHIP AND ACCESS TO RECORDS; PUBLIC RECORDS

A. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that all data, information and materials
prepared by Contractor and accepted and paid for by Town and all similar or related information 
(whether patentable or not) which relate to Services to the Town which are conceived, developed 
or made by Contractor during the term of this Agreement (“Work Product”) belong to the Town. 
Contractor shall promptly disclose such Work Product to the Town and perform all actions 
reasonably requested by the Town (whether during or after the term of this Agreement) to 
establish and confirm such ownership (including, without limitation, assignments, powers of 
attorney and other instruments).  

B. All records, books, documents, data, deliverables, papers and financial
information (the “Records”) that result from Contractor providing the Services to the Town 
under this Agreement shall be the property of the Town.   

C. Contractor agrees to keep and maintain public records in Contractor’s possession
or control in connection with its performance under this Agreement. Contractor additionally 
agrees to comply specifically with the provisions of Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. 
Contractor shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law, for the 
duration of the Agreement, and following completion of the Agreement until the records are 
transferred to the Town. 

D. Upon request from the Town’s custodian of public records, Contractor
shall provide the Town with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected 
or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided by Chapter 
119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

E. Unless otherwise provided by law, any and all records, including but not limited to
reports and other data and documents provided or created in connection with this Agreement are 
and shall remain the property of the Town. 

F. Upon completion of this Agreement or in the event of termination by either party,
any and all public records relating to the Agreement in the possession of the Contractor shall be 
delivered by Contractor to the Town Manager and/or his designee, at no cost to the Town, within 
seven (7) days.  All such records stored electronically by Contractor shall be delivered to the 
Town in a format that is compatible with the Town’s information technology systems.  Once the 

Page 109



public records have been delivered upon completion or termination of this Agreement, 
Contractor shall destroy any and all duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and 
exempt from public records disclosure requirements. 

 G. Any compensation due to Contractor shall be withheld until all records are 
received as provided herein.   

H. Contractor’s failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this section shall 
result in the immediate termination of this Agreement by the Town. 

 

Section 119.0701(2)(a), Florida Statutes 

 

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS. 

 

Custodian of Records:   SANDRA NOVOA 

TOWN CLERK 

 

Mailing address:             9293 Harding Avenue  

Surfside, Florida 33154 

 

Telephone number:      (305) 861-4863 Ext. 226 

 

Email:      snovoa@townofsurfside.fl.gov 

 
9.  INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless, the Town, its 
officers, agents and employees from, and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, losses 
and expenses including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and costs, for personal, economic or 
bodily injury, wrongful death, loss of or damage to property, at law or in equity, which may arise 
or may be alleged to have risen from the negligent acts, errors, omissions or other wrongful 
conduct of the Contractor, agents or other personal entity acting under Contractor's control in 

Page 110

mailto:snovoa@townofsurfside.fl.gov


connection with the Contractor's performance of Services pursuant to this Agreement and to that 
extent the Contractor shall pay such claims and losses and shall pay all such costs and judgments 
which may issue from any lawsuit arising from such claims and losses including wrongful 
termination or allegations of discrimination or harassment, and shall pay all costs and attorneys' 
fees expended by the Town in defense of such claims and losses, including appeals. The parties 
agree that ten percent (10%) of the total compensation is a specific consideration from the Town 
to the Contractor for this indemnity. 
 
10. TERMINATION. 
 

A.  Termination of Cause.  If, through any cause within its reasonable control the 
Contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely manner or otherwise violate any of the covenants, 
agreements or stipulations material to this Agreement, the Town shall have the right to terminate 
the Services then remaining to be performed. Prior to the exercise of its option to terminate for 
cause, the Town shall notify the Contractor of its violation of the particular terms of the 
Agreement and grant Contractor thirty (30) days to cure such default. If the default remains 
uncured after thirty (30) days, the Town may terminate this Agreement. 
 

(i)  In the event of termination, all finished and unfinished documents, data and other 
work product prepared by Contractor (and sub-Contractor(s)) shall be delivered to the Town and 
the Town shall compensate the Contractor for all Services satisfactorily performed prior to the 
date of termination, as provided in Paragraph 5 herein. 
 

(ii)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to 
the Town for damages sustained by it by virtue of a breach of this Agreement by Contractor and 
the Town may reasonably withhold payments to Contractor for the purposes of set-off until such 
time as the exact amount of damages due the Town from the Contractor is determined. 
 

B.  Termination for Convenience of Town. The Town may, for its convenience and 
without cause terminate the Services then remaining to be performed at any time by giving 
written notice which shall become effective thirty (30) days following delivery of notice to  
Contractor.  The terms of Paragraphs A (i) and (ii) above shall be applicable hereunder. 
 

C.  Termination for Insolvency. The Town also reserves the right to terminate the 
remaining Services to be performed in the event the Contractor is placed either in voluntary or 
involuntary bankruptcy or makes any assignment for the benefit of creditors. 
 
11.  ASSIGNMENTS, TRANSFERS, SUBCONTRACTING. The Contractor shall not 
subcontract, assign or transfer any work or Services under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the Town. Should the Contractor subcontract any services under this 
Agreement, it shall be done with continued liability for the Contractor. The Contractor shall 
remain responsible for services, responsibilities and liabilities of any person or entity acting 
under Contractor.  
 

Page 111



12.  ATTORNEYS’ FEES; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.    In the event of any litigation 
arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its attorneys' fees 
and costs, including the fees and expenses of any paralegals, law clerks and legal assistants, and 
including fees and expenses charged for representation at both the trial and appellate levels.  IN 
THE EVENT OF ANY LITIGATION ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, EACH 
PARTY HEREBY KNOWINGLY, IRREVOCABLY, VOLUNTARILY AND 
INTENTIONALLY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY. 

13.  ARBITRATION.  Intentionally Deleted.   
 
14.  CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The Contractor shall not, either during the term of 
this Agreement or any time for a period of ten (10) years subsequent to that date upon which the 
Contractor shall stop providing services to the Town for any reason whatsoever, disclose to any 
person or entity, other than in the discharge of the duties of the Contractor under this Agreement, 
any information which the Town designates in writing as “confidential”. As a violation by the 
Contractor of the provisions of this section could cause irreparable injury to the Town and there 
is no adequate remedy at law for such violation, the Town shall have the right, in addition to any 
other remedies available to it at law or in equity, to enjoin the Contractor in a court of equity for 
violating such provisions. 
 
15.  NOTICES. All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given 
under this Agreement by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sent (except as 
otherwise provided herein) (i) by certified or registered mail, first class postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, (ii) by guaranteed overnight delivery by a nationally recognized courier 
service, or (iii) by facsimile with confirmation receipt (with a copy simultaneously sent by 
certified or registered mail, first class postage prepaid, return receipt requested or by overnight 
delivery by traditionally recognized courier service), addressed to such party as follows: 
 

If to the Town:  Town Manager 
   Town of Surfside  
   9293 Harding Avenue  
   Surfside, Florida 33154 
   Tel: (305) 792-1701 
 
With a copy to:  Town Attorney 

Town of Surfside  
9293 Harding Avenue  

   Surfside, Florida 33154 
 

If to the Contractor: Wayne O. Barclay, President 
Blue Digital Corp. 
7290 N.W. 7th Street, Suite 107 
Miami, FL 33126 
Tel: (305) 262-4920 

 

Page 112



16.  GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any litigation shall be in Miami-
Dade County, Florida.  
 
17.  AUDIT. The Contractor shall make available to the Town or its representative all 
required financial records associated with the Agreement for a period of THREE (3) years after 
completion of this Agreement.  
 
18.  NON-DISCRIMINATION. The Contractor agrees to comply with all local and state 
civil rights ordinances and with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1984 as amended, Title VIII 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended, Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Executive Order 
11063, and with Executive Order 11248 as amended by Executive Orders 11375 and 12086. The 
Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, creed, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, disability or other handicap, age, 
marital/familial status, or status with regard to public assistance. The Contractor will take 
affirmative action to insure that all employment practices are free from such discrimination. Such 
employment practices include but are not limited to the following: hiring, upgrading, demotion, 
transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff, termination, rates of payor other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post 
in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 
provided by the Town setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. The 
Contractor agrees to comply with any Federal regulations issued pursuant to compliance with 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 V.S.C. 708), which prohibits discrimination 
against the handicapped in any Federally assisted program. 
 
19.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST. The Contractor agrees to adhere to and be governed by 
the Miami-Dade County Conflict of Interest Ordinance Section 2-11.1, as amended; and by the 
Town of Surfside Code of Ordinances, which are incorporated by reference herein as if fully set 
forth herein, in connection with the Contractor’s performance of Services pursuant to this 
Agreement.  The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any 
interest, direct or indirectly which should conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of the Services. The Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no 
person having any such interest shall knowingly be employed by the Contractor. No member of, 
or delegate to the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to any share or part of this 
agreement or to any benefits arising therefrom. 
 
20.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with all terms, conditions and 
pricing contained in Miami-Dade County Bid No. 8254-1/22, and the City of Sunny Isles Beach 
Contract No.C1213-045, contain the entire agreement and understanding of the parties, and may 
be amended, waived, changed, modified, extended or rescinded only by a writing signed by the 
party against whom any such amendment, waiver, change, modification, extension and/or 
rescission is sought. 
 

Page 113



21.  CONFLICTING PROVISIONS.   In the vent of a conflict, the terms and conditions in 
this Agreement supersede any other conflicting provisions that are contained in any other 
document, including but not limited to the terms and conditions of Miami-Dade County Bid No. 
8254-1/22 and City of Sunny Isles Beach Contract No. C1213-045. 
 
22. SEVERABILITY.     If any term or provision of this Agreement shall to any extent be 
held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 
each remaining term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforceable to the 
fullest extent permitted by law. 

23.  WARRANTY; COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Contractor warrants that: (i) the 
Services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner; (ii) all work or Services 
under this Agreement shall be Contractor’s original work and will not infringe, misappropriate, 
or violate any intellectual property or other right of any person or entity; and (iii) Contractor has 
the full right to provide the Town with the assignments and rights provided for herein. Contractor 
shall exercise the same and good degree of care, skill and diligence in the performance of the 
Services as is ordinarily provided by a contractor under similar circumstances.  If at any time 
during the term of this Agreement, it is determined that the Contractor’s deliverables or Services 
are incorrect, not properly rendered, defective, or fail to conform to the Services as required by 
the Town and this Agreement, upon written notification from the Town Manager and/or his 
designee, the Contractor shall at Contractor’s sole expense, immediately correct its deliverables 
or Services. 

Contractor hereby warrants and represents that at all times during the term of this Agreement it 
shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of public 
authorities and shall maintain in good standing all required licenses, certifications and permits 
required under Federal, State and local laws applicable to and necessary to perform the Services for 
Town as an independent contractor of the Town. 

 
24. SURVIVAL OF PROVISIONS.   Any terms or conditions of this Agreement that 
require acts beyond the date of the term of the Agreement, shall survive termination of the 
Agreement, shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the terms or conditions are 
completed and shall be fully enforceable by either party. 

Page 114



25.  INSURANCE.    Contractor shall secure and maintain throughout the duration of this 
Agreement insurance of such types and in such amounts not less than those specified below as 
satisfactory to Town, naming the Town as an Additional Insured, underwritten by a firm rated A-
X or better by A.M. Best and qualified to do business in the State of Florida. The insurance 
coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the Town, its officials, employees, agents 
and volunteers naming the Town as additional insured. Any insurance maintained by the Town 
shall be in excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute to the Contractor’s 
insurance.  The insurance coverages shall include at a minimum the amounts set forth in this 
Section 9 and may be increased by the Town, as it deems necessary or prudent. 

25.1     Commercial General Liability coverage with limits of liability of not less than a 
$1,000,000 per Occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage. 
This Liability Insurance shall also include Completed Operations and Product Liability coverage 
and eliminate the exclusion with respect to property under the care, custody and control of 
Contractor.  The General Aggregate Liability limit and the Products/Completed Operations 
Liability Aggregate limit shall be in the amount of $2,000,000 each. 

25.2     Workers Compensation and Employers Liability insurance, to apply for all employees 
for statutory limits as required by applicable State and Federal laws. The policy(ies) must 
include Employer’s Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 each accident. No 
employee, subcontractor or agent of the Contractor shall be allowed to provide Services 
pursuant to this Agreement who is not covered by Worker’s Compensation insurance.   

25.3  Automobile Liability with minimum limits of $500,000.00 per Occurrence, combined 
single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage for Contractor officers and employees 
owning, or leasing motor vehicle.  Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive 
than the latest edition of the Automobile Liability policy, without restrictive endorsements, as 
filed by the Insurance Service Office, and must include Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned 
Vehicles. 

25.4   Professional Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence, single limit. 

25.5  Cyber Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than Two  Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) per occurrence, single limit. 

25.6  Certificate of Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance shall be provided to the Town, 
reflecting the Town as an Additional Insured (except with respect to Professional Liability 
Insurance), no later than ten (10) days after award of this Agreement and prior to the 
execution of this Agreement by Town and prior to commencing any Services.  Each 
certificate shall include no less than (30) thirty-day advance written notice to Town prior to 
cancellation, termination, or material alteration of said policies or insurance.  The Contractor 
shall be responsible for assuring that the insurance certificates required by this Section 

Page 115



remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement, including any extensions or 
renewals that may be granted by the Town. The Certificates of Insurance shall not only name 
the types of policy(ies) provided, but also shall refer specifically to this Agreement and shall 
state that such insurance is as required by this Agreement.  The Town reserves the right to 
inspect and return a certified copy of such policies, upon written request by the Town.  If a 
policy is due to expire prior to the completion of the Services, renewal Certificates of 
Insurance shall be furnished thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of their policy 
expiration.  Each policy certificate shall be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty 
(30) calendar days’ written notice shall be provided to the Town before any policy or 
coverage is cancelled or restricted.  Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval of 
the Town.  

25.7.    Additional Insured.  Except with respect to Professional Liability Insurance, the 
Town is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured for the liability of the Town 
resulting from Services performed by or on behalf of the Contractor in performance of this 
Agreement.  The Contractor’s insurance, including that applicable to the Town as an 
Additional Insured, shall apply on a primary basis and any other insurance maintained by the 
Town shall be in excess of and shall not contribute to the Contractor’s insurance.  The 
Contractor’s insurance shall contain a severability of interest provision providing that, except 
with respect to the total limits of liability, the insurance shall apply to each Insured or 
Additional Insured (for applicable policies) in the same manner as if separate policies had 
been issued to each. 

25.8    Deductibles.   All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be 
reasonably approved by the Town. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of 
any deductible or self-insured retentions in the event of any claim. 

25.9    The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;  

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]  

  

Page 116



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in 
counterpart on the day and year first written above. 
 
WITNESSES 
 
 
      
Print Name: 
 
      
Print Name: 

BLUE DIGITAL CORP., a Florida 
corporation authorized to do business in the 
State of Florida 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:       
 
Date Executed: _________________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 117



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in 
counterpart on the day and year first written above. 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, a 
Florida municipal corporation 

By:   
Name: Guillermo Olmedillo 
Title:   Town Manager  

Date Executed: 

Attest: 

Town Clerk 

Approved as to Legal Form and 
Leal Sufficiency: 

Town Attorney 

Page 118



Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 
Date: March 13, 2018  
From: Commissioner Tina Paul 
Subject: Urging Resolution to retain NOAA fisheries headquarters on Virginia Key. 

Objective – To support the Village of Key Biscayne in urging concerted local actions to take 
steps necessary to retain NOAA fisheries headquarters on Virginia Key. 

Consideration – In October 2017, I participated with Miami Waterkeepers, Day on The Bay 
educational boat tour of Biscayne Bay with several Miami elected officials at Crandon Park 
Marina. While we did not tour the NOAA facilities, it was noted as the location for providing 
the latest scientific developments for ecological issues that face Biscayne Bay. 

Because the NOAA facilities on Virginia Key are in need of capital improvements, there is 
consideration for relocating NOAA facilities to St Petersburg. Relocation of these facilities 
would be detrimental for the entire East Coast because of the loss of environmentally specific 
research to an area with a vastly different shoreline and marine ecology and because of the loss 
of a significant number of high level jobs and quality residents . Current studies involving 
hurricane intensity, weather research, fish population sustainability and coral reef health are 
critical to marine environment and ecology in the greater Miami area. 

It is in the best interests of our communities to retain the NOAA scientific operation facilities 
nearby. 

Recommendation – To approve and transmit the attached Resolution. 

3G

Page 119



RESOLUTION  NO. 2018-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, URGING 
CONCERTED LOCAL ACTIONS TO TAKE STEPS 
NECESSARY TO RETAIN THE NOAA FISHERIES 
HEADQUARTERS ON VIRGINIA KEY; PROVIDING 
FOR TRANSMITTAL; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration ("NOAA") 

conducts atmospheric, marine and fisheries-related scientific operations at two NOAA 

facilities headquartered in Virginia  Key; and 

WHEREAS, one  of  NOAA's Virginia  Key  facilities,  the Southeast Fisheries 

Science Center ("SEFSC"), is responsible for scientific research on  living  marine  resources 

that occupy marine and estuarine habits of the continental southeastern United States, as well 

as Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands; and 

WHEREAS, SEFSC is one of the six national marine fishery science centers 

responsible for federal marine fishery research programs and is the primary provider 

of research on fisheries and habitats for Biscayne National Park and Florida Keys 

Marine Sanctuary; and 

WHEREAS, the annual total budget for SEFSC Miami lab ranges between 

$15,000,000 to $17,000,000, the bulk of which supports salaries for about 170 masters and 

Ph.D. level scientists; and 

WHEREAS, the coral reefs in south Florida that SEFSC Miami lab works to 

Page 120



2 

protect have an estimated asset value of over $4.4 billion and are directly associated with 

over 70,000 part-time and full-time jobs in the area; and 

WHEREAS, NOAA operations at Virginia Key are performed in concert with research 

and teaching functions at the University of Miami's Rosenstiel School of Marine and 

Atmospheric Science ("RSMAS"), which is located directly adjacent to the NOAA 

campuses; and 

WHEREAS, NOAA's Cooperative Institute for Marine and Atmospheric Studies 

(CIMAS) funds and coordinates scientific partnerships with RSMAS, Florida 

International University (FIU) and other university programs in South Florida to 

educate the next generation of scientific leaders and collaboratively work on pragmatic 

problems of societal importance; and 

WHEREAS, leveraging their shared mission and physical proximity, for decades 

scientists and staff personnel involved in NOAA's operations at Virginia Key have served 

as adjunct faculty, research assistants and other venture partners with RSMAS faculty and 

students, supporting and expanding on RSMAS's educational mission and engendering 

extensive working collaborations between NOAA and RSMAS thus catalyzing significant 

research and knowledge-advancement opportunities that relate directly to our sub-tropical 

marine environment; and 

WHEREAS, local news reports and reports provided by the University of Miami 

indicate that NOAA's Fisheries facility on Virginia Key may be outdated and in need of 

capital improvements, and that NOAA may be incentivized to close its fisheries facility on 

Page 121



3 

Virginia Key and relocate that operation to St. Petersberg; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (the "Town"), the Village of Key Biscayne, 

the City of Miami and South Florida generally benefit from the proximity of NOAA 

and RSMAS, and from CIMAS-sponsored scientific collaborations which, among 

other things, contribute materially to the positive reputation of greater Miami; and 

WHEREAS, the Town considers it a materially adverse development for 

NOAA to relocate its fisheries headquarters, which would set back pending research 

dealing with critical local issues such as hurricane intensity, weather research, fish 

population sustainability and coral reef health, engendering a " brain-drain", diminishing 

Miami's standing for future investments such as that contemplated by Amazon, and 

compromising the reliability and effectiveness of future collaborations between NOAA and 

RSMAS, all to the detriment of the Town and the greater Miami area; and 

WHEREAS, as thoughtful environmental stewards, Town residents regularly seek 

ways to improve, enhance, beautify and care for the marine environment, and draw important 

guidance and purpose from NOAA and RSMAS in such connection. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION 

OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing Whereas clauses are hereby ratified and 

incorporated as the legislative intent of this Resolution. 

Section 2.  Encourage Effective Intervention. 

(a) The Town Commission urges Miami-Dade County, the City of Miami, RMAS

Page 122



4 

and the University of Miami, FIU, South Florida federal and state legislators, and others 

interested in the future of greater Miami as home to an educated citizenry and excellent 

institutions, to advocate for and take other affirmative steps promptly to address NOAA 

facilities needs and encourage and enable NOAA and CIMAS to maintain their full presence 

and mission on Virginia Key. 

(b) The Town Commission draws favorable attention to the numerous

significant and positive collaborations between NOAA and other local institutions that 

are facilitated by NOAA's location on Virginia Key. 

(c) The Town Commission also draws favorable attention to the

reputational enhancements and positive prospects for future growth for greater Miami 

deriving from NOAA's and CIMAS's presence on Virginia Key. 

Section 3. Transmittal. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to transmit this 

Resolution to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, the Southeast 

Fisheries Science Center, Biscayne National Park, Florida Keys Marine Sanctuary  local 

governments, University of Miami's Rosenstiel School of Marine and Atmospheric Science, 

NOAA's Cooperative Institute for Marine and Atmospheric Studies, Florida 

International University, local governments surrounding Virginia Key including the 

Village of Key Biscayne and the City of Miami, and legislators representing the Town 

and South Florida, and to other recipients as may be identified by the Town 

Commission. 

Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately from and 

Page 123



5 

after adoption hereof. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Motion by ______________________________________, 

Second by ______________________________________. 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchninsky ____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin ____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul ____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen ____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch ____ 

______________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE ONLY: 

______________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman P.L. 
Town Attorney 

Page 124



4A1

Page 125



Page 126



1Additions to the text are shown in underline.  Deletions are shown in strikethrough. Additions 
between first and second reading are shown in double underline. 

Page 1 of 8 
 

               ORDINANCE NO. 18 - ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING THE TOWN 
OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING 
ARTICLE III, PROPERTY MAINTENANCE STANDARDS, 
OF CHAPTER 14, BUILDINGS AND BUILDING 
REGULATIONS, AND CHAPTER 90, ZONING, TO 
PROHIBIT USE OF MULCH IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AND ADDRESS PROPERTY OWNER MAINTENANCE 
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ADJACENT TO PRIVATE PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, Article VIII, Section 2 of the Florida Constitution, and Chapter 166, Florida 1 

Statutes, provide municipalities the authority to exercise any power for municipal purposes, 2 

except where prohibited by law, and to adopt ordinances in furtherance of such authority; and  3 

WHEREAS, the Town Code of Ordinances (the “Town Code”) requires property owners to 4 

maintain the right-of-way. including sod, landscaping and trees, adjacent to their property; and 5 

WHEREAS, many property owners fail to maintain said right-of-ways, and particularly the 6 

trees in such right-of-ways, in a manner which does not interfere with above- and below-ground 7 

utilities and particularly power lines; and  8 

WHEREAS, untrimmed trees cause particular risk and damage during storm events and in 9 

Hurricane Irma, created a number of power issues; and 10 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to more stringently enforce the existing maintenance 11 

requirements of the Town Code in order to preserve and protect the public welfare, especially in 12 

light of forecast increases in storm activity during upcoming hurricane seasons; and 13 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to clarify the requirements for property owner maintenance of 14 

trees and landscaping on both private property and the adjacent right-of-way in order to maintain 15 

FPL lines free and clear and eliminate interference and potential damage to above- and below-16 

ground utilities; and  17 

Page 127



 
Page 2 of 8 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Code provides that failure to maintain property, including adjacent 18 

right-of-way, may result in the Town performing or arranging for such maintenance and that the 19 

cost of such maintenance may be imposed upon the property owner and liened against the 20 

property; and  21 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, as the local planning agency for the Town, 22 

held its hearing on the proposed amendment on February 22, 2018 with due public notice and 23 

input; and 24 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission held its first public hearing on February 13, 2018 of the 25 

proposed amendments to the Code of Ordinances having complied with the notice requirements 26 

by the Florida Statutes; and 27 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has conducted a second duly noticed public hearing on 28 

these regulations on March 13, 2018 as required by law on and further finds the proposed change 29 

is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and in the best interest of the community. 30 

 31 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 32 

THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA1: 33 
 34 

    Section 1. Recitals. The above Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 35 
this reference: 36 

 37 
Section 2. Town Code Amended.  Chapter 14, Buildings and Building Regulations, 38 

Article III, Property Maintenance Standards, of the Town of Surfside Code of Ordinances is here 39 
by amended to read as follows1:  40 

CHAPTER 14 – BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 41 

* * * 42 

ARTICLE III. - PROPERTY MAINTENANCE STANDARDS 43 

Sec. 14-51. - Established. 44 

(a) The owner of every single-family or multiple-family dwelling or commercial property, or 45 
his appointed agent, shall be responsible for maintaining the exterior in a clean, sanitary and 46 
safe condition. All structures and all parts thereof shall be maintained in good repair and 47 

                                                 
1 Additions to the text are shown in underline.  Deletions to the text are shown in strikethrough.  Additions between 
first and second reading are shown in double underline.  Deletions between first and second reading are shown in 
double strikethrough. 

Page 128



 
Page 3 of 8 

 

shall be capable of performing the function for which such structure or part or any feature 48 
thereof was designed or intended to be used. 49 

(b) All exterior walls of every structure shall be maintained weathertight and otherwise 50 
maintained so as to resist decay or deterioration from any cause. All exterior surfaces 51 
subject to deterioration shall be properly maintained and protected from the elements by 52 
paint or other approved coating, applied in a workmanlike fashion. All exterior surfaces 53 
including walls, trim, doors and signs shall be properly maintained in a clean and sanitary 54 
condition, free of dirt, mold, mildew and faded or chipped paint, and must be repainted, 55 
recovered or cleaned when 25% or more of any exposed surface becomes discolored or is 56 
peeling in the approved color. 57 

(c) Exterior property areas of all premises shall be kept free of any debris, object, material or 58 
condition which may create a health, accident or fire hazard, or which constitutes a blighting 59 
or deteriorating influence on the neighborhood. Lawns, landscaping and driveways shall 60 
also be maintained so as not to constitute a blighting or deteriorating effect in the 61 
neighborhood. 62 

(d) Whenever there is an unpaved area between the sidewalk and the curb, or between the 63 
sidewalk and the property line, or between the paved roadway and the property line, it shall 64 
be the responsibility of the owner and/or occupant of the property to make sure that there are 65 
no holes or hidden dangers in the unpaved areas, and to maintain any plants, including trees 66 
and sod, and irrigation located in said area.  Such areas shall be maintained free of mulch. 67 

(e) Each property owner is responsible for hiring a qualified, licensed and insured contractor as 68 
necessary to maintain all trees on their property or within the right-of-way adjacent to their 69 
property, free and clear of power lines and in a manner which does not interfere with or 70 
cause damage to above- or below-ground utilities.    71 

(f) The town manager is hereby authorized and directed to employ necessary personnel and 72 
equipment to enter upon any property whose owner or occupant fails to maintain lawns, 73 
landscaping, and driveways, and adjacent right-of-ways  in accordance with this article and 74 
to maintain same. 75 

(gf) In order to defray the cost to the town of maintaining such property there is hereby levied 76 
and assessed against each owner or occupant who fails to maintain such lawns, landscaping 77 
and driveways in accordance with this article, an administrative fee as set forth in the 78 
schedule of fines adopted by resolution per time the town provides such maintenance, in 79 
addition to the actual costs incurred for said maintenance. All charges becoming due and 80 
payable under this subsection constitute, and are hereby imposed as liens against the real 81 
property, and, upon becoming delinquent April 1 of the following year, until fully paid and 82 
discharged, shall remain liens, equal in rank and dignity with the ad valorem taxes of the 83 

Page 129



 
Page 4 of 8 

 

town, and may be satisfied by the sale of certificates in the same manner as is provided for 84 
the sale of certificates on delinquent ad valorem taxes. Such lien shall be superior in rank 85 
and dignity to other liens, encumbrances, titles and claims in, to or against the real property 86 
involved. 87 

* * * 88 

Section 3. Town Code Amended.  Chapter 90, Zoning of the Town of Surfside Code of 89 
Ordinances is here by amended to read as follows:  90 

Chapter 90 - ZONING 91 

* * * 92 

ARTICLE V. – Design Standards 93 

* * * 94 

Sec. 90-52. - Required clearances. 95 

As an aid to free and safe movement of vehicles at and near street intersections and in order to 96 
promote more adequate protection for the safety of children, pedestrians, operators of vehicles 97 
and for property, there shall be limitations on the height of fences, walls, gateways, ornamental 98 
structures, signs, hedges, shrubbery, and other fixtures, construction, and planting on corner 99 
lots in all districts where front yards are required as follows: 100 

(a) All corner properties shall provide and maintain unobstructed corner clearance areas along 101 
both the front and side lot lines; and 102 

(b) All objects, fences, walls, gateways, ornamental structures, signs, hedges, shrubbery, and 103 
other fixtures, construction, and planting within any corner clearance areas shall provide 104 
unobstructed cross-visibility at a level between 30 inches and eight feet, with the exception 105 
of tree trunks that do not create a traffic hazard; and 106 

(c) The property owner shall be responsible for maintaining all landscaping within the corner 107 
clearance areas; and 108 

(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to plant or cause to be planted any tree or shrubs or to 109 
place any structure in the public right-of-way without a permit from the town manager or 110 
designee. The elevation grades of the public right-of-way adjacent to private property shall 111 
not be altered; and 112 

(e) Only turf as defined in section 90-85.2of the Code shall be located within the public-right-113 
of-way between the edge of any roadway or curb and the private property line; and 114 

(f) The placement of mulch within the public right-of-way is prohibited; and 115 

Page 130



 
Page 5 of 8 

 

(g) The town manager or designee shall make the final determination regarding unobstructed 116 
corner clearance areas. 117 

(i) If any property owner fails to maintain clearances and conditions required by this section, 118 
the Town shall take action pursuant to Chapter 15, Article I, Code Enforcement provided 119 
that should a property fail to remedy the violation within the timeframe provided by the 120 
special magistrate or should the violation create a hazardous condition for any utilities or 121 
endanger the life safety and welfare, the Town may take action and assess costs pursuant 122 
to Article III, Property Maintenance Standards of Chapter 14.  123 

* * * 124 
 125 
ARTICLE VIII. – Landscape Requirements 126 

* * * 127 

Sec. 90-87. - Installation of landscaping and irrigation. 128 

All landscaping and irrigation shall be installed according to accepted horticultural planting 129 
procedures with the quality of plant materials as hereinafter described, including: 130 

(1) Planting soil/topsoil shall be of the minimum quality as specified in the plant materials 131 
section of this Code. All trees, palms, shrubs, and ground covers shall be planted with a 132 
minimum of 12 inches or two times the root ball of planting soil around root ball. A 133 
minimum of three inches of shredded, approved arsenic free, organic mulch or groundcover 134 
shall be installed around each tree planting for a minimum of 18 inches beyond its trunk in 135 
all directions, including palms, and throughout all hedge, shrub, and groundcover planting. 136 
The use of mulch obtained from Melaleuca, Eucalyptus, or other invasive plant species is 137 
encouraged in order to reduce their impact on the environment and to preserve the remaining 138 
native plant communities. 139 

(2) All trees/palms shall be properly guyed and staked at the time of planting until one year from 140 
landscape final or establishment. The use of nails, wire or rope, or any other method which 141 
damages the trees or palm, is prohibited. All plants shall be installed so that the top of the 142 
root ball remains even with the soil grade or ten percent or the root flare is visible above the 143 
surrounding grade. All synthetic string, synthetic burlap, cords, or wire baskets shall be 144 
removed before planting. 145 

(3) All parking islands, medians, and other landscape areas shall be installed with continuous 146 
Type "D" curbing to prevent damage to the plant material and the displacement of topsoil 147 
and mulch. Also, all landscape islands, divider medians, and planters shall be excavated of 148 
limerock and/or compacted soil to a depth of 30 inches and backfilled with specified planting 149 
mix to the top of curb. Additionally, all areas along buildings shall be excavated to a depth of 150 

Page 131



 
Page 6 of 8 

 

12 inches and backfilled with specified planting mix.  No mulch shall be permitted in 151 
adjacent swales or right-of-way. 152 

* * * 153 

Sec. 90-88. - Maintenance of landscaped areas. 154 

(1) An owner of land subject to this Code shall be responsible for the maintenance of said land 155 
and landscaping so as to present a healthy, vigorous and neat appearance free from refuse and 156 
debris. All landscaped areas shall be sufficiently fertilized and irrigated to maintain the plant 157 
material in a healthy and viable condition. 158 

NOTE: All fertilizer shall be safe and environmentally friendly. Also, the applications shall 159 
conform to the manufacturer's specifications. 160 

(2) Three inches of clean, weed-free, arsenic free, organic mulch shall be maintained over all 161 
areas originally mulched at all times. Turfgrass shall be kept trimmed and/or mowed 162 
regularly to a height not exceeding eight inches above the ground.  The use of mulch in 163 
swales or right-of-way is prohibited. 164 

* * * 165 

Sec. 90-89. - Plant material  166 

* * * 167 

90-89.4 Trees:  168 

* * * 169 
(6) Street tree requirements:  170 

a. Street trees shall be required at one shade tree/palm tree per 20 linear feet of street 171 
frontage thereof along all public or private street right-of-ways in all zoning 172 
districts.  173 

b. Street trees shall be of a species typically grown in South Florida that normally 174 
matures to a height of at least 20 feet. Street trees shall have a clear trunk of over 175 
seven feet, an overall height of fourteen (14—16) feet and a minimum of 2½ inches 176 
DBH at time of planting. Palm trees utilized as street trees shall have eight foot clear 177 
wood.  178 

c. The average spacing requirement for H40 districts shall be based on the total lineal 179 
footage of roadway for the entire project and not based on individual lot widths.  180 

d. Street tree species shall be approved by the town during plan review. Street trees 181 
shall visually define the hierarchy of roadways, provide shade along roadways, and 182 
provide a visual edge along roadways. Consideration shall be given to the selection 183 

Page 132



 
Page 7 of 8 

 

of trees, plants and planting site to avoid serious problems such as clogged sewers, 184 
cracked sidewalks, and power service interruptions.  185 

e. Street trees shall be placed within the swale area or shall be placed on private 186 
property where demonstrated to be necessary due to right-of-way obstructions as 187 
determined by the town. A Public Works permit shall be obtained prior to planting 188 
any tree in the right-of-way.   189 

f. Street trees planted along roadways and/or sidewalks shall be placed a minimum of 190 
four feet off the interior pavement edge.  191 

g. Street trees planted within sidewalk or curbed planting area along parallel parking 192 
shall have a minimum planting area of six feet by six feet. If the street tree is planted 193 
within the sidewalk, root barrier(s) of minimum depth of 12 inches shall be installed 194 
per manufacturer's recommendations. These trees shall require adjustable tree grates 195 
or groundcover to full coverage inside planting area.  196 

h. When trees are planted within the right-of-way, the owners of land adjacent to the 197 
areas where street trees are planted must maintain those areas including the trees, 198 
plants, irrigation and sod. Trees must be maintained free and clear of powerlines and 199 
all trees and plantings shall be maintained in a manner to which prevents 200 
interference with above- or below-ground utilities.  Where the state, county or town 201 
determines that the planting of trees and other landscape material is not appropriate 202 
in the public right-of-way, they may require that said trees and landscape material be 203 
placed on private property. 204 

i. If any property owner fails to maintain trees and other landscaping in right-of-way 205 
or on private property, free and clear of power lines and in a manner which does not 206 
interfere with or cause damage to above- or below-ground utilities, the Town shall 207 
provide a written warning with 30 days to remedy, after which, the Town may take 208 
action and assess costs pursuant to Article III, Property Maintenance Standards of 209 
Chapter 14.   210 

j. Where the Town determines a tree or landscaping in the right-of-way is detrimental 211 
to the health, safety and welfare of residents or has a significant likelihood of 212 
causing damage to utilities or powerlines, said tree or landscaping may be removed 213 
by the Town, at the owner’s expense.  Such costs shall be assessed against a property 214 
owner and property pursuant to Article III, Property Maintenance Standards of 215 
Chapter 14. 216 

* * * 217 

Section 4. Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is 218 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding 219 
shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 220 

Section 5. Inclusion in the Code.  It is the intention of the Town Commission, and it is 221 
hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made a part of the Town of 222 

Page 133



Page 8 of 8 

Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to 223 
accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed to “Section” or other 224 
appropriate word. 225 

226 
Section 6. Conflicts.  Any and all Ordinances and Resolutions or parts of Ordinances or 227 

Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 228 
229 

Section 7.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 230 

231 
PASSED and ADOPTED on first reading this 13th day of February, 2018. 232 

233 
PASSED and ADOPTED on second reading this 13th day of March, 2018. 234 

235 
236 

On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________ 237 
238 

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________ 239 
240 
241 

  FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION: 242 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky _____ 243 
Commissioner Michael Karukin _____ 244 
Commissioner Tina Paul  _____ 245 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen  _____ 246 
Mayor Daniel Dietch _____ 247 

248 
249 

______________________________ 250 
    Daniel Dietch, Mayor 251 

252 
ATTEST: 253 

254 
________________________________ 255 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 256 

257 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 258 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 259 

260 
__________________________________ 261 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole and Bierman, P.L. 262 
Town Attorney 263 

Page 134



4A2

Page 135



Page 136



ORDINANCE NO. 18 - ________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 2-
235 – “LOBBYING” REGARDING LOBBYISTS’ APPEAL 
OF FINES FOR EXPENDITURE REPORTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) Commission adopted a Code of Ethics on 1 

April 10, 2007 establishing standards of conduct for current and former town officials, employees 2 

and persons doing business with the Town; and 3 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission subsequently amended the Code of Ethics on January 4 

15, 2013, December 9, 2014, February 16, 2017 and December 13, 2017 to impose additional 5 

regulations on lobbyists and include an honor code for elected and appointed Town officials and 6 

employees; and 7 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to further amend the Code of Ethics in Article 8 

VII of the Town Code for consistency and to address lobbyists’ appeals of fines for failure to file 9 

required expenditure reports.  10 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 11 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA:1 12 

 13 
    Section 1. Recitals. The above Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 14 

this reference.  15 

Section 2. Town Code Amended.  Section 2-235 – “Lobbying” of the Surfside Town 16 
Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and shall read as follows: 17 

 18 

 19 

                                                 
1Additions to the text are shown in underline.  Deletions are shown in strikethrough.  Additions 
made after first reading are shown in double underline.  Deletions made after first reading are 
shown in double strikethrough. 
 

Page 137



Sec. 2-235. - Lobbying.  20 

* * * 21 

(2) Lobbyist registration, fees, renewal and withdrawal.  22 
a. All lobbyists shall register with the town clerk before engaging in any lobbying 23 

activities in the town. Every person required to register as a lobbyist shall:  24 
* * * 25 

iv File a lobbyist expenditure report.  26 
1. By January 15 of each year, all lobbyists shall submit to the town clerk a 27 

signed statement under oath listing all lobbying expenditures for the 28 
preceding calendar year. The statement shall list in detail each expenditure 29 
by category, including food and beverage, entertainment, research, 30 
communication, media advertising, publications, travel, lodging and special 31 
events, and town personnel on whose behalf or benefit the expenditure was 32 
made. A statement shall be filed even if there have been no expenditures 33 
during the reporting period. Annual statements shall be required until such 34 
time as the lobbyist files a notice of withdrawal of lobbying activities with 35 
the town clerk.  36 

2. The town clerk shall notify any lobbyist who fails to timely file an 37 
expenditure report. In addition to any other penalties which may be 38 
imposed, a fine of $50.00 per day shall be assessed for reports filed after the 39 
due date. Any lobbyist who fails to file the required expenditure report by 40 
January February 15 shall be automatically suspended from lobbying until 41 
all fines are paid, unless the fine has been appealed to the special master of 42 
the Town of Surfside Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust.  43 

3. A lobbyist or principal may appeal a fine and may request a hearing before 44 
the special master for the Town of Surfside Miami-Dade Commission on 45 
Ethics and Public Trust.  A request for hearing on the fine must be filed with 46 
the special master Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust, 47 
with a copy to the Town Clerk, within 15 calendar days of receipt of the 48 
notification of the failure to file the required disclosure form.  49 

* * *  50 

Section 3.  Severability.   If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is 51 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding 52 
shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 53 

Section 4.  Inclusion in the Code.   It is the intention of the Town Commission, and it is 54 
hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made a part of the Town of 55 
Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to 56 
accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed to “Section” or other 57 
appropriate word. 58 

Page 138



Section 5. Conflicts.   Any and all Ordinances and Resolutions or parts of Ordinances or 59 
Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 60 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective on second reading 61 
upon adoption. 62 

63 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on first reading this 13th day of February, 2018. 64 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this __ day of ____________, 2018. 65 

On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________ 66 
67 

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________ 68 
69 

 FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION: 70 
71 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky _____ 72 
Commissioner Michael Karukin _____ 73 
Commissioner Tina Paul  _____ 74 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen  _____ 75 
Mayor Daniel Dietch _____ 76 

77 
78 

______________________________ 79 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 80 

81 
ATTEST: 82 

83 
________________________________ 84 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 85 

86 
87 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 88 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 89 

90 
__________________________________ 91 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L., 92 
Town Attorney 93 

Page 139



4A3

Page 140



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING 
CHAPTER 90 “ZONING,” SECTION 90-61 “PAVING IN 
FRONT AND REAR YARDS IN H30 AND H40 
DISTRICTS,” TO ADDRESS DRIVEWAYS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside ("Town") recognizes that changes to the adopted 
Code of Ordinances are periodically necessary in order to ensure that the Town’s regulations are 
current and consistent with the Town’s planning and regulatory needs; and 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to amend the code to prohibit a front driveway from 
extending beyond the front a house unless approved by the Design Review Board; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission held its first public hearing on February 13, 2018  
having complied with the notice requirements required by Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, as the local planning agency for the 
Town, held its hearing on the proposed amendment on February 22, 2018 with due public notice 
and input; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission conducted a second duly noticed public hearing on 
these regulations as required by law on _____________, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission hereby finds and declares that adoption of this 
Ordinance is in the best interest of the Town. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are ratified and confirmed as 
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Ordinance. 

Section 2. Code Amendment. Section 90-61 “Paving in Front and Rear Yards in H30 
and H40 Districts,” of Chapter 90, “Zoning” of the code of the Town of Surfside, Florida is 
hereby amended as follows1: 

                                                      
1 Additions to text are shown in underline.  Deletions to text are shown in strikethrough.  Additions between first 
and second reading are shown in double underline.  Deletions between first and second reading are shown in double 
strikethrough. 

Page 141



 2 

Chapter 90 – ZONING 

 
* *  * 

 

Sec. 90-61. - Paving in front and rear yards in H30 and H40 districts.. 
 

* *  * 

(8)  A driveway shall not extend beyond the front plane of the home unless: 

a) providing direct access to a vehicular garage; or 

b) presented to and approved by the Design Review Board which shall consider 

whether the extension is necessary to serve the property and will be compatible with 

the neighborhood.    

Driveways existing prior to ________, 2018 [effective date of this ordinance] shall be deemed 

legally non-conforming grandfathered and may be repaired or rebuilt, but not expanded. 
* *  * 

Section 3.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

Section 4.  Inclusion in the Code.  It is the intention of the Town Commission, and it is 
hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made a part of the Town of 
Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
to accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed to “Section” or other 
appropriate word. 

 
Section 5. Conflicts. Any and all Ordinances and Resolutions or parts of Ordinances or 

Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED on first reading this 13th day of February, 2018. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this __ day of ____________, 2018. 

        
 

On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________ 

Page 142



 3 

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________ 

 FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION: 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky _____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin _____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul  _____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen  _____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch _____ 

______________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

__________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L., 
Town Attorney 

Page 143



4A4

Page 144



ORDINANCE NO. 18 - _________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 
14-29. – “PERMIT FEES” – TO PROVIDE FOR WAIVER OF 
PERMIT FEES AND EXPEDITED PERMIT AND 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TO BE ADOPTED BY 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 14-29, Permit Fees, of the Town of Surfside (“Town”) Code, 

provides for permit fees for all buildings, structures, additions and alterations requiring a building 

permit as required by the Florida Building Code; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission may wish to incentive certain development programs 

in the Town, including sustainable building programs, by waiving building permit fees and 

expediting permitting and development review by resolution to be adopted by the Town 

Commission; and   

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to amend Section 14-29, Permit Fees, of the 

Town Code, to allow for waiver of building permit and other fees and expedited permitting and 

development review by resolution of the Town Commission, and finds that such would incentivize 

certain projects and serve the best interests of the Town.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA:1 

 
    Section 1. Recitals. The above Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 

this reference.  

Section 2. Town Code Amended.  Section 14-29 – “Permit Fees” - of the Town of Surfside  
Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and shall read as follows: 

*** 

                                                 
1 to the text are shown in underline.  Deletions are shown in strikethrough.  Additions made Additions after first 
reading are shown in double underline.  Deletions made after first reading are shown in double strikethrough. 
 

Page 145



Sec. 14-29. - Permit fees. 

(a) For all buildings, structures, additions and alterations requiring a building permit as called for 
in Section 105 of the Florida Building Code, a fee for each building permit shall be paid as 
required, in accordance with the following fee schedule:  

(1) The minimum fee for any one permit shall be $80.00.   

 (2) For all construction activity where the construction costs are greater than $1,000.00 
but less than $1,250,000.00, the fee shall be $80.00 plus 2.3 percent of the cost of 
construction.  

(3) For all construction activity where the construction costs are $1,250,000.00 or more, 
but less than $3,000,000, the fee shall be calculated as in (1) + (2) plus 1.6 percent of 
the cost of construction from $1,250,000.00 up to $3,000,000.00.  

(4)  For all construction activity where the construction costs are $3,000,000.00 or 
greater, the fee shall be calculated as in (1) + (2) + (3) plus 1.3 percent of the cost of 
construction greater than $3,000,000.00.  

 
(5) Electrical, mechanical and plumbing permit fees shall be calculated in accordance 
with (1) through (4) above, except that when such electrical, mechanical or plumbing 
permit is a sub-permit to a master permit, the fee for the sub-permit shall be $80.00 
provided the cost of the electrical, mechanical or plumbing work is included in the 
overall cost of construction included in the master permit.  

 
(6) For purposes of this section, the cost of construction is calculated as no less than 
$250.00 per gross square foot for multi-family and commercial developments and no 
less than $150.00 per gross square foot for single family homes for new construction 
or substantial improvements as defined in the Florida Building Code.  
 
(7)  The town reserves the right to conduct an audit of the construction costs for new 
construction or substantial improvements as defined in the Florida Building Code at the 
conclusion of the construction, based on a determination by the building official that the 
valuation is underestimated on the application. If a discrepancy is found, the applicant 
shall pay the difference in the building permit fee, if any, prior to issuance of the 
temporary certificate of occupancy. Applicant may provide evidence of final cost of 
construction and the Town will adjust the fee accordingly.  

  
(b) (a) Other specialized operations. For other specialized operations for which permits are 

required, and the specialized operations are not specifically noted in this fee schedule, including 
but not limited to the moving of buildings or structures, the demolition of buildings or structures, 
the installation of driveways or sidewalks, the installation of underground fuel tanks, the 
installation of drainage facilities, the construction of roadways and site improvements, and the 
issuance of temporary structure or special event permits, the fee schedule listed above shall be 
applicable.  

Page 146



(c) (b) Failure to obtain permit. When work for which a permit is required is started prior to 
the obtaining of the permit, the applicant for a permit shall be required to pay $100.00 plus 
double the regular permit fee, as the cost of the permit. The payment of such double fee plus 
$100.00 shall not relieve any person from fully complying with all the requirements of all 
applicable regulations and codes; nor shall it relieve them from being subject to any of the 
penalties therein. The double fee requirement shall be applicable to sub-permits and to all 
divisions of the building department.  

 
(d) (c) Reinspection fee. A re-inspection fee shall be charged when extra inspection trips are 
necessary due to:  

(1) Wrong address being given on request for inspection;  
 
(2) Prior rejection of work due to faulty construction;  
 
(3) Work not being ready for inspection at time specified;  
 
(4) Failure to call for final or other inspections;  
 
(5) Required corrections not being made or completed at time specified.  

 

A fee of $80.00 shall be charged for the first re-inspection. The Building Official may apply 
Florida Statutes Section 553.80(2)(c) for each subsequent re-inspection. The payment of re-
inspection fees may be required before any further permits will be issued to the person owing 
same, and further inspections may be refused until payment of re-inspections fees has been made. 
The re-inspection fee requirement shall be applicable to all divisions of the building department.  

(e) (d)  Application processing fee.  
(1) A non-refundable fee may be charged at the time of submitting a permit application. 
The fee shall be $80.00 or 25 percent of the building permit fee, whichever is greater. 
The fee paid will be deducted from the total permit fee at time of issuance of the permit.  

 
(2) A non-refundable fee shall be charged for reviewing plans on all new construction 
(or major remodeling) of multi-family residential structures and/or commercial 
structures. The fee shall be 25 percent of the estimated building permit fee. The fee will 
be deducted from the total permit fee at time of issuance of the permit.  

 
(3) A non-refundable zoning plan review fee of $200.00 shall be charged at the time of 
application, for those projects requiring zoning review. This fee is in addition to the 
building permit fee and is not deductible from the building permit fee.  

 
(4) A non-refundable fee shall be charged for a preliminary review of plans and documentation 
prior to the submitting for a permit. The fee shall be calculated per subsection 14-29(g)(6) and 
(7). 
 

Page 147

https://library.municode.com/fl/surfside/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICO_CH14BUBURE_ARTIIBUCO_S14-29PEFE


(f) (e) Fee for changes after permit has been issued.  
 

(1) When changes in the plans and/or specifications are requested after the permit has been 
issued, and the changes do not result in an increase in the scope of the original project, the fee 
for review of said changes shall be based upon review time, hourly per trade, in accordance 
with subsection 14-29(g)(6) and (7).  
 
(2) When changes or revisions are requested after the permit has been issued, which result in 
an increase of square footage and/or the cost of construction, the fee for the additional work 
shall be calculated in accordance with the fee schedule for a new permit, in accordance with 
this section.  
 

(g) (f) Refunds, time limitation. The fees charged pursuant to this section may be refunded by the 
town manager subject to the following:  

 
(1) No refund shall be made where any work has commenced, except where duplicate permits 
have been issued for the same work, in which case a refund may be granted to the initial permit 
holder provided the duplicate permits were issued within 90 days of each other.  
 
(2) No refunds shall be made where permit has become void as provided by section 105.4 of 
the Florida Building Code.  
 
(3) No refunds shall be made on permit fees of $80.00 or less.  
 
(4) Fifty percent refunds may be granted to a permit holder whose permit is canceled by owner 
authorization where work has commenced and such owner selects a second contractor to 
complete the work. The second contractor shall pay a full fee to complete the work unless the 
first contractor waives his opportunity to a refund in writing, in which case, the second 
contractor is entitled to a permit to cover the same work for a cost of 50% of the prevailing fee 
schedule.  
 
(5) A full refund may be granted to a permit holder who takes out a permit covering work 
outside the jurisdictional permitting and inspection area.  
 

 
(h) (g) Other fees.  
 

(1) Demolition: $80.00 per discipline (trade) inspecting.  
 
(2) Certificate of completion: $80.00.  
 
(3) Certificate of occupancy: $120.00.  
 

Page 148

https://library.municode.com/fl/surfside/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICO_CH14BUBURE_ARTIIBUCO_S14-29PEFE


(4) Temporary certificate of occuapncy: $365.00 per period of temporary certificate.  
 
(5) Duplicate permit card with list of passed inspections: $50.00.  
 
(6) Special services:  
 

a. $100.00 per hour, normal business hours (1 hour minimum).  
b. $150.00 per hour outside normal business hours (3 hour minimum).  
This fee is limited to client-requested services outside the normal permitting and 
inspection process, and any such fee shall be estimated and agreed-upon in advance.  

(7) Professional engineer review of structural drawings: $100.00 per hour.  
 

(i) (h) State and county fees.  
 
(1) $0.01 per sq. ft. added to every building permit for the State of Florida to study the 
building code requirements for radon gas plus certification and regulation of building 
officials, inspectors, and plans examiners. This surcharge relates to new construction and 
under-roof floor area being added, altered, or renovated.  
 
(2) Building code compliance fee (Miami-Dade Code Compliance): $0.60 per every 
$1,000.00 of value of construction.  
 

(j)  Waiver of Fees and Expedited Permitting and Development Review.  The Town Commission 
may by Resolution waive building permit fees and other fees as provided herein, and provide 
for expedited permitting and development review for certain programs.   

  

* * *  

Section 3.  Severability.   If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Section 4.  Inclusion in the Code.   It is the intention of the Town Commission, and it is 
hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made a part of the Town of 
Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to 
accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed to “Section” or other 
appropriate word. 

Section 5. Conflicts.   Any and all Ordinances and Resolutions or parts of Ordinances or 
Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective on second reading 
upon adoption. 

Page 149



PASSED AND ADOPTED on first reading this 13th day of February, 2018. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this 13th day of March, 2018. 

On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________ 

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________ 

 FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION: 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky _____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin _____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul  _____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen  _____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch _____ 

______________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

__________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L., 
Town Attorney 

Page 150



4A5

Page 151



Page 152



Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-   1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 2 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 3 
34 “ENVIRONMENT” OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF 4 
ORDINANCES TO CREATE SECTION 34-11, 5 
“PROHIBITION ON DISTRIBUTION, SALE OR USE OF 6 
PLASTIC STRAWS;” PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 7 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 8 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 9 
DATE.  10 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) is committed to environmental 11 
conscientiousness and leadership, and towards that end has previously adopted ordinances 12 
prohibiting the sale or use of polystyrene food service articles by Town contractors, special event 13 
permittees, food services providers, and stores; and 14 

WHEREAS, the Town finds that it is in the public interest, safety, and welfare to reduce 15 
litter and pollutants on the lands and in the waters of the Town; and 16 

WHEREAS, Chapter 34 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances (“Code”) pertains to the 17 
environment; and 18 

WHEREAS, discarded plastic straws threaten wildlife and marine life and degrade and 19 
litter the beaches and waters off of Florida’s coast, which include areas within the Town; and 20 

WHEREAS, plastic straws constitute a portion of the litter in the Town’s streets, parks, 21 
public places, and waterfront areas; and 22 

WHEREAS, the use, sale, and distribution of plastic straws has a detrimental effect on 23 
the Town’s environment; and 24 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that there are reasonable, environmentally-25 
friendly alternatives to plastic straws; and 26 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission wishes to amend Chapter 34 of the Town’s Code to 27 
create Section 34-11 to prohibit the sale, distribution, and use of plastic straws; and 28 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that this Ordinance is necessary for the 29 
preservation and improvement of the environment, public health, safety and welfare of the 30 
Town’s residents and visitors. 31 

Page 153



Page 2 of 4 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 32 
HEREBY ORDAINS:1  33 

Section 1. Recitals. The above-stated recitals are true and correct and are 34 
incorporated herein by this reference. 35 

Section 2. Town Code Amended. The Code of the Town of Surfside, Florida is 36 
hereby amended by adding a section, to be numbered Section 34-11, which section reads as 37 
follows: 38 

Chapter 34 – Environment 39 

Article I. – In General 40 

*** 41 

Division 4. Food Service Articles 42 

Section 34-11. Prohibition on Distribution, Sale or Use of Plastic Straws. 43 

(a) Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following definitions apply: 44 
(1) Customer means any person receiving or purchasing goods, food, or liquids 45 

from a commercial establishment or at a Town Facility or Property. 46 
(2) (1) Plastic Straw means a straw provided, sold, or distributed for the purpose 47 

of imbibing liquids or transferring a beverage from its container to the mouth 48 
of the drinker by suction, which is made predominantly of plastic derived 49 
from petroleum, a biologically-based source (such as corn or other plants), or 50 
polystyrene, polypropylene, or polyethylene, and which is intended for a 51 
single-use.  52 

(3) (2) Special Event Permittee means any person or entity, and their 53 
subcontractor(s), issued a special event permit by the Town for a special event 54 
on Town property, or in a Town facility, or in the Town’s right-of-way. 55 

(4) (3) Town Facility includes, but is not limited to, any building, structure, park, 56 
beach, road, street, right-of-way, or other facility owned, operated or managed 57 
by the Town. 58 

(5) (4) Town Property includes, but is not limited to, any land, water, or air rights 59 
owned, operated or managed by the Town. 60 

(b) Plastic Straws Prohibited; Exceptions 61 

                                                           
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicted with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline. 

Page 154



Page 3 of 4 

(1) A Plastic Straw shall not be used, sold, or distributed in any commercial 62 
establishment or at any Town Facility or Town Property or by any Special 63 
Event Permittee. 64 

(2) Exceptions.  65 
a. This prohibition shall not apply to pre-packaged drinks sold at 66 

commercial establishments.  67 
b. This prohibition shall not apply to medical or dental facilities. 68 
c. This prohibition shall not apply to the school district or county, state, 69 

or federal governmental entities. 70 
(c) Enforcement; Penalties 71 

(1) Following adoption of this Section, the Town shall engage in public education 72 
efforts to inform commercial establishments of the provisions of this Section 73 
and to provide assistance with identifying alternatives to Plastic Straws. 74 

(2) Beginning May 1, 2018, the Town’s Code Compliance Department shall 75 
enforce all provisions of this Section.  76 

(3) Penalties for violations of the provisions of this Section shall be enforced 77 
through Chapter 15 of the Town Code. Fines shall be in the amounts 78 
prescribed in the schedule of civil penalties adopted by resolution. 79 

Secs. 34-1012 – 34-25. Reserved.  80 

Section 3. Codification. It is the intent of the Town Commission that the provisions 81 
of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, and that 82 
the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered, and the word “ordinance” may 83 
be changed to “section,” “article,” “regulation,” or such other appropriate word or phrase in 84 
order to accomplish such intentions. 85 

Section 4. Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 86 
severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for any reason be 87 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 88 
sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but they shall remain in effect, it 89 
being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity of any 90 
part. 91 

Section 5. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, resolutions or parts of 92 
resolutions, in conflict herewith, are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 93 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 94 
final adoption on second reading.   95 

PASSED on first reading on the 13th day of February, 2018. 96 

Page 155



Page 4 of 4 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading on the 13th day of March, 2018. 97 

On Final Reading Moved By:  98 

On Final Reading Second By: 99 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 100 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky 101 
Commissioner Michael Karukin 102 
Commissioner Tina Paul 103 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen 104 
Mayor Daniel Dietch 105 

106 
107 
108 

Daniel Dietch 109 
Mayor 110 

ATTEST: 111 
112 
113 
114 

Sandra Novoa, MMC 115 
Town Clerk 116 

117 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 118 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 119 

120 
121 
122 

Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 123 
Town Attorney 124 

Page 156



Town of Surfside 
9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 

Surfside, FL  33154 

COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 
Date: March 13, 2018 
Subject: Surfboard Prohibition 

ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 86-1 “SURFBOARDS” OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF 
ORDINANCES.   

Background: 
To adopt an ordinance on first reading to repeal the prohibition on surfboards contained in 
Section 86-1 of the Town’s Code originally adopted in 1960.  

Analysis: 
A discussion item related to repealing Section 86-1 of the Surfside Code of Ordinances was 
introduced at the February 13, 2018 Commission Meeting. The Town Commission directed the 
Town Attorney to prepare an Ordinance to amend Chapter 86 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances 
by repealing Section 86-1.  

Pursuant to the Commission’s direction at the February 13, 2018 Commission Meeting, the Town 
Attorney has prepared the attached Ordinance repealing Section 86-1 in its entirety for the 
Commission’s consideration on first reading. The repeal of Section 86-1 removes the prohibition 
on use of surfboards in any area of the Town not specifically designated for such purpose. As no 
areas of the Town were designated for use of surfboards, Section 86-1 effectively created a ban 
or prohibition on surfing in the Town.   

Budget Impact: 
N/A 

Staff Impact: 
N/A 

Recommendation:  
It is recommended that the Town Commission move to approve the Ordinance on first reading 
to amend Chapter 86 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances by repealing Section 86-1, removing 
the prohibition on surfing in the Town.     

______________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Town Mayor 

4B1

Page 157



Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-   1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 2 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, REPEALING SECTION 3 
86-1 “SURFBOARDS” OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF 4 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 5 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 6 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 7 
DATE.  8 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) Commission wishes to amend Chapter 86 9 
of the Town’s Code of Ordinances to repeal Section 86-1 which prohibits the use of surfboards 10 
in any area in the Town not specifically designated for such sport by posted signs; and 11 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that this Ordinance is in the best interest of the 12 
Town. 13 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 14 
HEREBY ORDAINS:1  15 

Section 1. Recitals. The above-stated recitals are true and correct and are 16 
incorporated herein by this reference. 17 

Section 2. Town Code Amended. The Code of the Town of Surfside, Florida is 18 
hereby amended by repealing Section 86-1 in its entirety as follows: 19 

Chapter 86 – WATERWAYS 20 

Article I. – IN GENERAL 21 

*** 22 

Sec. 86-1. - Surfboards.  23 

(a) Legislative findings. The town commission does make a legislative determination and 24 
finding that the uncontrolled use of surfboards in the town has resulted in serious injury to 25 
persons and property; that, if not controlled, additional injury to persons and property will 26 
result; and, that the public health, welfare and safety require that regulations be implemented 27 
to control surfboarding and prevent additional injury to persons and property.  28 

(b) Use prohibited. The use of surfboards is prohibited in any area in the town not specifically 29 
designated for such sport by posted signs.  30 

                                                           
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicted with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline. 

Page 158



Page 2 of 3 

(c) Penalty for violation. Any person violating any of the provisions of this section shall, upon 31 
conviction thereof, be punished as provided in section 1-8.  32 

Section 3. Codification. It is the intent of the Town Commission that the provisions 33 
of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, and that 34 
the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered, and the word “ordinance” may 35 
be changed to “section,” “article,” “regulation,” or such other appropriate word or phrase in 36 
order to accomplish such intentions. 37 

Section 4. Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 38 
severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for any reason be 39 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 40 
sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but they shall remain in effect, it 41 
being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity of any 42 
part. 43 

Section 5. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, resolutions or parts of 44 
resolutions, in conflict herewith, are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 45 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 46 
final adoption on second reading.   47 

PASSED on first reading on the 13th day of March, 2018. 48 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading on the    day of   , 2018.  49 

 On Final Reading Moved By:        50 

 On Final Reading Second By:        51 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 52 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky   53 
Commissioner Michael Karukin   54 
Commissioner Tina Paul    55 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen    56 
Mayor Daniel Dietch     57 

 58 
 59 
       60 

       Daniel Dietch 61 
Mayor 62 

 63 
 64 

Page 159



Page 3 of 3 

ATTEST: 65 
66 
67 
68 

Sandra Novoa, MMC 69 
Town Clerk 70 

71 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 72 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 73 

74 
75 
76 

Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 77 
Town Attorney 78 

Page 160



4B2

Page 161



ORDINANCE NO. 18 - ______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
AMENDING SECTION 90-51 “MAXIMUM FRONTAGE OF 
BUILDINGS AND FACADE ARTICULATIONS.” OF 
“CHAPTER 90  ZONING” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADDRESS FAÇADE 
ARTICULATIONS, MAXIMUM BUILDING LENGTHS AND 
BUILDING SEPARATIONS IN THE H30C AND H40 
ZONING DISTRICTS; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Surfside, Florida, recognizes that 1 
changes to the adopted Code of Ordinances are periodically necessary in order to ensure that the 2 
Town’s regulations are current and consistent with the Town’s planning and regulatory needs; 3 
and 4 

WHEREAS, in 2015, the Town conducted  a Corridor Study of Collins to Harding from 5 
94th Street to 88th Street to evaluate development and aggregation potential with the goal of 6 
preparing possible code modifications; and 7 

WHEREAS, on January 12, 2016, as an initial effort to address building mass and views 8 
in the H30C and H40 zoning districts, the Town Commission adopted modifications to the 9 
maximum wall length code section to require forecourts; and 10 

WHEREAS, the Town finds that the implementation of the forecourt requirements has 11 
not achieved the corridor views, building mass, or aesthetic goals providing compatibility with 12 
the character and charm of Surfside; and 13 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission therefore desires to limit building lengths and 14 
require building separations to ensure the establishment of view corridors and development at a 15 
mass and bulk appropriate to the Town; and 16 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission and Planning And Zoning Board held a joint 17 
meeting on February 6, 2018 to analyze the building length and building separation issues and 18 
take public input; and 19 

Page 162



WHEREAS, the Town Commission held its first public hearing on these regulations on 20 
March 13, 2018; and  21 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency, has 22 
reviewed the revisions to the Code for consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan at a 23 
duly noticed hearing on _____________, 2018; and 24 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has conducted a second duly noticed public hearing 25 
on these regulations as required by law on ___________________, 2018; and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS, the Town Commission hereby finds and declares that adoption of this 28 

Ordinance is necessary, appropriate, and advances the public interest. 29 
 30 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 31 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 32 

Section 1.  Recitals.  Each of the above stated recitals is true and correct and the recitals are 33 
incorporated herein by this reference. 34 

 Section 2. Code Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances of the Town of Surfside, 35 
Section 90-51 “Maximum frontage of buildings and facade articulations “ of Chapter 90 36 
“Zoning”  is hereby amended as follows1: 37 

Sec. 90-51. - Maximum frontage of buildings and facade articulations.  38 

90-51.1 Continuous wall frontages. 39 

(1)   Continuous wall frontages in the H120 district shall not exceed 150 feet in length in the 40 
H120 district. Continuous wall frontages in the H40 and H30C district shall be articulated as 41 
follows:  42 

(1) Forecourt spacing and minimum dimensions:  43 

a. When utilized to meet building articulation requirements, forecourts shall be spaced 44 
no more than 150 feet apart from each other.  45 

b. When lot frontages measure less than 100 linear feet, then the minimum 46 
dimensions of the forecourt shall be 20 feet wide and 15 feet deep.  47 

                                                           
1 Additions to text are shown in underline.  Deletions to text are shown in strikethrough. 

Page 163



c. When lot frontages measure greater than 100 linear feet and less than 200 linear 48 
feet, then the minimum dimensions of the forecourt shall be 20 feet wide and 20 49 
feet deep.  50 

d. When lot frontages measure greater than 200 linear feet, then the minimum 51 
dimensions of the forecourt shall be 30 feet wide and 20 feet deep.  52 

e. In lieu of providing a forecourt of the specified size and space apart from each 53 
other as outlined in subsections (1)a. — d., a building can provide "forecourt 54 
equivalency areas" that are spaced throughout the front facade of the building. The 55 
total sum area of the forecourt equivalency areas shall not be less than the forecourt 56 
area that would be required if a regular sized forecourt were provided. Forecourt 57 
equivalency areas shall not be spaced further than 100 feet apart. Forecourt 58 
equivalency areas cannot be used uniformly across the front of a building in order 59 
to provide a uniform, larger setback.  60 

(2)    Continuous wall frontages in the H30C zoning district shall not exceed 90 feet in 61 
length. There shall be a minimum building separation of 12 feet between buildings on the 62 
same property. The building facades facing each side of the separation area shall provide a 63 
minimum of 10% wall openings per façade and a minimum two-foot area for plantings 64 
along each façade.  65 

(3)    Continuous wall frontages in the H40 zoning district shall not exceed 150 feet in 66 
length. There shall be a minimum building separation of 17 feet between buildings on the 67 
same property. The building  facades facing each side of the separation area shall provide a 68 
minimum of 10% wall openings per façade and a minimum two-foot area for plantings 69 
along each façade. 70 

(2)(4) Structured parking garages: see section 90-49.4.  71 

(3)(5) Buildings within a district designated as a historic district per Miami-Dade 72 
County shall be excluded from these requirements.  73 

* * * 74 

 Section 3. Severability.  If any section, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance is 75 
declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall not be 76 
affected by such invalidity. 77 

 Section 4. Conflict. All sections or parts of sections of the Town of Surfside Code of 78 
Ordinances in conflict herewith are intended to be repealed to the extent of such conflict. 79 

Section 5. Inclusion in the Code of Ordinances.  It is the intention of the Town 80 
Commission, and it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made 81 
a part of the Town of Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be 82 

Page 164



renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed 83 
to “Section” or other appropriate word. 84 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon final adoption on 85 
second reading. 86 

87 

PASSED on first reading this 13th day of March, 2018. 88 

PASSED and ADOPTED on second reading this _______day of April, 2018. 89 

90 

On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________ 91 

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________ 92 

93 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 94 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky _____ 95 
Commissioner Michael Karukin _____ 96 
Commissioner Tina Paul _____ 97 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen _____ 98 
Mayor Daniel Dietch _____ 99 

100 

 ______________________________ 101 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 102 

103 
ATTEST: 104 

105 
________________________________ 106 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 107 

108 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 109 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 110 

111 
____________________________________ 112 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L., 113 
Town Attorney 114 

115 

Page 165



4B3

Page 166



ORDINANCE NO. 18 - ______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
AMENDING DIVISION 3, “SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, 
ZONING CHANGES, CONDITIONAL USES AND 
VARIANCES,” OF ARTICLE II, “ADMINISTRATION AND 
ENFORCEMENT,” OF CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 
ADDRESS DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
AND REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Surfside, Florida, recognizes that 1 
changes to the adopted Code of Ordinances are periodically necessary in order to ensure that the 2 
Town’s regulations are current and consistent with the Town’s planning and regulatory needs; 3 
and 4 

WHEREAS, the Town finds that implementation of supplemental development 5 
application deadlines is necessary to ensure adequate notice, review, and scheduling parameters; 6 
and  7 

WHEREAS, the Town finds that consolidating and streamlining application 8 
requirements makes the Code more user friendly; and 9 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission held its first public hearing on these regulations on 10 
March 13, 2018; and  11 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency, has 12 
reviewed the revisions to the Code for consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan at a 13 
duly noticed hearing on _____________, 2018; and 14 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has conducted a second duly noticed public hearing 15 
on these regulations as required by law on ___________________, 2018; and 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, the Town Commission hereby finds and declares that adoption of this 18 

Ordinance is necessary, appropriate, and advances the public interest. 19 
 20 

Page 167



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 21 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 22 

Section 1.  Recitals.  Each of the above stated recitals is true and correct and the recitals are 23 
incorporated herein by this reference. 24 

 Section 2. Code Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances of the Town of Surfside, 25 
Division 3, “Special Exceptions, Zoning Changes, Conditional Uses and Variances,” of Article 26 
II, “Administration and Enforcement,” of Chapter 90 “Zoning”  is hereby amended as follows1: 27 

ARTICLE II. - ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 28 

* * * 29 

DIVISION 3. - SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS, ZONING CHANGES, CONDITIONAL USES 30 
AND VARIANCES  31 

Sec. 90-35. - Planning and zoning board; town commission; applications for site plan, 32 
amendments to the land use plan, special exceptions, zoning changes, conditional uses and 33 
variances; public noticing requirements; rules of procedure.  34 

Rules of procedure. The following rules shall govern procedure on all applications for site 35 
plan, amendments to the land use plan, special exception, zoning changes, conditional uses, 36 
and/or variances or amendments or modifications thereto:  37 

(1) Application. All applications shall be submitted to the town manager or designee on the 38 
prescribed form and accompanied with the prescribed fee. The fees may be adjusted 39 
from time to time to defray the costs of processing and reviewing the application and 40 
providing requisite notice. (Professional fees will be charged to the applicant in 41 
accordance with the cost recovery program of the town.)  42 

(a) The planning and zoning board shall be required to schedule a public hearing not 43 
later than 30 days after determination by the town manager or designee that such 44 
site plan, amendment to the land use plan, special exception, zoning change, 45 
conditional use permit or variance request meets the criteria set forth in the Zoning 46 
Code.  47 

(b) The planning and zoning board shall make its views and recommendations known 48 
to the commission for the commission's determination. If the board fails to take 49 
action within the prescribed time, the commission shall assume its duties. 50 

(c) All materials, including final drawings, plans, material samples and proposed 51 
amendments to draft ordinances or resolutions, shall be provided to the Town 52 
Manager or designee no less than 10 days prior to a scheduled quasi-judicial 53 
hearing before the board or commission.  Any new information or amendments 54 

                                                           
1 Additions to text are shown in underline.  Deletions to text are shown in strikethrough. 

Page 168



provided after that time will result in removal of the item from said agenda to the 55 
next available meeting date for which notice may be properly provided.  Re-notice 56 
may be required at the expense of the applicant. 57 

(d) No application will be considered for property that is the subject of pending code 58 
enforcement action by the town or that has an unpaid code enforcement lien. 59 

(2)  Notice. A planning and zoning board and town commission public hearing shall be 60 
noticed as provided as follows: 61 

(a) The public hearing shall be advertised at least once in a local newspaper of general 62 
circulation or publicly posted in the Town Hall at least ten days prior to the public 63 
hearing. Written courtesy notices shall be sent by first class mail to affected 64 
property owners within a radius of 300 feet. Where practicable, such advertising 65 
shall contain, in addition to a legal description, a street address, together with the 66 
specific intended use in layman's language, i.e., "apartment house" rather than 67 
"multiple dwelling," "meat market" rather than "business zoning."  68 

(3b) A notice, 18 inches by 24 inches, shall be placed in a prominent place on the 69 
property by the applicant at his own expense denoting the following:  70 

REQUEST FOR:   _____  71 

PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING: DATE AND TIME  72 

TOWN COMMISSION MEETING: DATE AND TIME  73 

TOWN HALL  74 
9293 Harding Avenue  75 
Surfside, FL 33154  76 

COMPLETE INFORMATION REGARDING THE APPLICATION IS 77 
AVAILABLE BY CONTACTING THE TOWN HALL AT ___________.  78 

Such notice to be posted not less than ten days prior to such planning and zoning 79 
board and town commission hearings.  80 

(4c) The posted notice, as set forth in subsection (3) of this section, shall contain the 81 
requested use change in layman's language i.e., "apartment house" rather than 82 
"multiple dwelling," "meat market" rather than "business zoning." Posted notice shall 83 
be in standard colors, approved by the town manager or designee before erection.  84 

(35) Rezoning applicant requirement. All applications must be made and presented by the 85 
fee title owner or owners of the property sought to be rezoned or by a tenant or attorney 86 
for the owner with the owner's written approval.  87 

(46) Adoption by Resolution. Applications for site plan, special exceptions, variances and 88 
conditional uses shall be adjudicated by resolution.  89 

Page 169



(57) Adoption Method for land use and zoning map changes. Applications for amendments 90 
to the land use map and rezonings shall be adjudicated through the same procedures as 91 
required for ordinance adoption as required by law.  92 

(68) Zoning Change Criteria.  Application for zoning change review criteria. In order to 93 
approve an application for zoning change the town commission must find that the 94 
application complies with each of the following criteria. The applicant is required to 95 
provide a report at the time the application is filed which includes documentation that 96 
the application complies with each of the below criteria:  97 

a.  The zoning change is consistent with the comprehensive plan;  98 

b.  The proposed change will result in development that is consistent in scale and 99 
character with those within 300 feet of the site;  100 

c.  The resulting boundaries of the zoning district are logically drawn;  101 

d.  The proposed change will not reduce property values in the town;  102 

e.  The proposed change will enhance the quality of life in the town; and  103 

f.  There are substantial and compelling reasons why the proposed change is in the 104 
best interests of the town.  105 

(9)  Resolutions for approval of site plan, special exceptions, variances and conditional use 106 
shall be sent to each member of the planning and zoning board by the town manager or 107 
designee following approval by the commission (except for a rezoning of a parcel 108 
which shall be adopted by ordinance as provided by law, and forwarded to the planning 109 
and zoning board in the same manner). All resolutions approving site plan, special 110 
exceptions, conditional uses and variances granted by the commission shall be kept in a 111 
journal maintained for such purpose.  112 

(710)When applicable, tThe planning and zoning board hearing shall be conducted in 113 
accordance with the quasijudicial procedures set forth in this Code.  114 

The following applications are quasijudicial and shall comply with the town's 115 
quasijudicial legislation:  116 

a.  Site-specific rezoning.  117 

b.  Conditional use applications.  118 

c.  Special exceptions.  119 

d.  Variances, including lot coverage, dimensions of yards, setbacks, other open 120 
spaces, building spacing, parking, or loading requirements, but not limited to: trees, 121 
signs, setback, distance requirements between buildings or other variances 122 
permitted by this chapter. 123 

e.  Development of regional impact.  124 

Page 170



f.  Site plan (or site plan amendment).  125 

g.  Amendments to the land use plan.  126 

h.  Any other development approval deemed to be quasijudicial by the town attorney.  127 

(8) When applicable, the Town Commission shall conduct a public hearing in accordance 128 
with the quasijudicial procedures.  Upon consideration of the recommendations of any 129 
reviewing agencies, staff and boards, the town manager, planning and zoning board or 130 
town commission, as the final decision making authority, shall adopt a final 131 
development order that denies, approves or approves with modifications or conditions, 132 
the application.  Any approval may prescribe any appropriate modifications and/or 133 
conditions, to ensure compatibility or mitigate the impacts of the proposed application 134 
and to ensure safeguards in conformity with all applicable laws. Violation of such 135 
conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the approval is 136 
granted, shall be deemed a violation of this chapter. 137 

(9)  Expiration of approval. The approval of a conditional use, special exception, variance 138 
or site plan shall be void if the applicant does not obtain a building permit within 24 139 
months after the granting of the approval unless a different expiration period is provided 140 
in the development order. An applicant who has obtained approval of a development 141 
order may request an extension of this time period within the original approval period. 142 
The town commission may grant one or more extensions for a period of up to a total of 143 
six months for good cause shown by the applicant.  144 

Sec. 90-36. - Variances.  145 

90-36.1 General variances.  146 

* * * 147 

(11)Expiration of approval. The approval of a variance shall be void if the applicant does 148 
not obtain a building permit or other development order to implement the variance 149 
within 24 months after the granting of the variance. An applicant who has obtained 150 
approval of a variance may request an extension of this time period within the original 151 
approval period. The town commission may grant one or more extensions for a period 152 
of up to a total of six months for good cause shown by the applicant.  153 

(12) Amendments and alterations to approved variances. Any expansion to an approved 154 
variance and any addition to or expansion of an existing variance shall require the same 155 
application, review, and approval as required under this Section for the original 156 
variance.  157 

* * * 158 

 Section 3. Severability.  If any section, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance is 159 
declared invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall not be 160 
affected by such invalidity. 161 

Page 171



 Section 4. Conflict. All sections or parts of sections of the Town of Surfside Code of 162 
Ordinances in conflict herewith are intended to be repealed to the extent of such conflict. 163 

Section 5. Inclusion in the Code of Ordinances.  It is the intention of the Town 164 
Commission, and it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made 165 
a part of the Town of Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be 166 
renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed 167 
to “Section” or other appropriate word. 168 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon final adoption on 169 
second reading. 170 

 171 

PASSED on first reading this 13th day of March, 2018. 172 

PASSED and ADOPTED on second reading this _______day of April, 2018. 173 

 174 

             On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________ 175 

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________ 176 

 177 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 178 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky  _____ 179 
Commissioner Michael Karukin  _____   180 
Commissioner Tina Paul   _____   181 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen   _____ 182 
Mayor Daniel Dietch    _____ 183 

 184 

                                                                                    ______________________________ 185 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 186 

 187 
ATTEST: 188 
 189 
________________________________ 190 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 191 
 192 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 193 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 194 

Page 172



 195 
____________________________________ 196 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L., 197 
Town Attorney 198 
 199 

Page 173



5A

Page 174



Page 175



Page 1 of 7 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-   

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 
TOWN’S SCHEDULE OF CIVIL PENALTIES AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE FEES TO BE ASSESSED FOR 
VIOLATION OF THE TOWN’S CODE, SPECIFICALLY 
FOR VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 34-11, “PROHIBITION 
ON DISTRIBUTION, SALE OR USE OF PLASTIC 
STRAWS”; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2018, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) Commission adopted 
Ordinance No. 2018-  , amending Chapter 34 “Environment” of the Town’s Code of 
Ordinances (“Code”) to create Section 34-11, “Prohibition on Distribution, Sale or Use of Plastic 
Straws”; and 

WHEREAS, newly adopted Section 34-11 of the Town Code provides that fines for 
violations of Section 34-11 shall be in the amounts prescribed in the schedule of civil penalties 
adopted by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, on July 10, 2014, the Town Commission adopted Resolution No. 14-2234, 
which amended the Civil Penalties and Administrative Fee Schedule for Code Compliance and 
Enforcement Related Services to be assessed for violations of the Town Code (“Fee Schedule”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the fine for a violation of Section 34-11 of 
the Town Code shall be $250.00 per violation by a commercial establishment and $25.00 per 
violation by an individual; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the Fee Schedule should be amended as 
set forth in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein, to provide the fines for 
violations of Section 34-11 of the Town Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that this Resolution is in the best interest of 
the public health, safety and welfare of the Town’s residents and visitors. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above-stated recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Page 176



Page 2 of 7 

Section 2. Amending Fee Schedule. The Fee Schedule is hereby amended as set 
forth in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein, to provide the fines for violations 
of Section 34-11 of the Town Code. All other provisions of the Fee Schedule adopted in 
Resolution No. 14-2234 shall remain the same.  

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of March, 2018.  

 Moved By:        

 Second By:        

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky   
Commissioner Michael Karukin   
Commissioner Tina Paul    
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen    
Mayor Daniel Dietch     

 
 
       

       Daniel Dietch 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE  
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY:  
 
 
       
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney  

Page 177



Page 3 of 7 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Civil Penalties and Administrative Fees Schedule  
for Code Compliance and Enforcement Related Services 

(Amended March 13, 2018) 
 

Page 178



SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 O

F 
D

A
IL

Y
 C

IV
IL

 F
IN

E
S 

FO
R

 C
E

R
T

A
IN

 V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
 T

Y
PE

S 
(A

ll 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

ty
pe

s n
ot

 li
st

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
$2

5.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
fir

st
 ti

m
e 

of
fe

ns
e 

an
d 

a 
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
se

co
nd

 o
r 

re
pe

at
 o

ff
en

se
) 

(A
m

en
de

d 
M

ar
ch

 1
3,

 2
01

8)
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 7
 

Ch
ap

te
r 

Se
ct

io
n 

N
am

e 
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 V

io
la

tio
n 

Da
ily

 F
in

e 
Fi

rs
t 

O
ffe

ns
e 

Da
ily

 F
in

e 
Se

co
nd

/R
ep

ea
t 

O
ffe

ns
e 

Ch
ap

te
r 6

 
Al

co
ho

lic
 B

ev
er

ag
es

 
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
or

 c
on

fo
rm

 to
 a

ny
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f t

he
 T

ow
n 

Co
de

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 a
lc

oh
ol

ic
 b

ev
er

ag
es

 
$2

50
.0

0 
$5

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
n 

6-
8 

O
ffe

ns
es

, 
M

isc
el

la
ne

ou
s 

Pr
ov

isi
on

s 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

or
 c

on
fo

rm
 to

 a
ny

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 T
ow

n 
Co

de
 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 m

us
ic

 a
nd

/o
r e

nt
er

ta
in

m
en

t 
$1

00
.0

0 
$2

00
.0

0 

Ch
ap

te
r 1

0-
2 

An
im

al
s 

Ki
lli

ng
 b

ird
s a

nd
 sq

ui
rr

el
s 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
-

28
(c

) 
An

im
al

s 
Al

lo
w

in
g 

a 
do

g 
to

 ru
n 

at
 la

rg
e 

$5
0.

00
 

$1
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
-

28
(c

) 
An

im
al

s 
Al

lo
w

in
g 

a 
do

g 
to

 b
e 

im
pr

op
er

ly
 le

as
he

d 
$5

0.
00

 
$1

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
-3

0 
An

im
al

s 
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 li

ce
ns

e 
an

y 
do

g 
$5

0.
00

 
$1

00
.0

0 
Se

ct
io

n 
10

-3
2 

An
im

al
s 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 re
m

ov
e 

fe
ca

l e
xc

re
m

en
t 

$1
00

.0
0 

$2
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
-3

3 
An

im
al

s 
Ta

ki
ng

 a
 d

og
 w

he
th

er
 o

n 
a 

le
as

e 
or

 w
ith

ou
t a

 le
as

h,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 a
 se

ei
ng

 
ey

e 
do

g,
 in

to
 a

ny
 st

or
e 

w
he

re
 fo

od
 fo

r h
um

an
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

is 
so

ld
 o

r h
el

d 
fo

r s
al

e 

$5
0.

00
 

$1
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
-3

3 
An

im
al

s 
Ta

ki
ng

 a
 d

og
, w

he
th

er
 o

n 
a 

le
as

h 
or

 w
ith

ou
t a

 le
as

h,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 a
 se

ei
ng

 
ey

e 
do

g,
 a

t a
ny

 ti
m

e 
to

 a
ny

 p
ub

lic
 b

ea
ch

 in
 T

ow
n 

$1
00

.0
0 

$2
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
-3

4 
An

im
al

s 
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 h

av
e 

on
e’

s d
og

 p
ro

pe
rly

 c
ol

la
re

d 
$5

0.
00

 
$1

00
.0

0 
Se

ct
io

n 
10

-3
6 

An
im

al
s 

Ke
ep

in
g 

or
 h

ar
bo

rin
g 

an
y 

do
g 

th
at

 e
ng

ag
es

 in
 fr

eq
ue

nt
 o

r h
ab

itu
al

 b
ar

ki
ng

, 
ye

lp
in

g 
or

 h
ow

lin
g;

 th
at

 is
 m

ea
n 

or
 v

ic
io

us
; t

ha
t b

ec
om

es
 a

 n
ui

sa
nc

e 
$5

0.
00

 
$1

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
-3

6 
An

im
al

s 
An

y 
cr

ue
lty

 to
 a

 d
og

, a
s d

ef
in

ed
 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-2

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l o

r h
an

d 
ab

ra
siv

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f 
pa

in
t, 

ru
st

 o
r o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
fr

om
 a

ny
 so

ur
ce

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 p

ar
tic

le
s t

ha
t 

ca
n 

flo
at

, d
ro

p,
 o

r b
e 

bl
ow

n 
to

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

or
 in

to
 p

ub
lic

 w
ay

s o
r 

st
re

et
s 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-2

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Fa
ili

ng
 to

 c
on

fin
e 

al
l l

oo
se

 p
ar

tic
le

s a
nd

 a
br

as
iv

es
 fr

om
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
us

e 
of

 a
ir 

pr
es

su
re

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 su
ita

bl
e 

m
ea

ns
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 th
ei

r 
tr

an
sf

er
rin

g 
to

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-2

8.
 

90
-3

7
Bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

Pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

or
 h

av
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 w
or

k 
w

ith
ou

t f
irs

t o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 re

qu
ire

d 
pe

rm
it 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-8

7 
Bu

lk
he

ad
s 

Co
ns

tr
uc

t a
ny

 g
ro

in
, b

ul
kh

ea
d,

 se
aw

al
l, 

je
tt

y,
 b

re
ak

w
at

er
 o

r o
th

er
 

pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
w

or
k 

or
 to

 p
la

ce
 a

ny
 p

er
m

an
en

t o
r t

em
po

ra
ry

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 a
ny

 
na

tu
re

 w
ha

ts
oe

ve
r e

as
t o

f t
he

 o
ce

an
 b

ul
kh

ea
d 

lin
e 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Page 179



SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 O

F 
D

A
IL

Y
 C

IV
IL

 F
IN

E
S 

FO
R

 C
E

R
T

A
IN

 V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
 T

Y
PE

S 
(A

ll 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

ty
pe

s n
ot

 li
st

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
$2

5.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
fir

st
 ti

m
e 

of
fe

ns
e 

an
d 

a 
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
se

co
nd

 o
r 

re
pe

at
 o

ff
en

se
) 

(A
m

en
de

d 
M

ar
ch

 1
3,

 2
01

8)
 

 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 7
 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-8

7 
Bu

lk
he

ad
s 

Re
pa

ir,
 e

xt
en

d,
 a

lte
r o

r r
ep

la
ce

 a
ny

 e
xi

st
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ly
in

g 
ea

st
 o

f t
he

 
oc

ea
n 

bu
lk

he
ad

 li
ne

 
$2

50
.0

0 
$5

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-8

8 
Bu

lk
he

ad
s 

Er
ec

t a
ny

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

ith
in

 2
0 

fe
et

 w
es

t o
f t

he
 o

ce
an

 b
ul

kh
ea

d 
lin

e 
$2

50
.0

0 
$5

00
.0

0 
Se

ct
io

n 
14

-8
8 

Bu
lk

he
ad

s 
Re

pa
ir,

 e
xt

en
d,

 a
lte

r o
r r

ep
la

ce
 a

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ly

in
g 

w
ith

in
 2

0 
fe

et
 

w
es

t o
f t

he
 o

ce
an

 b
ul

kh
ea

d 
lin

e 
$2

50
.0

0 
$5

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-1

02
 

Bu
lk

he
ad

s 
Er

ec
t a

ny
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
ith

in
 2

0 
fe

et
 la

nd
w

ar
d 

of
 th

e 
In

di
an

 C
re

ek
 b

ul
kh

ea
d 

lin
e 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

14
-1

02
 

Bu
lk

he
ad

s 
Re

pa
ir,

 e
xt

en
d,

 a
lte

r o
r r

ep
la

ce
 a

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ly

in
g 

se
aw

ar
d 

of
 th

e 
In

di
an

 C
re

ek
 w

at
er

w
ay

 o
r e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
lk

he
ad

 o
r w

ith
in

 2
0 

fe
et

 la
nd

w
ar

d 
of

 
su

ch
 b

ul
kh

ea
d 

lin
e 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

18
-

85
(a

) 
Bu

sin
es

se
s (

Ci
vi

l 
Fi

ne
s a

nd
 P

en
al

tie
s)

 
Fi

rs
t V

io
la

tio
n 

(S
id

ew
al

k 
Ca

fé
 O

rd
in

an
ce

) 
$1

00
.0

0 
Se

co
nd

 v
io

la
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
12

 
m

on
th

s:
 $

25
0.

00
 

Th
ird

 V
io

la
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
12

 
m

on
th

s:
 $

50
0.

00
 

Fo
ur

th
 v

io
la

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

12
 

m
on

th
s:

 $
75

0.
00

 
*F

ift
h 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
12

 
m

on
th

s:
 $

1,
00

0.
00

 
**

Si
xt

h 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

12
 

m
on

th
s:

 $
1,

00
0.

00
 

Se
ct

io
n 

18
-

88
(g

) 
Bu

sin
es

se
s 

(P
er

m
itt

ed
 a

re
as

; 
co

nd
iti

on
al

 p
er

m
it;

 
To

w
n 

M
an

ag
er

’s
 

rig
ht

 to
 re

m
ov

e 
sid

ew
al

k 
ca

fe
s)

 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 T

ow
n 

M
an

ag
er

’s
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
no

tif
ic

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f s

id
ew

al
k 

ca
fé

 fu
rn

ish
in

gs
 b

y 
To

w
n 

$1
,0

00
.0

0 
 

Page 180



SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 O

F 
D

A
IL

Y
 C

IV
IL

 F
IN

E
S 

FO
R

 C
E

R
T

A
IN

 V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
 T

Y
PE

S 
(A

ll 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

ty
pe

s n
ot

 li
st

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
$2

5.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
fir

st
 ti

m
e 

of
fe

ns
e 

an
d 

a 
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
se

co
nd

 o
r 

re
pe

at
 o

ff
en

se
) 

(A
m

en
de

d 
M

ar
ch

 1
3,

 2
01

8)
 

 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 7
 

Se
ct

io
n 

34
-1

1 
Pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 o
n 

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n,

 S
al

e 
or

 
U

se
 o

f P
la

st
ic

 
St

ra
w

s 

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n,

 sa
le

 o
r u

se
 o

f p
la

st
ic

 st
ra

w
s 

$2
50

.0
0 

(p
er

 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

by
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
es

ta
bl

ish
m

en
t)

 
$2

5.
00

 (p
er

 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

by
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

) 

 

Se
ct

io
n 

34
-3

0 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

U
nl

aw
fu

l c
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 sa

ni
ta

ry
 se

w
er

 d
ra

in
s t

o 
th

e 
To

w
n’

s d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

 
$2

50
.0

0 
$5

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
n 

34
-3

0 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

U
nl

aw
fu

l c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 st

or
m

 d
ra

in
s t

o 
th

e 
To

w
n’

s s
an

ita
ry

 se
w

er
 

sy
st

em
 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

46
-1

 
He

al
th

 
Vi

ol
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Fl

or
id

a 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t o
f H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
, 

or
 re

sp
on

sib
le

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

r a
ge

nc
y 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

54
-6

2 
O

ffe
ns

es
, 

M
isc

el
la

ne
ou

s 
Pr

ov
isi

on
s 

Dr
in

ki
ng

 a
ny

 b
ee

r, 
w

in
e 

or
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 a
lc

oh
ol

ic
 b

ev
er

ag
e 

on
 a

ny
 st

re
et

, 
sid

ew
al

k,
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
m

al
l, 

al
le

y,
 h

ig
hw

ay
, p

la
yg

ro
un

d 
or

 p
ar

k 
in

 th
e 

To
w

n 
$1

00
.0

0 
$2

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
ns

 5
4-

78
 

to
 5

4-
79

 
O

ffe
ns

es
, 

M
isc

el
la

ne
ou

s 
Pr

ov
isi

on
s 

Cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
no

ise
s a

t a
ny

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

tim
es

 o
r l

oc
at

io
ns

. 
$1

00
.0

0 
$2

00
.0

0 

Se
ct

io
n 

78
-5

1 
Se

w
er

s a
nd

 S
ew

ag
e 

Di
sp

os
al

 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
or

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f a

ny
 se

pt
ic

 ta
nk

 o
r s

an
ita

ry
 p

riv
y.

 
$1

00
.0

0 
$2

00
.0

0 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

78
-5

4 
Se

w
er

s a
nd

 S
ew

ag
e 

Di
sp

os
al

 
Di

sc
ha

rg
e 

in
to

 th
e 

To
w

n’
s s

an
ita

ry
 se

w
er

 a
ny

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

m
at

er
ia

l o
r 

su
bs

ta
nc

e.
 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

90
-

41
.1

(c
)(2

) 
Zo

ni
ng

-R
es

or
t T

ax
 

an
d 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t 

Re
so

rt
 T

ax
 v

io
la

tio
ns

 a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fin
es

.  
Th

e 
sp

ec
ia

l m
as

te
r 

m
ay

 n
ot

 w
ai

ve
 o

r r
ed

uc
e 

fin
es

 se
t b

y 
th

is 
se

ct
io

n.
 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
co

nd
 v

io
la

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

12
 

m
on

th
s:

  
$1

,5
00

.0
0.

  T
hi

rd
 

vi
ol

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
12

 
m

on
th

s:
  

$5
,0

00
.0

0.
  F

ou
rt

h 
or

 g
re

at
er

 v
io

la
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
12

 
m

on
th

s:
 $

7,
50

0.
00

. 

Page 181



SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 O

F 
D

A
IL

Y
 C

IV
IL

 F
IN

E
S 

FO
R

 C
E

R
T

A
IN

 V
IO

L
A

T
IO

N
 T

Y
PE

S 
(A

ll 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

ty
pe

s n
ot

 li
st

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
$2

5.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
fir

st
 ti

m
e 

of
fe

ns
e 

an
d 

a 
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 fi
ne

 fo
r 

a 
se

co
nd

 o
r 

re
pe

at
 o

ff
en

se
) 

(A
m

en
de

d 
M

ar
ch

 1
3,

 2
01

8)
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 7
 

Se
ct

io
n 

90
-1

84
 

Bu
lk

he
ad

s 
Er

ec
t, 

re
pa

ir,
 e

xt
en

d,
 a

lte
r o

r r
ep

la
ce

: 
Do

ck
 a

nd
 p

ie
r p

ro
je

ct
in

g 
in

to
 B

isc
ay

ne
 B

ay
 w

at
er

w
ay

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

w
at

er
w

ay
 

lin
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 2

0 
fe

et
.  

 
Do

ck
 a

nd
 p

ie
r p

ro
je

ct
in

g 
in

 In
di

an
 C

re
ek

 w
at

er
w

ay
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
w

at
er

w
ay

 
lin

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 1
0 

fe
et

. 
Do

ck
 a

nd
 p

ie
r p

ro
je

ct
in

g 
in

to
 P

oi
nt

 L
ak

e 
w

at
er

w
ay

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

w
at

er
w

ay
 

lin
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 1

5 
fe

et
. 

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

Se
ct

io
n 

90
-1

87
 

Bu
lk

he
ad

s 
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 re

pa
ir,

 a
lte

ra
tio

n,
 e

xt
en

sio
n 

or
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 b

ul
kh

ea
d,

 
se

a 
w

al
l, 

sh
or

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

or
 a

ny
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

on
 B

isc
ay

ne
 B

ay
, I

nd
ia

n 
Cr

ee
k 

an
d 

Po
in

t L
ak

e 
w

ith
ou

t r
eq

ui
re

d 
pe

rm
it.

   

$2
50

.0
0 

$5
00

.0
0 

N
ot

e:
  

Al
l v

io
la

tio
n 

ty
pe

s 
no

t 
lis

te
d 

he
re

in
 s

ha
ll 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
a 

$2
5.

00
 p

er
 d

ay
 f

in
e 

fo
r 

a 
fir

st
 t

im
e 

of
fe

ns
e 

an
d 

a 
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 d
ay

 f
in

e 
fo

r 
a 

2nd
 o

r 
re

pe
at

 
of

fe
ns

e.
 

*
Al

so
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

su
sp

en
si

on
 o

f s
id

ew
al

k 
ca

fé
 p

er
m

it 
fo

r o
ne

 w
ee

ke
nd

 (S
at

ur
da

y 
&

 S
un

da
y)

.
**

 A
ls

o 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

re
vo

ca
tio

n 
of

 si
de

w
al

k 
ca

fé
 p

er
m

it 
fo

r t
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pe
rm

it 
ye

ar
.

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IV
E 

FE
ES

, A
BA

TE
M

EN
T 

CO
ST

S,
 A

N
D 

O
TH

ER
 C

IV
IL

 F
IN

ES
 

Is
su

e 
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

Fe
e 

Fi
ne

 
N

ot
e 

Co
de

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Ab
at

em
en

t 
Fe

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ac
tu

al
 in

cu
rr

ed
 a

nd
 st

af
f 

tim
e 

Co
nt

ac
to

rs
 C

os
ts

 a
nd

/o
r s

ta
ff 

ho
ur

ly
 c

os
ts

 

Co
de

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

Ab
at

em
en

t R
el

at
ed

 
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Fe
es

 

Fe
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ac

tu
al

 c
os

ts
 in

cu
rr

ed
 a

nd
 

st
af

f t
im

e 
Fe

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ac
tu

al
 st

af
f h

ou
rly

 c
os

ts
 fo

r 
ad

m
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

La
w

n 
Cu

tt
in

g 
an

d 
Cl

ea
rin

g 
Co

st
 

Pe
r L

aw
n 

Cu
tt

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Fe
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ac

tu
al

 C
on

tr
ac

to
r c

os
ts

 a
nd

/o
r s

ta
ff 

ho
ur

ly
 c

os
ts

 
Co

de
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
La

w
n 

Cu
tt

in
g 

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Fe

e 

Pe
r L

aw
n 

Cu
tt

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
e 

$1
25

.0
0 

$2
5.

00
 

Pe
r O

cc
ur

re
nc

e 

Tr
as

h 
&

 D
eb

ris
 O

ve
r-

th
e-

Li
m

it 
Pi

ck
-U

p 
Fe

es
 &

 F
in

es
 

Pe
r c

ub
ic

 y
ar

d 
fe

e:
 

$1
5.

50
 

$2
5.

00
 

Pe
r O

cc
ur

re
nc

e 

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

De
br

is 
Pi

ck
-U

p 
Fe

e 
&

 F
in

es
 

Pe
r c

ub
ic

 y
ar

d 
fe

e:
 

$3
0.

00
 

$2
5.

00
 

Pe
r O

cc
ur

re
nc

e 

Page 182



5B

Page 183



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-   

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, WAIVING ALL TOWN 
BUILDING PERMIT FEES AND REQUIRING EXPEDITED 
DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PROCESSES FOR 
PHOTOVOLTAIC SOLAR SYSTEM INSTALLATIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2018, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) Commission adopted 
Ordinance No. 2018-  , amending Section 14-29, “Permit Fees” of the Town’s Code of 
Ordinances (“Code”) to allow the Town Commission to waive, by resolution, building permit 
fees and other fees and to provide for expedited permitting and development review for certain 
programs; and 

WHEREAS, the Town is committed to environmental conscientiousness and leadership 
and wishes to incentivize certain development programs in the Town, including sustainable 
building programs, by waiving building permit fees and expediting permitting and development 
review; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to incentivize the installation and use of 
photovoltaic solar systems (i.e., solar panels) in the Town by waiving the Town’s building 
permit fees and expediting the development and review processes for same; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that this Resolution is in the best interest of 
the public health, safety and welfare of the Town’s residents and visitors. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above-stated recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2. Waiving Building Permit Fees. The Town Commission hereby waives 
the Town’s building permit fees for photovoltaic solar system (i.e., solar panels) installations. 
Any outside agency or other governmental fees are still required to be paid.  

Section 3. Expediting Review. The Town Commission hereby requires that the 
development and review processes for photovoltaic solar system (i.e., solar panels) installations 
be expedited.  

Page 184



Page 2 of 2 

Section 4. Implementation. The Town Commission hereby authorizes the Town 
Manager and Building Official to take any action which is reasonably necessary to implement 
the purpose of this Resolution. 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Moved By: 

Second By: 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky 
Commissioner Michael Karukin 
Commissioner Tina Paul 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen 
Mayor Daniel Dietch  

Daniel Dietch 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY:  

Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney 

Page 185



9A

Page 186



9B

Page 187



9C

Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

March 13, 2018 
7:00pm 

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Avenue, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 
Date: March 4, 2018 
From: Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Subject: Supplemental Social Services for the Miami Beach School Feeder Pattern 

Objective:  To explore the interest, feasibility and mechanics to join with the Town of Bay Harbor Islands 
and the Village of Bal Harbour (and perhaps others) to financially support a child psychologist to 
supplement the existing social services available in the Miami Beach school feeder pattern. 

Consideration:  The recent tragedy in Parkland has resulted in a lot of talk about sensible gun legislation.  
While Surfside has passed Resolution Nos. 13-2130, 13-2162 and 18-2490, urging resolutions requesting 
common sense actions to help safeguard our community, the responsibility for passing sensible gun 
legislation can only be legally accomplished by the Florida Legislature and Congress.  However important 
sensible gun regulations may be, it is only part of the solution.  Just as important is the focus on 
addressing the underlying behavioral issues that can lead to senseless acts of violence by school-aged 
children.  Therefore, relying on the partnership model previously used for supporting the school nurse 
initiative, I suggest we start the discussions with our neighboring communities and the Miami-Dade 
County School Board to see how we can work collaboratively on this initiative with a report back from 
the Town Manager within 60 days. 

Recommendation:  To direct the Town Manager to explore the interest, feasibility and mechanics to join 
with the Town of Bay Harbor Islands and the Village of Bal Harbour (and perhaps others) to financially 
support a child psychologist to supplement the existing social services available in the Miami Beach 
school feeder pattern. 

9D

Page 201



Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 
Date: March 13, 2018  
From: Commissioner Tina Paul 
Subject: Beach Management for Turtle Season 

Objective – To comply with Florida Statue 370.12, the Marine Turtle Protection Act, utilizing 
recommendations set forth by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission to 
provide further protection for sea turtles and their natural habitat. 

Background – The federal Endangered Species Act lists all five species of sea turtles in Florida  
as either threatened or endangered.  These are Atlantic Loggerhead Turtle, Atlantic Green 
Turtle, Leatherback Turtle, Atlantic Hawksbill Turtle, and Atlantic Ridley Turtle. Some of the 
threats facing the mortality of sea turtles daily include, illegal harvesting, habitat 
encroachment, and pollution (both physical and light). Sea turtles are protected under the 
Federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 and Florida’s Marine Turtle Protection Act (379.2431, 
Florida Statues). The state of Florida developed a model lighting ordinance (62B-55, F.A.C.) to 
guide local governments in creating lighting ordinances. Protection for sea turtles by ordinance 
exist in the following Municipalities:  Panama City Beach, Mexico Beach, Cape Canaveral, Cocoa 
Beach, Indialantic, Indian Harbor Beach, Melbourne Beach, Satellite Beach, Dania Beach, 
Deerfield Beach, Ft. Lauderdale, Hallandale Beach, Hillsboro Beach, Hollywood, Lauderdale By 
The Sea, Pompano Beach, Marco Island, Naples, Jacksonville Beach, Neptune Beach, Flagler 
Beach, Indian River Shores, Orchid, Vero Beach, Bonita Springs, Ft. Myers Beach, Sanibel, Anna 
Maria Island, Bradenton Beach, Holmes Beach, Town of Jupiter Island, Golden Beach, Miami 
Beach, Sunny Isles Beach, Village of Key Biscayne, Key West, Marathon, Village of Islamoralda, 
Fernandina Beach, Destin, Boca Raton, Delray Beach, Highland Beach, Juno Beach, Ocean Ridge, 
Town of Palm Beach, Town of South Palm Beach, Belleair Beach, Clearwater, Dunedin, Indian 
Rocks, Indian Shores, Madeira Beach, North Redington Beach, Redington Beach, Treasure 
Island, St. Petersburg Beach, St. Augustine Beach, Ft. Pierce, City of Sarasota, Longboat Key, 
Venice , New Smyrna Beach, Walton. 

9E

Page 202



Agenda 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 13, 2018 
 
  

2 

  
 

 

Consideration – Surfside has adopted the Sea Turtle as its symbol, creating an enthusiastic 
concern for our native wildlife among residents and visitors. Recently, I received a letter from 
children, ages 8 and 5, asking me to save the Turtles for future generations. It was also 
mentioned that their classmates at Ruth K. Broad Elementary School asked teachers if they 
could all write letters to the Mayor regarding concerns for the turtles safety and protection.  

Concurrently, I have been researching material from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 
Commission website (myfwc.com) regarding protections for sea turtles and turtle nesting. The 
present issues in Surfside impacting the safety of our turtles are: beach furniture, private motor 
vehicles, oceanfront building lights (artificial lights) and increased pollution. Several residents 
have made requests for town officials to regulate the use of private vehicles on our beach, 
including private beach cleaning machinery and to address the harsh lighting radiating from 
new developments in regards to turtle season. Immediate action is necessary, considering 
turtle nesting season is underway, from March 1 through October 31.  

                                                          

Recommendation – Enact an ordinance to safeguard protection of sea turtles and their habitat. 
Assign code compliance to establish consent through distribution of information and guidelines 
from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission to Hotels and Condo management. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See Attachments provided. 

Page 203



C
om
m
on
  o
bs
ta
cl
es
  se
a  
tu
rt
le
s  e
nc
ou
nt
er
  w
he
n  

at
te
m
pt
in
g  
to
  n
es
t  o
n  
Fl
or
id
a’
s  b
ea
ch
es
.

Ph
ot

o 
Ba

rb
ar

a 
B.

 Ja
m

es

Ph
ot

o 
Ba

rb
ar

a 
B.

 Ja
m

es

Be
ac

h 
Fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
Se

a 
Tu

rt
le

s

Page 204



If
 y

ou
 se

e 
so

m
eo

ne
 d

ist
ur

bi
ng

 a
 se

a 
tu

rt
le

 n
es

t o
r s

ee
 a

de
ad

, i
nj

ur
ed

 o
r h

ar
as

se
d 

se
a 

tu
rt

le
, p

le
as

e 
ca

ll 
th

e
Fl

or
id

a 
Fi

sh
 a

nd
W

ild
lif

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

C
om

m
iss

io
n 

at
1-

88
8-

40
4-

FW
C

C
.

! !

R
em

ov
e

fu
rn

it
ur

e
fr

om
th

e
be

ac
h

ni
gh

tl
y

h St
ac

k
an

d
ar

ra
ng

e
fu

rn
it

ur
e

A
t

n
ig

h
t,

fu
rn

it
ur

e
sh

o
ul

d
b

e
co

m
p

le
te

ly
re

m
ov

ed
fr

o
m

th
e

b
ea

ch
an

d
st

o
re

d
b

eh
in

d
th

e
p

ri
m

ar
y

d
un

e.
P

le
as

e
re

m
em

b
er

,

M
ar

in
e

tu
rt

le
p

re
fe

r
to

n
es

t
o

n
th

e
m

id
to

up
p

er
b

ea
ch

,p
ro

te
ct

in
g

th
ei

r
n

es
t

fr
o

m
th

e
h

ig
h

ti
d
e.

F
ur

n
it

ur
e

th
at

is
le

ft
o

n
th

e
b

ea
ch

at
n

ig
h

t
ca

n
p

re
ve

n
t

n
es

ti
n

g
tu

rt
le

s
fr

o
m

re
ac

h
in

g
th

e
up

p
er

b
ea

ch
(S

ee
F

ig
ur

e
1)

.
If

fu
rn

it
ur

e
ca

n
n

o
t

b
e

re
m

ov
ed

at
n

ig
h

t,
it

sh
o

ul
d

b
e

st
ac

ke
d

to
m

in
im

iz
e

in
te

rf
er

en
ce

w
it

h
n

es
ti

n
g

o
r

h
at

ch
lin

g
se

a
tu

rt
le

s
(S

ee
F

ig
ur

e
2)

.

A
rr

an
ge

th
e

st
ac

ke
d

fu
rn

it
ur

e
w

it
h

th
e

sh
o

rt
es

t
ed

ge
fa

ci
n

g
th

e
sh

o
re

lin
e.

ea
vy

eq
ui

pm
en

ti
s

no
ta

llo
w

ed
on

th
e

be
ac

h
du

ri
ng

ne
st

in
g

se
as

on
.

W
h

en
p

o
ss

ib
le

,a
ll

fu
rn

it
ur

e
sh

o
ul

d
b

e
m

ov
ed

by
h

an
d
.

! !

P
la

ce
fu

rn
it

ur
e

pr
op

er
ly

at
le

as
t5

fe
et

fr
om

an
y

m
ar

ke
d

ne
st

.

U
se

an
um

br
el

la
ho

ld
er

or
sl

ee
ve

N
o

fu
rn

it
ur

e
sh

o
ul

d
b

e
p

la
ce

d
o

n
th

e
b

ea
ch

un
ti

la
n

es
ti

n
g

su
rv

ey
h

as
b

ee
n

co
m

p
le

te
d

by
a

M
ar

in
e

T
ur

tl
e

P
er

m
it

H
o

ld
er

,w
h

o
w

ill
id

en
ti

fy
an

d
m

ar
k

n
es

ts
.P

la
ce

fu
rn

it
ur

e

F
ur

n
it

ur
e

sh
o

ul
d

n
o

t
b

e
p

la
ce

d
o

n
sa

lt
-r

es
is

ta
n

t
ve

ge
ta

ti
o

n
o

r
o

n
th

e
d
un

es
.

T
o

th
e

d
eg

re
e

p
o

ss
ib

le
,a

vo
id

b
ur

yi
n

g
um

b
re

lla
p

o
le

s
d
ur

in
g

se
a

tu
rt

le
n

es
ti

n
g

se
as

o
n

.
E

it
h

er
an

ch
o

r
an

um
b

re
lla

h
o

ld
er

o
r

sl
ee

ve
b

ef
o

re
th

e
n

es
ti

n
g

se
as

o
n

to
us

e
th

ro
ug

h
o

ut
th

e
su

m
m

er
,o

r
us

e
um

b
re

lla
s

th
at

cl
am

p
d
ir

ec
tl

y
to

th
e

fu
rn

it
ur

e.

T
o

R
ed

uc
e

Im
pa

ct
s

T
o

Se
a

T
ur

tle
s

F
ro

m
B

ea
ch

F
ur

ni
tu

re
:

D
u
n
e

V
eg

et
at

io
n

S
h
o
re

li
n
e

Beach
Furniture

Beach
Furniture

Beach
Furniture

Beach
Furniture

Beach
Furniture

Fi
g

u
re

1

D
u
n
e

V
eg

et
at

io
n

S
h
o
re

li
n
e

Beach
Furniture
Beach

Furniture
Beach

Furniture
Beach

Furniture

Beach
Furniture
Beach

Furniture
Beach

Furniture
Beach

Furniture

Fi
g

u
re

2

Page 205



3/1/18, 4:46 PMMechanical Beach Cleaning Guidelines

Page 1 of 3http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/beach-activities/beach-cleaning-guidelines/

Ask FWC About Contact News Calendar Get Involved Sign Up Home

Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission

 search

Species Profiles

Managed Species

Alligator Management Program

American Crocodile

Bald Eagle

Black Bears

White-tailed deer

Freshwater Turtles

Gopher Tortoise

Manatee

Florida Panther

Sea Turtles

Five Species in Florida

Laws/Regulations/Handbook

Marine Turtle Permits

Coastal Construction & Other Beach
Activities

Sea Turtles & Lights

Wildlife Friendly Lighting

Research

Mortality Reports

Nesting

Educational Information

Where to view Sea Turtles

How to Help

Decals

License Plates

Links

Marine Turtle Stakeholder Meeting
Summary

Disorientations

Waterfowl

Imperiled Species

Nonnative Species

Invasive Plants

Captive Wildlife

Wildlife Assistance

Beach Cleaning:
(Download Brochure)
Beach cleaning involves the removal of material left by the tides or beach goers on Florida's
sandy shorelines. Stranded seaweed provides an important food source for beach and near-
shore food chains, and should be left in place when possible. Human debris can pose a
hazard to humans and animals, and should be removed. The use of mechanized beach
cleaning equipment is limited during certain times of the year when threatened and
endangered sea turtles are nesting. Those beach cleaners willing to commit to special
protections for sea turtles can continue to operate and share the beach with Florida's sea
turtles

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) regulates mechanized beach
cleaning under the Florida Beach & Shore Preservation Act, Florida Statute 161. In order for
beach cleaning to occur during nesting season, FWC and DEP have developed special
conditions to protect marine turtles, their nests and hatchlings. In higher density areas
where marking every nest is not feasible, non-mechanical methods of cleaning, such as
hand raking, may be necessary.

Beach Cleaning Conditions - Brevard through Broward and Monroe County:
Because of the high density of turtle nests in Brevard through Broward Counties, special
protection measures are required during the sea turtle nesting season (March 1 through
October 31) to protect nests:

1. Cleaning can only occur seaward of the high tide line and only during the day.

2. Cleaning can only occur after a Marine Turtle Permit Holder authorized by FWC
has surveyed the beach for sea turtle nests .

3. It is the beach cleaner's responsibility to contract with a Permit Holder to conduct
nesting surveys during nesting season.

4. If no surveys are done, no cleaning can occur for up to 65 days or until after
the end of the nesting season.

5. The Permit Holder must mark all nests within 10 feet of the high tide line.

6. Only equipment with 10-PSI tire pressure can operate on the beach.

7. Cleaning equipment must not penetrate more than two inches into the beach surface.

8. All material collected must be removed from the beach.

9. Cleaning equipment must stay at least 10 feet from salt-tolerant vegetation.

Beach Cleaning Permit Conditions - For All Counties Excluding Brevard
Through Broward And Monroe County (8/15/96) (07/02/02)

1. During the marine turtle nesting season (May 1 to October 31), mechanical beach
cleaning activities shall be confined to daylight hours (sunrise to sunset).

2. During marine turtle nesting season (May 1 to October 31), the permittee is
responsible for ensuring that a daily marine turtle nest survey, protection, and
monitoring program is conducted throughout the permitted beach cleaning area. 
Such surveys and associated conservation measures shall be completed after sunrise
and prior to the commencement of any mechanical beach cleaning.  The marine turtle

Select Language  ▼

Home  : Wildlife & Habitats  : Managed Species  : Sea Turtles  : Coastal Construction & Other Beach Activities  :

Mechanical Beach Cleaning Guidelines

Fishing Boating Hunting
Licenses &

Permits
Wildlife
Viewing

Wildlife &
Habitats Research Education Conservation

Page 206

http://myfwc.com/ask-fwc/
http://myfwc.com/about/
http://myfwc.com/contact/
http://myfwc.com/news/
http://myfwc.com/calendar/
http://myfwc.com/get-involved/
http://myfwc.com/sign-up/
http://myfwc.com/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/profiles/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/alligator/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/american-crocodile/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/bald-eagle/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/bear/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/deer/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/freshwater-turtles/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/gopher-tortoise/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/manatee/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/panther/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/5-species/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/protection/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/marine-turtle-permits/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/beach-activities/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/lighting/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/wildlife-lighting/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/research/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/mortality/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/nesting/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/education/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/viewing/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/how-to-help/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/decals/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/license-plates/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/links/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/meeting/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/disorientations/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/waterfowl/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/imperiled/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/nonnatives/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/invasive-plants/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/captive-wildlife/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/wildlife-assistance/
http://myfwc.com/media/418664/Seaturtle_ShareBeach_Cleaning.pdf
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=Ch0161/titl0161.htm&StatuteYear=2003&Title=-%3E2003-%3EChapter%20161
javascript:void(0)
http://myfwc.com/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/beach-activities/
http://myfwc.com/fishing/
http://myfwc.com/boating/
http://myfwc.com/hunting/
http://myfwc.com/license/
http://myfwc.com/viewing/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/
http://myfwc.com/research/
http://myfwc.com/education/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/
http://myfwc.com/


3/1/18, 4:46 PMMechanical Beach Cleaning Guidelines

Page 2 of 3http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/beach-activities/beach-cleaning-guidelines/

Living with Wildlife

Prescribed Fire

Habitat Information

Aquatic Habitat Conservation and
Restoration

survey, protection, and monitoring program shall be conducted only by individuals
possessing appropriate expertise in the protocol being followed and a valid F.A.C. Rule
68E-1 Permit issued by the Florida Fish & Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC).

3. In the event that mechanical beach cleaning occurs prior to completion of the marine
turtle nest survey, protection, and monitoring program, mechanical beach cleaning
shall not occur landward of the wrack or debris line on that beach until 65 days have
passed or after November 30, whichever is earlier.  The permittee shall contact the
Marine Turtle Permit Holder prior to reinitiating mechanical beach cleaning in that
area.

4. All nests left in place shall be marked with a circle of tape or string having a radius of
at least three (3) feet, centered at the approximated location of the clutch.  An
additional marker shall be placed at the base of the dune or seawall to ensure that
future location of the nests will be possible should the on-beach markings be lost.  No
mechanical cleaning equipment is allowed inside of this circle; however, careful
removal of material by hand is allowed.   All equipment operators should be briefed
on the types of marking utilized and should be able to easily contact the individual
responsible for the nest survey to verify any questionable areas.

5. In the event that on-beach nest markers are lost for any reason, including vandalism
or high water conditions, no mechanical beach cleaning shall be conducted until the
marine turtle permit holder identifies the nest and restores the markers.  In the event
that the nest cannot be found and may have been lost during high water conditions,
the permittee shall contact FWC staff at (850) 922-4330 to determine if mechanical
beach cleaning can resume.  All marine turtle protection conditions shall remain in
effect unless specifically waived in writing by FWC.

6. In order to avoid adverse impacts in the event that cleaning accidentally occurs over
a nest, mechanical beach cleaning equipment shall not penetrate more than two
inches into the surface of the beach.  This permit authorizes the use of a vehicle with
a maximum tire pressure of 10 p.s.i. and a rake or cleaning apparatus that limits
penetration into the surface of the beach to a maximum of two inches.  Box blades
and front or rear mounted blades are not authorized.  No other types of vehicles may
be operated on the beach pursuant to this permit.  Mechanized beach cleaning shall
be accomplished so that no ruts are formed on the beach.

7. Burial or storage of any debris (biotic or abiotic) collected is prohibited seaward of the
50 foot setback.  Removal of accumulated debris from the beach must occur
immediately after cleaning has been performed.

8. Operators of mechanical beach cleaning equipment shall avoid all native, salt tolerant
dune vegetation by a minimum of 10 feet.

Beach Cleaning Common Questions:
What authorizations do I need to beach clean?

To clean the beach using mechanized equipment, you need a permit from the
Florida Department of Environmental Protection. You may also need a permit
from your County or City.

Where is sea turtle nesting habitat?

Nesting habitat includes all sandy beaches adjoining the waters of the Atlantic
Ocean, the Gulf of Mexico, and the Straits of Florida in all coastal counties and
all inlet shorelines of those beaches (F.A.C. 62B-55.003). On the beach, nesting
habitat extends from the high tide line to the top of the dune or seawall.

When is sea turtle nesting season?

Sea turtle nesting season starts March 1 in Brevard through Broward Counties
(where most leatherback nesting occurs). In all other counties, May 1 is the
start of sea turtle nesting season. Although most nesting is finished by
September, the nesting season extends through October 31, when most eggs
have hatched (F.A.C. 62B-55).

Can I bury seaweed on the beach?

Page 207

http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/wildlife-assistance/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/living-with-wildlife/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/prescribed-fire/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/habitat/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/ahcr/
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ChapterHome.asp?Chapter=62B-55


3/1/18, 4:46 PMMechanical Beach Cleaning Guidelines

Page 3 of 3http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/beach-activities/beach-cleaning-guidelines/

You may request to bury organic matter in the wet portion of the beach on an
ebb tide. All other material must be removed immediately from the beach.

Why can't I just avoid the turtle crawls?

Data on the number of sea turtle emergences are used to determine the
"status" of sea turtle species whether they're endangered or threatened. The
state has worked hard to standardize their survey procedures to provide the
best data possible. It is impossible to assess turtle tracks, or to determine
whether the turtle nested or not, on a beach after mechanical cleaning has
occurred.

Whom to Call

      

Get FWC News Feeds  

Copyright 1999-2018 State of Florida
• Technical Help • EEO/AA/ADA • Privacy
Statement • Advertising Statement & Disclaimer
• Site Map

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission • Farris Bryant Building
620 S. Meridian St. • Tallahassee, FL
32399-1600 • (850) 488-4676

 

 

Pursuant to section 120.74, Florida Statutes,
the Fish and Wildlife Conservation

Commission has published its 2017 Agency
Regulatory Plan.

   

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public
records. If you do not want your e-mail address
released in response to a public records request,
do not send electronic mail to this entity.
Instead, contact this office by phone or in
writing.

Employee Resources (Password required)
Intranet Portal | Outlook E-Mail | Retiree Info
Disaster Information for FWC Employees

FWC Facts:
An octopus can change its shape and color to blend in with its surroundings.

Learn More at AskFWC

Page 208

http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/beach-activities/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/news-feeds/
http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/copyright.html
http://myfwc.com/contact/fwc-staff/webmaster/
http://myfwc.com/get-involved/employment/
http://myfwc.com/license/accessibility/ada/
http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/privacy.html
http://myfwc.com/Disclaimer/
http://myfwc.com/SiteMap/
http://www.adoptflorida.org/
https://www.employflorida.com/
http://myfwc.com/about/inside-fwc/ig/
http://www.floridahasarighttoknow.com/
http://myfwc.com/media/4301386/2017RegulatoryPlan.pdf
http://myfwc.com/about/inside-fwc/le/
http://www.visitflorida.com/en-us/fishing.html
http://www.visitflorida.com/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://portal2.fwc.state.fl.us/
https://outlook.office365.com/owa/
http://myfwc.com/about/inside-fwc/hr/for-retirees
http://myfwc.com/viewing/recreation/notices/
http://myfwc.com/ask-fwc/


3/2/18, 12:48 PMWildlife Lighting: Protecting Wildlife Through Responsible Lighting Practices

Page 1 of 2http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/

Ask FWC About Contact News Calendar Get Involved Sign Up Home

Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission

 search

Value of Conservation

How You Can Conserve

Outdoor Recreation

Living with Wildlife

Wildlife Assistance

Wildlife Lighting

Pollution

Certification

Certified

Communities

Grants

Resources

Contacts

Ordinances

Nonnative Species

Freshwater Programs

Saltwater Programs

Terrestrial

Federal Aid

Special Initiatives

  

The Wildlife Lighting Certification Program is a cooperative effort between the Florida Fish
and Wildlife Conservation Commission and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service designed to
educate the members of the public, the building industry, and government officials how to
minimize adverse impacts to wildlife by using proper lighting methods

The Concerns:
Lighting pollution is a serious threat to many types of wildlife. Each year, artificial lights
cause disruption of behavior, injury and death to thousands of migrating birds, sea turtles
and other reptiles, amphibians, and mammals, and invertebrates. To read more about the
effects of lighting on these animals, go to About Lighting Pollution.

The Solution:
First and foremost, there is simply NO SUBSTITUTE FOR NATURALLY DARK HABITAT.
Turning out unnecessary lights is simplest, most effective, and most energy efficient
solution to this issue.

However, for situations where artificial lighting is absolutely required for safety and
security, the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission  and the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service have teamed up to develop the Wildlife Lighting Certification Program.  This
program is designed to educate the members of the public, the building industry, and
government officials how to minimize artificial light impacts to wildlife by using proper
lighting methods and identifying appropriate lighting fixtures, shields, and lamps. 
Appropriate wildlife lighting meets ALL THREE of the criteria below. For more information on
these criteria, click on Certification Process.

Select Language  ▼

Home  : Conservation  : How You Can Conserve  : Wildlife Lighting

Wildlife Lighting

Fishing Boating Hunting
Licenses &

Permits
Wildlife
Viewing

Wildlife &
Habitats Research Education Conservation

Page 209

http://myfwc.com/ask-fwc/
http://myfwc.com/about/
http://myfwc.com/contact/
http://myfwc.com/news/
http://myfwc.com/calendar/
http://myfwc.com/get-involved/
http://myfwc.com/sign-up/
http://myfwc.com/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/value/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/recreation/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/wildlife/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/assistnuisance-wildlife/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/pollution/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/certification/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/certified/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/communities/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/grants/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/resources/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/contacts/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/ordinances/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/nonnative-species/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/freshwater/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/saltwater/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/terrestrial/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/federal/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/special-initiatives/
http://myfwc.com/
http://www.fws.gov/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/pollution/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/certification/
javascript:void(0)
http://myfwc.com/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/
http://myfwc.com/fishing/
http://myfwc.com/boating/
http://myfwc.com/hunting/
http://myfwc.com/license/
http://myfwc.com/viewing/
http://myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/
http://myfwc.com/research/
http://myfwc.com/education/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/
http://myfwc.com/


3/2/18, 12:48 PMWildlife Lighting: Protecting Wildlife Through Responsible Lighting Practices

Page 2 of 2http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/

Keep it LOW - mount the fixture as low as possible to minimize light trespass, and use the
lowest amount of light needed for the task

Keep it SHIELDED - fully shield the light so bulbs and/or glowing lenses are not visible to
minimize light trespass

Keep it LONG - use long wavelength light sources (ambers and reds) in the appropriate
lighting fixtures

How to Use This Site:

Lighting manufacturers, distributors and vendors: To determine if an
appropriate fixture and/or lamp could be approved as Wildlife Lighting Certified and
be placed on our certified web page, please view our Wildlife Lighting Certification
Process.  
Home Owners, Property Managers, Developers, Code Enforcement Officers,
and other interested parties: To minimize artificial lighting, please explore wildlife-
friendly lighting options on the Certified Fixtures and Bulbs page.
Communities: To become a designated Wildlife Lighting Certified Community please
see our certification process page.
Grants: To apply for lighting grants, please view the lighting grants program page.
Information: To learn more about wildlife lighting issues and the effects of artificial
light on wildlife, please view pages on About Lighting Pollution and Wildlife Lighting
Publications.

      

Get FWC News Feeds  

Copyright 1999-2018 State of Florida
• Technical Help • EEO/AA/ADA • Privacy
Statement • Advertising Statement & Disclaimer
• Site Map

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission • Farris Bryant Building
620 S. Meridian St. • Tallahassee, FL
32399-1600 • (850) 488-4676

 

 

Pursuant to section 120.74, Florida Statutes,
the Fish and Wildlife Conservation

Commission has published its 2017 Agency
Regulatory Plan.

   

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public
records. If you do not want your e-mail address
released in response to a public records request,
do not send electronic mail to this entity.
Instead, contact this office by phone or in
writing.

Employee Resources (Password required)
Intranet Portal | Outlook E-Mail | Retiree Info
Disaster Information for FWC Employees

FWC Facts:
Healthy lakes with vibrant fisheries enhance property values & development potential and justify the need for

sustainable development practices to protect them into the future.

Learn More at AskFWC

Page 210

http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/certification/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/certified/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/communities/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/grants/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/pollution/
http://myfwc.com/conservation/you-conserve/lighting/resources/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/social/
http://myfwc.com/news/news-feeds/
http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/copyright.html
http://myfwc.com/contact/fwc-staff/webmaster/
http://myfwc.com/get-involved/employment/
http://myfwc.com/license/accessibility/ada/
http://www.myflorida.com/myflorida/privacy.html
http://myfwc.com/Disclaimer/
http://myfwc.com/SiteMap/
http://www.adoptflorida.org/
https://www.employflorida.com/
http://myfwc.com/about/inside-fwc/ig/
http://www.floridahasarighttoknow.com/
http://myfwc.com/media/4301386/2017RegulatoryPlan.pdf
http://myfwc.com/about/inside-fwc/le/
http://www.visitflorida.com/en-us/fishing.html
http://www.visitflorida.com/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://portal2.fwc.state.fl.us/
https://outlook.office365.com/owa/
http://myfwc.com/about/inside-fwc/hr/for-retirees
http://myfwc.com/viewing/recreation/notices/
http://myfwc.com/ask-fwc/


 
FW

C
 A

PP
R

O
V

ED
 S

EA
 T

U
R

TL
E 

LI
G

H
TI

N
G

  
 

A
ll 

ex
te

ri
or

 li
gh

tin
g 

fo
r t

he
 e

nt
ir

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
re

a 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

lig
ht

in
g 

m
us

t b
e  

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 F
W

C
 re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f w

he
th

er
 o

r n
ot

 th
e a

re
a 

is 
se

aw
ar

d 
of

 th
e 

C
C

C
L 

 A
C

C
EP

TA
BL

E 
FI

X
TU

R
ES

  
A

ll 
ex

te
rio

r f
ix

tu
re

s o
n 

th
e 

se
aw

ar
d 

an
d 

th
e 

sh
or

e 
pe

rp
en

di
cu

la
r s

id
es

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

(a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

la
nd

w
ar

d 
sid

e 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

if 
th

ey
 a

re
 v

is
ib

le
 fr

om
 th

e 
be

ac
h)

  
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

w
el

l s
hi

el
de

d,
 fu

ll 
cu

t-o
ff,

 d
ow

nw
ar

d 
di

re
ct

ed
 ty

pe
 fi

xt
ur

es
.  

A
ll 

ex
te

rio
r f

ix
tu

re
s 

on
 th

e 
la

nd
w

ar
d 

sid
e 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
di

re
ct

ed
 

on
ly

.  
 A

C
C

EP
TA

BL
E 

LA
M

PS
 / 

BU
LB

S 
A

N
D

 O
TH

ER
 L

IG
H

T 
SO

U
R

C
ES

 
Lo

ng
 w

av
e 

le
ng

th
 li

gh
ts

, e
.g

. t
ho

se
 th

at
 p

ro
du

ce
 li

gh
t t

ha
t m

ea
su

re
s g

re
at

er
 th

an
 5

60
 n

an
om

et
er

s o
n 

a 
sp

ec
tro

sc
op

e,
 a

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r a

ll 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
vi

si
bl

e 
fro

m
 a

nd
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
m

ar
in

e 
tu

rtl
e 

ne
st

in
g 

be
ac

he
s.

  B
rig

ht
 w

hi
te

 li
gh

t, 
su

ch
 a

s 
m

et
al

 h
al

id
e,

 h
al

og
en

, f
lu

or
es

ce
nt

, m
er

cu
ry

 v
ap

or
 a

nd
 in

ca
nd

es
ce

nt
 la

m
ps

 w
ill

 n
ot

 
be

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
 F

ilt
er

s a
re

 u
nr

el
ia

bl
e 

an
d 

no
t a

llo
w

ed
.  

 L
im

ite
d 

us
e 

of
 s

ho
rte

r w
av

el
en

gt
h 

lig
ht

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 in

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 d
ire

ct
 a

nd
 in

di
re

ct
 li

gh
t o

r g
lo

w
 

co
ul

d 
no

t p
os

si
bl

y 
be

 v
is

ib
le

 fr
om

 th
e 

be
ac

h 
up

on
 a

pp
ro

va
l b

y 
FW

C
. 

 
A

C
C

EP
TA

BL
E 

LA
M

PS
 

x 
Lo

w
 P

re
ss

ur
e 

So
di

um
 (L

PS
)  

  1
8w

, 3
5w

 
x 

R
ed

, o
ra

ng
e 

or
 a

m
be

r L
ED

   
(tr

ue
 re

d,
 o

ra
ng

e 
or

 a
m

be
r d

io
de

s, 
 N

O
T 

fil
te

rs
) 

x 
Tr

ue
 re

d 
ne

on
 

x 
O

th
er

 li
gh

tin
g 

so
ur

ce
s t

ha
t p

ro
du

ce
 li

gh
t o

f 5
60

 n
m

 o
r l

on
ge

r  
 

   
   

   
   

  *
**

* 
FW

C
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

lig
ht

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
at

 ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.m
yf

w
c.

co
m

/w
ild

lif
eh

ab
ita

ts
/m

an
ag

ed
/s

ea
-tu

rtl
es

/tu
rtl

es
-li

gh
ts

/  
 *

**
**

 
  

 ST
A

TE
M

EN
T 

A
BO

U
T 

TU
R

TL
E 

G
LA

SS
 O

N
 L

IG
H

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

 
Th

e 
pl

an
 s

ha
ll 

re
fle

ct
 th

at
 ti

nt
ed

 g
la

ss
 o

r f
ilm

 w
ith

 a
 v

is
ib

le
 li

gh
t t

ra
ns

m
itt

an
ce

 v
al

ue
 o

f f
or

ty
-f

iv
e 

(4
5)

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
r l

es
s s

ha
ll 

be
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 a
ll 

w
in

do
w

s a
nd

 
do

or
s w

ith
in

 li
ne

 o
f s

ig
ht

 o
f t

he
 b

ea
ch

.  
Th

is 
in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
se

aw
ar

d 
an

d 
sh

or
e-

pe
rp

en
di

cu
la

r s
id

es
 o

f t
he

 st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  T

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
no

te
s s

ec
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

Li
gh

tin
g 

Pl
an

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 d

ra
w

in
g 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

FD
EP

 P
er

m
it 

C
on

di
tio

ns
.  

   
 

 TH
E 

FO
LL

O
W

IN
G

 A
R

E 
N

O
T 

A
LL

O
W

ED
 

 ●
 P

riv
at

e 
ba

lc
on

y 
lig

ht
s  

  ●
 U

p 
lig

ht
s  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
● 

Tr
ee

 st
ra

p 
do

w
nl

ig
ht

s  
   

   
   

   
  ●

 D
ec

or
at

iv
e 

lig
ht

in
g,

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r h
um

an
 sa

fe
ty

 o
r s

ec
ur

ity
 

 ●
 P

on
d 

lig
ht

s  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

● 
D

un
e 

w
al

ko
ve

r l
ig

ht
in

g 
   

 ●
 F

ou
nt

ai
n 

lig
ht

s o
n 

be
ac

h 
or

 sh
or

e 
pe

rp
en

di
cu

la
r s

id
e 

of
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

   
   

   
  

        

Page 211

http://www.myfwc.com/wildlifehabitats/managed/sea-turtles/turtles-lights/


EX
A

M
PL

ES
 O

F 
TU

R
TL

E 
FR

IE
N

D
LY

 F
IX

TU
R

ES
 

 
FI

X
TU

R
E 

LA
M

P 
&

 
W

A
TT

A
G

E 
M

O
U

N
TI

N
G

 
TY

PE
 &

 
H

EI
G

H
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
 

an
d/

or
 

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ei

lin
g 

M
ou

nt
 C

yl
in

de
r 

(w
ith

 in
te

rio
r b

la
ck

 b
af

fle
s)

 
 

 
  

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

  

C
ei

lin
g 

Su
rf

ac
e 

 
if 

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 sh

or
e 

pe
rp

en
di

cu
la

r o
r b

ea
ch

 
sid

e 
of

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
al

lo
w

 
on

 g
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 o
nl

y 

In
te

rio
r B

la
ck

 B
af

fle
s 

W
al

l M
ou

nt
 C

yl
in

de
r D

ow
n 

Li
gh

t 
(w

ith
 in

te
rio

r b
la

ck
 b

af
fle

s)
 

 

 

 R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

  

W
al

l M
ou

nt
  

D
ow

nw
ar

d 
D

ire
ct

ed
 

 8
 ft

 fr
om

 fl
oo

r 
 

If 
 lo

ca
te

d 
on

 sh
or

e 
pe

rp
en

di
cu

la
r o

r b
ea

ch
 

sid
e 

of
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

al
lo

w
 

on
 fi

rs
t h

ab
ita

bl
e 

flo
or

 
on

ly
 

In
te

rio
r B

la
ck

 B
af

fle
s 

 H
ex

 c
el

l l
ou

ve
rs

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

de
cr

ea
se

 w
al

l w
as

h 

R
ec

es
se

d 
C

ei
lin

g 
C

an
ist

er
 

  

 
 

 
  

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

 Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
sh

or
t 

w
av

el
en

gt
h 

la
m

ps
 

m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
co

ve
re

d 
dr

iv
ew

ay
 

en
tr

y 
on

 la
nd

w
ar

d 
sid

e 
of

 st
ru

ct
ur

es
  

x 
H

al
og

en
 la

m
p 

x 
PA

R
 sp

ot
 la

m
ps

 
x 

LE
D

 la
m

ps
 

x 
H

PS
 la

m
ps

 
x 

C
om

pa
ct

 
Fl

uo
re

sc
en

t 

R
ec

es
se

d 
C

ei
lin

g 
If 

 lo
ca

te
d 

on
 sh

or
e 

pe
rp

en
di

cu
la

r o
r b

ea
ch

 
sid

e 
of

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
al

lo
w

 
on

 g
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 o
nl

y 
 

In
te

rio
r b

la
ck

 b
af

fle
s 

 
H

ex
 c

el
l (

ho
ne

yc
om

b)
 lo

uv
er

 
         

  

Page 212



   R
ec

es
se

d 
an

d 
W

al
l M

ou
nt

ed
 S

te
p 

Li
gh

ts
 

(lo
uv

er
ed

 o
r d

ow
nw

ar
d 

di
re

ct
ed

) 
 

  
 

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

  

W
al

l M
ou

nt
 

 M
ax

im
um

 h
ei

gh
t 

24
 in

ch
es

 o
n 

G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r 
on

ly
 

 A
bo

ve
 G

ro
un

d 
Fl

oo
r M

ax
 h

ei
gh

t 
12

 in
ch

es
  

G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r a
nd

  
Se

co
nd

 le
ve

l, 
an

d 
 p

oo
l  

D
ec

k 

If 
on

 p
er

im
et

er
 o

f p
oo

l d
ec

k,
 m

us
t 

be
 m

ou
nt

ed
 d

ire
ct

ed
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 
be

ac
h.

 

Bo
lla

rd
 

(w
ith

 d
ow

nw
ar

d 
di

re
ct

ed
 lo

uv
er

s)
 

 

 

18
w

 L
PS

 
 R

ed
/o

ra
ng

e/
am

be
r  

LE
D

 
   

M
ax

im
um

 h
ei

gh
t 

42
 in

 
Pa

rk
in

g 
ar

ea
s, 

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 w

al
kw

ay
, 

la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 p

at
hw

ay
 a

nd
 

po
ol

 D
ec

k 
 

18
0°

 to
 2

70
° b

ea
ch

 s
id

e 
sh

ie
ld

s o
n 

an
y 

fix
tu

re
 o

n 
pe

rim
et

er
 o

f p
oo

l 
de

ck
 o

r i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
be

ac
h.

 

H
ig

h 
In

te
ns

ity
 F

ul
l C

ut
 O

ff 
 P

ol
e 

Li
gh

ts
 

 

   
   

   
 

18
-3

5 
w

  L
PS

 
(if

  t
w

in
 h

ea
d,

 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f  
 3

6w
 

to
ta

l) 
 O

ra
ng

e/
am

be
r L

ED
 

  

Po
le

  -
 m

ax
im

um
 

he
ig

ht
 1

2 
fe

et
 

Pa
rk

in
g 

A
re

a 
 La

nd
w

ar
d 

si
de

 o
f 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
on

ly
. 

B
ea

ch
 S

id
e 

sh
ie

ld
s a

nd
/o

r l
ou

ve
rs

 
fo

r a
ny

 fi
xt

ur
e 

w
ith

in
 li

ne
 o

f s
ig

ht
 

of
 b

ea
ch

. 

Pa
ve

r L
ig

ht
s 

 

  
 

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

 

In
 G

ro
un

d 
m

ou
nt

 
Pa

rk
in

g 
ar

ea
s, 

dr
iv

ew
ay

s, 
 p

at
hw

ay
s, 

po
ol

 d
ec

ks
 

       

 

Page 213



La
nd

sc
ap

e/
Pa

th
w

ay
 L

ig
ht

in
g 

   
  

 
 

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

   

G
ro

un
d 

m
ou

nt
  

M
ax

im
um

 h
ei

gh
t 

12
 in

ch
es

 

G
ro

un
d 

Le
ve

l, 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

 

 

Si
gn

ag
e 

 

 
 

  R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

 

 M
us

t b
e 

m
ou

nt
ed

 
w

ith
 li

gh
t 

di
re

ct
ed

 d
ow

n 
on

 
to

 s
ig

n.
  

 N
O

T 
U

P 

Si
gn

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 o

n 
la

nd
w

ar
d 

si
de

 o
f 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

he
n 

po
ss

ib
le

 
an

d 
 m

ou
nt

ed
 

pe
rp

en
di

cu
la

r t
o 

th
e 

 
be

ac
h.

 

 

G
ar

ag
e 

Li
gh

tin
g 

 
 (P

ho
en

ix
) 

 

35
w

 L
PS

 
 A

m
be

r/O
ra

ng
e/

R
ed

   
LE

D
 

G
ar

ag
e 

C
ei

lin
g 

G
ar

ag
e 

If 
a 

pa
rk

in
g 

ga
ra

ge
 is

 n
ot

 fu
lly

 
en

cl
os

ed
 w

ith
 so

lid
 w

al
ls,

 w
ith

ou
t 

w
in

do
w

s, 
 lo

uv
er

s, 
or

 sc
re

en
s s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
in

te
rio

r i
s 

no
t v

isi
bl

e 
fro

m
 

an
y 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 b

ea
ch

, o
nl

y 
 L

PS
 o

r 
am

be
r/o

ra
ng

e 
LE

D
 la

m
ps

  s
ha

ll 
be

 
us

ed
.  

A
dd

iti
on

al
 s

hi
el

ds
 m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

if 
pa

rk
in

g 
is 

ab
ov

e 
gr

ou
nd

 le
ve

l. 

C
ha

nn
el

 / 
R

op
e 

Li
gh

tin
g 

 
   

 

 
     

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

  N
O

T 
co

lo
re

d 
pl

as
tic

 
tu

bi
ng

 w
ith

 w
hi

te
 

lig
ht

s 
 N

o 
W

hi
te

 L
ED

 

M
us

t b
e 

m
ou

nt
ed

 
re

ce
ss

ed
 

un
de

r s
te

ps
,  

ba
r, 

et
c.

 a
nd

 
di

re
ct

ed
 

do
w

n 
to

 
as

su
re

 th
at

 
lig

ht
 so

ur
ce

 
or

 re
fle

ct
ed

 
lig

ht
 is

 n
ot

 
vi

si
bl

e 
fro

m
 

be
ac

h 
 

Po
ol

 d
ec

k,
 st

ep
s, 

po
ol

 
ba

rs
. 

 

Page 214



W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
 L

ig
ht

in
g 

        

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

 

Li
gh

t m
us

t b
e 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
or

 
ho

riz
on

ta
lly

  
di

re
ct

ed
  

 D
O

 N
O

T 
di

re
ct

 li
gh

t u
p 

 

Su
bm

er
ge

d 
lig

ht
s a

re
 

on
ly

 a
llo

w
ed

 o
n 

la
nd

w
ar

d 
si

de
 o

f 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

on
ly

 if
 

fu
lly

 s
hi

el
de

d 
fro

m
 

be
ac

h 
by

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 

 

U
nd

er
w

at
er

 S
w

im
m

in
g 

Po
ol

 L
ig

ht
in

g 
        

R
ed

/o
ra

ng
e/

am
be

r  
LE

D
 

 

 
 

 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Eg

re
ss

 L
ig

ht
in

g 

  

 
       

R
ed

  L
ED

 E
xi

t s
ig

ns
 

  Fu
ll 

cu
t o

ff 
do

w
nw

ar
d 

di
re

ct
ed

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

eg
re

ss
 

fix
tu

re
s 

m
ay

 u
se

 
sh

or
t w

av
el

en
gt

h 
la

m
ps

 
 

 
 

Sh
or

t w
av

el
en

gt
h 

la
m

pe
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
eg

re
ss

 fi
xt

ur
es

 m
us

t b
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 o
n 

fix
tu

re
 sc

he
du

le
 a

nd
 

pl
an

s t
o 

be
 o

n 
se

pa
ra

te
 c

irc
ui

t t
ha

t 
w

ill
 o

nl
y 

ill
um

in
at

e 
fix

tu
re

s d
ur

in
g 

po
w

er
 o

ut
ag

e 

R
ev

ise
d 

4/
26

/1
1 

Page 215

http://www.exitlightco.com/category/Cast-Aluminum-Exit-Signs.html
http://www.exitlightco.com/category/Cast-Aluminum-Exit-Signs.html
http://stat.dealtime.com/DealFrame/DealFrame.cmp?bm=516&BEFID=554&acode=541&code=541&aon=%5e534&crawler_id=60054&dealId=IXLaDomy7ulAzFSEL_nrjA%3D%3D&prjID=ds&searchID=&Mrt=&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fdp%2FB002LT6UZM%2Fref%3Dasc_df_B002LT6UZM1005535%3Fsmid%3DA1OK73E5QG2PVY%26tag%3Ddealtime-office-mp010f-20%26linkCode%3Dasn%26creative%3D380341%26creativeASIN%3DB002LT6UZM&DealName=LED%20Red%20Exit%20Sign%20w%2FBattery%20Back-Up%2C%20Black%20-%2012%22%20x%207.5%22%20x%201.5%22&MerchantID=301531&HasLink=yes&frameId=&category=63&AR=-1&NG=1&GR=1&ND=1&PN=1&PT=0&RR=-1&ST=&DB=sdcprod&MT=msnFeed&MN=msnFeed&FPT=SDCF&NDS=1&NMS=1&NDP=1&MRS=&PD=0&brnId=3683&lnkId=8053111&IsFtr=0&IsSmart=0&crn=USD%5eUSD&DlLng=&istrsmrc=1&isathrsl=0&dlprc=116.45&CT=16&TstId=&op=1000246
http://stat.dealtime.com/DealFrame/DealFrame.cmp?bm=516&BEFID=554&acode=541&code=541&aon=%5e534&crawler_id=60054&dealId=IXLaDomy7ulAzFSEL_nrjA%3D%3D&prjID=ds&searchID=&Mrt=&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.amazon.com%2Fdp%2FB002LT6UZM%2Fref%3Dasc_df_B002LT6UZM1005535%3Fsmid%3DA1OK73E5QG2PVY%26tag%3Ddealtime-office-mp010f-20%26linkCode%3Dasn%26creative%3D380341%26creativeASIN%3DB002LT6UZM&DealName=LED%20Red%20Exit%20Sign%20w%2FBattery%20Back-Up%2C%20Black%20-%2012%22%20x%207.5%22%20x%201.5%22&MerchantID=301531&HasLink=yes&frameId=&category=63&AR=-1&NG=1&GR=1&ND=1&PN=1&PT=0&RR=-1&ST=&DB=sdcprod&MT=msnFeed&MN=msnFeed&FPT=SDCF&NDS=1&NMS=1&NDP=1&MRS=&PD=0&brnId=3683&lnkId=8053111&IsFtr=0&IsSmart=0&crn=USD%5eUSD&DlLng=&istrsmrc=1&isathrsl=0&dlprc=116.45&CT=16&TstId=&op=1000246
http://www.bega-us.com/groupdetail.aspx?groupid=127&familyid=16


Page 216



Hallandale Beach, Florida - Code of Ordinances 

Chapter 6 - ANIMALS 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

 

1. Sec. 6-8. - Enforcement. 

It shall be the duty of all city law enforcement personnel, and the city manager, by and 
through his duly appointed subordinates, to enforce the provisions of this chapter. Officers 
of the Broward County Animal Care and Regulation Division shall have full authority to 
enforce the provisions of this chapter and all applicable provisions of the county code 
within the city. 

(Code 1980, § 6-8; Ord. No. 2002-19, § 1, 10-15-2002) 

2. Sec. 6-9. - Prohibited activities. 

The following activities involving direction illumination of portions of the beach are 
prohibited on the beach at nighttime during the nesting season for the protection of nesting 
females, nests, and hatchling marine turtles: 

(1) 
The operation of motorized vehicles, except emergency and law enforcement vehicles or those 

permitted on the beach for marine turtle conservation or research. 

(2) 
The building of campfires or bonfires. 

(Ord. No. 2001-26, § 2, 12-4-2001) 

3. Sec. 6-10. - Standards for new development. 

To provide the highest level of protection for nesting marine turtles and their hatchlings, the 
following standards apply to artificial light sources on new coastal construction: 

(1) 
Exterior artificial light fixtures must be designed and positioned so that: 

a. 

Page 217



The point source of light or any reflective surface of the light fixture is not directly visible from 
the beach; 

b. 
Areas seaward of the frontal dune are not directly, indirectly or cumulatively illuminated. 

(2) 
Exterior artificial light fixtures within direct line-of-sight of the beach are considered 

appropriately designed if: 

a. 
Completely shielded downlight only fixtures or recessed fixtures having low wattage (i.e. 50 

watts or less) "bug" type bulbs and nonreflective interior surfaces are used. Other fixtures 
that have appropriate shields, louvers, or cut-off features may also be used if they are in 
compliance with subsection (1)a. and b. above; and 

b. 
All fixtures are mounted as low in elevation as possible through the use of low mounted wall 

fixtures, low bollards, and ground-level fixtures. 

(3) 
Floodlights, uplights or spotlights for decorative and accent purposes that are directly visible 

from the beach, or which indirectly or cumulatively illuminate the beach, shall not be used. 

(4) 
Exterior lights used expressly for safety or security purposes shall be limited to the minimum 

number and configuration required to achieve their functional role(s). The use of motion 
detector switches that keep lights off except when approached and that switch lights on for 
the minimum duration possible is preferred. 

(5) 
Only low intensity lighting shall be used in parking areas within line-of-sight of the beach. Such 

lighting shall be: 

a. 
Set on a base which raises the source of light no higher than 48 inches off the ground; and 

b. 
Positioned or shielded so that the light is cast downward and the source of light or any 

reflective surface of the light fixture is not visible from the beach and does not directly or 
indirectly illuminate the beach. 

(6) 
Parking areas and roadways, including any paved or unpaved areas upon which motorized 

vehicles will park or operate, shall be designed and located to prevent vehicular headlights 
from directly or indirectly illuminating the beach. 

(7) 

Page 218



Vehicular lighting, parking area lighting, and roadway lighting shall be shielded from the beach 
through the use of ground-level barriers. Ground-level barriers must not interfere with 
marine turtle nesting or hatchling emergence, or cause short- or long-term damage to the 
beach/dune system. 

(8) 
Tinted glass shall be installed on all windows and glass doors of single or multi-story structures 

within line-of-sight of the beach. 

(9) 
Use of appropriately shielded low pressure sodium vapor lamps and fixtures are preferred for 

high-intensity lighting applications such as lighting parking areas and roadways, providing 
security, and similar applications. 

(10) 
Temporary lighting of construction sites during the marine turtle nesting season shall be 

restricted to the minimal amount necessary and shall incorporate all of the standards of 
this article. 

(Ord. No. 2001-26, § 2, 12-4-2001) 

4. Sec. 6-11. - Standards for existing development. 

modified 

By January 1, 2003, all light sources or reflective surfaces illuminated by such 
sources that are visible from the beach shall comply with the following: 

(1) 
Existing artificial light fixtures shall be repositioned, modified, or removed so that: 

a. 
The point source of light or any reflective surface of the light fixture is not directly visible 
from the beach; 

b. 
Areas seaward of the frontal dune are not directly, indirectly or cumulatively illuminated. 

(2) 
The following measures shall be taken to reduce or eliminate the negative effects of 
existing exterior artificial lighting: 

a. 
Reposition fixtures so that the point source of light or any reflective surface of the light 
fixture is no longer visible from the beach; 

b. 
Replace fixtures having an exposed light source with fixtures containing recessed light 
sources or shields; 

Page 219



c. 
Replace traditional light bulbs with yellow "bug" bulbs not exceeding 25 watts, low pressure 
sodium vapor bulbs, red light emitting diodes or true neon light sources; 

d. 
Replace nondirectional fixtures with directional fixtures that point down and away from the 
beach; 

e. 
Replace fixtures having transparent or translucent coverings with fixtures having opaque 
shields covering an arc of at least 180 degrees and extending an appropriate distance 
below bottom edge of the fixture on the seaward side so that the light source or any 
reflective surface of the light fixture is not visible from the beach; 

f. 
Replace pole lamps with low profile, low-level luminaries so that the light source or any 
reflective surface of the light fixture is not visible from the beach; 

g. 
Plant or improve vegetation buffers between the light source and the beach to screen light 
from the beach; 

h. 
Construct a ground level barrier to shield light sources from the beach. Ground level 
barriers must not interfere with marine turtle nesting or hatchling emergence, or cause 
short- or long-term damage to the beach/dune system; 

i. 
Permanently remove or disable any fixture, which cannot be brought into compliance with 
the provisions of these standards. 

(Ord. No. 2001-26, § 2, 12-4-2001) 

 

  
	  

Page 220



3/1/18, 1:04 AMX-Large Electric Beach Wagon with Special Sand Wheels

Page 1 of 4https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-3ft-x-5ft.html

Handtrucks2GO ∠  Carts ∠  Beach Carts

Sandhopper	Motorized	Beach	Wagon	34"	x	60" Print

Up for sale here is the  Sandhopper 34" wide x 60" long electric beach wagon, is the Extra Large wagon in the Sandhopper

beach wagon family.This battery powered beach cart is fully motorized and features a variable forward and reverse speed

throttle (0-4 MPH) and hand brake, both conveniently located on the specially designed steering handle.

They are equipped with the famous Wheeleez low pressure tires, which are known to be the ultimate tire for beach sand use.

Choose from 30 cm. x 18 cm. (12" x 7") or 42 cm x 20 cm. (16" x 8") tires. Now also available with 15" turf tires.

The Sandhopper has a standard range of 3-4 miles on a full charge (on the standard 24 volt 22 AH battery). Upgrade to

heavier duty batteries for up to a 10 mile range. Will carry up to 500lbs with the 12" wheels and 700lbs with the 16" wheels.

The Sandhopper is the ideal tool for families  (especially young children, special needs, and elderly members) to take their

equipment to the outdoors and enjoy the fresh air at the beach, which was next to impossible in the past. Full line of 

accessories to accommodate those families to make their adventures much more pleasant and enjoyable. It is also ideal for

resorts located on the beach front, allowing them to make 1 or 2 trips to bring beach equipment, drinks, and food to the

beachfront, instead of having to go back and forth numerous times.

Besides being the best electric beach wagon, it can also easily go over  steep hills, ramps  and rough terrain.Besides being the

best electric beach wagon, it can also easily go over  steep hills, ramps  and rough terrain. 

The all aluminum built cart is Made in the USA and comes standard with a sand color powder coat finish deck, silver uprights,

and black rails. Special custom colors for the deck and rails include: Black, Blue, or Red, (delays lead time to 1 week intead

of 3 days).

Also available in these other sizes:

 

(1 reviews)
 

FREE Free Shipping!

Login Register Help Center Track Orders About Us Government Sales FAQ's Reorder Financing

Free Shipping
*On Most Products

+ No Sales Tax
*Excluding CA & NJ

"
 

 $0.00

VIEW CART
 
CHECKOUT

# GoNeed	Help?	Call	our	Solu?on	Specialists	Today!	888.811.5941	/	732.276.7164

HAND TRUCKS CARTS PALLET JACKS DOLLIES HOISTS LIFTS CUSTOM LOADING DOCK EQUIPMENT BRANDS

∠ ∠

ADD	TO	CART

Ask	A	Ques?on	 Send	to	friend 	Ship	Time

ITEM	-	S3460-30

Quantity: 1

OUR	PRICE	-	$3074.99	

Wheels:

12 Inch Wheeleez

Finish:

Sand

Battery:

24 Volt 22 AH

Accessories:

 Solar Charger( +$150.00) 

 Lock Box Safe( +$100.00) 

 Seat (1)( +$95.00) 

 Seats (2)( +$190.00) 

 Hitch Attachment( +$400.00) 

 Cooler Tray( +$120.00) 

 Cooler Tray with Table Top(

+$210.00) 
 Surf Rack( +$230.00) 

 Cup + Fishing Pole Holder(

+$85.00) 
 USB Port( +$100.00) 

&
DETAILS

0

Page 221

https://handtrucks2go.com/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Carts/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Beach-Carts/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-3ft-x-5ft.html?printable=Y
https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper.html
javascript:%20scrollToReviews()
https://handtrucks2go.com/login.php
https://handtrucks2go.com/register.php
https://handtrucks2go.com/help.php
https://handtrucks2go.com/order-tracking.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/about-us.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/Government-Contract-and-Sales.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/frequently-asked-questions.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/quick_reorder.php
https://handtrucks2go.com/financing-for-hand-trucks-and-all-moving-equipment.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/
https://handtrucks2go.com/#tooltip_link_tooltip
https://handtrucks2go.com/cart.php
https://handtrucks2go.com/cart.php?mode=checkout
javascript:void(0);
tel:888.811.5941
tel:732.276.7164
https://handtrucks2go.com/Hand-Truck/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Carts/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Pallet-Jacks/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Dollies/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Hoist-Lifts-and-Cranes/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Lift-trucks/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Build-Your-Own-Cart/
https://handtrucks2go.com/Loading-Dock-Equipment/
https://handtrucks2go.com/manufacturers.php
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/sand-finish.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/blue-finish.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/red-finish.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/2-coolertray-608666229c.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/3-drinktray_-877b5dd14a.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/1-%20solar-9f64413451.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/5-seats-97c27a0106.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/6-safe-38acb149b9.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/Sanshopper%20Truck%20Option-1d20a672bd.png
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/7-surf.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/cup-holder-03.png
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/s2448-15-detailed-02.jpg
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/usb-charger-e1a6c9e4fc.png
https://handtrucks2go.com/images/D/Proudly%20Made%20In%20The%20USA-89cde6b2f6.png
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-3ft-x-5ft.html#tab0


3/1/18, 1:04 AMX-Large Electric Beach Wagon with Special Sand Wheels

Page 2 of 4https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-3ft-x-5ft.html

Sandhopper Mini Electric Beach Wagon 20" Wide x 40" Long

Sandhopper Electric Beach Wagon 24" Wide x 48" Long

Sandhopper Electric Beach Wagon 30" Wide x 48" Long

Sandhopper Electric Beach Wagon 30" Wide x 60" Long

Wagon weight: 95 - 145 lbs depending on size

Motor Specs: Geared Motor, 18;1 Ratio, 24 Volt

Please Note: All accessories will come in either black or sand color.

Electric Beach Wagon for the Sand

With the Sandhopper getting all your stuff to the beach will actually be something to look forward to.  Be the envy of all beach

goers with this amazing cart, beef it up with some value added accessories to make it even more unbelievable.  Families have

been using the Sandhopper beach wagons in southern California for the past 12 years, now we are proud to offer it on the web,

so you too can enjoy it, wherever you are!

On the control panel of the High performance Sandhopper there is a toggle switch that can control the minimum and maximum

speed of the Sandhopper. The braking system includes a brake handle that can apply the brakes to the rear wheels and can be

used as a parking brake.

The controller also has a feature to apply the brakes electronically to the rear wheels via the high performance fan cooled drive

motor, as the wagon slows down it also regenerates the batteries to maximize the range of the Sandhopper. This setup is great

for customers that go down steep hills and want maximum control of the wagon.

 Make sure to have a look at the Detailed Images up on top, to see the full line of available add-ons. 

Sandhopper	Motorized	Beach	Wagon	34"	x	60"	-	Reviews

LED display battery level indicator on steering handle

On the front control panel there is a key switch, included

Charging port for the included home charger and optional solar charger

Rear wheel stainless steel disk brake to control your down hill speed.

Regenerative braking system adds life to your battery power

Side rails are all independently removable and are very resistant to deformation.

All aluminum Unibody deck is protected by a powder coated paint

Under carriage Is also powder coated to protect from the salt air

Total width of the Sandhopper is also dependent on the wheel type and size but they all can go through a 34-inch

doorway.

Inside Usable Dimensions of platform 32" wide x 58" long

Only  3 welds on the complete wagon, what that means, is all the parts are serviceable and replaceable.

Years of perfecting the design to make the perfect wagon that will last for many years of usage in harsh environments.

Comes fully assembled

90 day manufacturer warranty

Ques?ons?	Ask	our	experts:

888.811.5941
-	OR	-

Call me now

Page 222

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ws0OuBuhdxw
https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Mini-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-20-x-40.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Cart-2ftx3ft.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-2.5-feet-by-4-feet-long.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-2.5ft-by-5ft.html
http://www.centraloffice.xchangetele.com/callme.html?Token=MFWx1WklF2suRgS%2BBvsoL%2BUM0rNI%2FCQrfkYOpFzGvmxdLy5WPYf2kQxp40i3hqUJ%2FGrvrvhxU8wQ6xqApHg9UO9H1wfQ3URBRlUBNfIX%2F3b1V5fDiQUK5oVzl4%2BJA1i1q90eXV5TmH37FzfPbcLWl7NvQmuatFKTC7W77YDKM1JZvA7oIVhCb7O8Jbx7QysoK2Mf2v3EzWtplqrwfhFyBICsbA52SAMhp3GC3%2F4k82Y%2BS2Ghkv9wKC1TEuqXnPo5YOqYWGxSXvHd3Ny2hRjnHXPJt3hjPHs85%2FcUjfqIqoL67SDpw9%2FMNLQ6iKkkSk35h3d9v5LgatXPhQc%2F31t%2FzYXPV16ogIvYo%2BYZPLGs1n%2BKgL6dC3Rcj8qG98v3mmGpNH%2BEDKqNh68ZjXecCgJIh%2FOlJv3C1a58jcziTVzGgfoGygDud0cpo7QgwE8ADPMi%2BcqcsnhBYzgoZQfiTFx7JzmHjlr%2FYJFoZ1ZWbunXYHI%3D


3/1/18, 1:04 AMX-Large Electric Beach Wagon with Special Sand Wheels

Page 3 of 4https://handtrucks2go.com/Sandhopper-Motorized-Beach-Wagon-3ft-x-5ft.html

CUSTOMER	SERVICE
Sun-Thurs: 9-6 , Fri: 9-5 EST Sat: Closed

Looking for something
but can't find it?

Call us now at:

Toll Free: (888) 811-5941
Local: (732) 276-7164
Fax: (732) 387-7340

GOVERNMENT	SALES
Contact Government Sales

Toll Free: (888) 811-5941 Ext.5,
Local: (732) 276-7164 Ext.5,

Fax: (732) 387-7340

TESTIMONIALS

Bri Sullivan    

City: Spring 

State: Texas 

Aug 4, 2017

Average customer rating:

(1 reviews)

5 stars:  1 review(s)

4 stars:  0 review(s)

3 stars:  0 review(s)

2 stars:  0 review(s)

1 stars:  0 review(s)

Only those who bought this product are allowed to add review 

If you've already bought this product, please sign in and add your own review!

1 Most recent customer reviews (see all reviews):

Great product! Great service! If we are ever in the need for another....we will be back! 

Advantages: 1) product (2) service 

Disadvantages: none

COMPANY	INFO

About Us

GENERAL	INFO

FAQ's

HELP

Contact Us

CONTACT	INFO

Phone: (888) 811-5941

CONNECT

'

BEST	DEAL	ON	THE	MARKET.	LOVE	THE	FREE	SHIPPING.

VERY	LITTLE	TO	PUT	TOGETHER.	DEFINITELY	WOULD

RECOMMEND	TO	ANYONE	WHO	NEEDS	A	HAND	TRUCK

THAT	IS	CONVERTIBLE.

COREY BELL

LAKELAND, FLORIDA

I	CAN'T THANK HANDTRUCKS2GO ENOUGH. EXCELLENT

SERVICE AND GREAT PRICING!! YOU CAN'T GO WRONG

WITH	HANDTRUCKS2GO!!

(MAGLINER	GEMINI	SENIOR)

Mark Chiusano
New York, New York

"I	OWN A SNACK FOOD ROUTE. I	NEEDED A CART AND

SHOPPED

PRICE AND FREE SHIPPING! THE

ASSEMBLE. I	GOT A FOLD DOWN FRONT FOR	DOUBLE

STACKINGJohn K.
Austin, Texas

∠ ∠

Page 223

https://handtrucks2go.com/Government-Contract-and-Sales.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/Government-Contract-and-Sales.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/Government-Contract-and-Sales.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/reviews.php?productid=1574
https://handtrucks2go.com/login.php
https://handtrucks2go.com/reviews.php?productid=1574
https://handtrucks2go.com/about-us.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/frequently-asked-questions.html
https://handtrucks2go.com/help.php?section=contactus&mode=update
http://www.facebook.com/handtrucks2go
https://handtrucks2go.com/Magliner-Gemini-Senior-Convertible-Hand-Truck.html


Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 
Date: March 13, 2018  
From: Commissioner Tina Paul 
Subject: Pelican Harbor Seabird Station 29th Anniversary & Year of the Bird Fundraising Event. 

Background – Town of Surfside has previously provided sponsorship of Pelican Harbor Seabird 
Station (“Pelican Harbor”), a non-profit organization. Pelican Harbor is the oldest and largest 
full service wildlife hospital in Miami-Dade County dedicated to the rescue, rehabilitation and 
release of sick, injured or orphaned brown pelicans, seabirds and other native wildlife. Pelican 
Harbor has treated 27 native birds from Surfside in the past two years at an average cost of 
$600 per patient or $11,000 total invested in the treatment for Pelicans from Surfside.        
Since hurricane Irma, Pelican Harbor has had an increase in bird species treated, having    
already treated 38 species and 171 patients so far this year. 

Consideration – On April 14, 2018, Pelican Harbor will host their annual fundraising event for 
the 39th Anniversary & Year of the Bird celebration to be held at the Miami Shores Country 
Club. They have asked for Town of Surfside to consider support through sponsorship. 
Other municipalities providing continued support to their organization include: El Portal, 
Biscayne Park, North Bay Village, South Miami, North Miami Beach and Bay Harbor Islands. 

As a thank you for $1,000 White Ibis Sponsorship, Pelican Harbor offers: 
• 4 tickets to the Pelican Party
• A great PR opportunity
• Corporate logo and Municipality name on banners and slideshow at event and PHSS website
• Special pre-event Sponsor’s reception
• An offer of Operation Rescue training to staff, police, code compliance, lifeguards, etc.
• Release a bird and publicly and thank the Town of Surfside for sponsoring the patients release
• A table at a community event for 2 – 8 hours (based on the needs of the event)

Recommendation – Approve the sponsorship in the amount of $1,000 and coordinate with 
Pelican Harbor Seabird Station for a public release of a seabird at our Earth Day celebration. 

9F

Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227


	1A - Miami Dade Fire Rescue Department Annual Report
	2A - Request for Extension of Design Review Board Approval for 9408 Bay Drive
	3A - Minutes
	3B - Town Manager's Report
	3C - Town Attorney's Report
	3D - Committee Reports
	3E - Fourth of July Fireworks
	3F - Document Scanning
	3G - Urging Resolution to Retain NOAA Fisheries Headquarters on Virginia Key
	4A1 - Maintenance in the Right-of-Way, Including Trees and Mulch
	4A2 - Amending Section 2-235 "Lobbying" Second Reading of Ordinance
	4A3 - Driveway Modifications
	4A4 - Solar Photovoltaic Incentives
	4A5 - 5.	Amending Chapter 34 “Environment” of the Town’s Code of Ordinances to Create Section 34-11, “Prohibition on Distribution, Sale or Use of Plastic Straws” 
	4B1 - Ordinance Repealing Section 86-1 "Surfboards" of the Town's Code of Ordinances
	4B2 - Maximum Building Length
	4B3 - Surfside Development Approval Procedures Update
	5A - A.	Amending the Town’s Schedule of Civil Penalties and Administrative Fees to be Assessed for Violation of the Town’s Code, Specifically for violations of Section 34-11, “Prohibition of Distribution, Sale or Use of Plastic Straws” 
	5B - Solar Photovoltaic Incentives Building Permit Fee Waiver
	9A - Beach Raking
	9B - Sustainability Initiatives
	9C - Turtle Lighting
	9D - Supplemental Social Services for the Miami Beach School Feeder Pattern
	9E - Beach Management for Turtle Season
	9F - Pelican Harbor Seabird Station 29th Anniversary & Yeear of the Bird Fundraising Event



